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Kang Baohua (Chairman)
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Guo Zhongshan
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PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1101-06, 11/F

Prosperity Millennia Plaza

663 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Tian Shouliang
Yu Leung Fai (HKICPA, AICPA, CPA (Aust))

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yu Leung Fai (HKICPA, AICPA, CPA (Aust))

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank, Shenyang Dongling Subbranch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
Shenyang Yu Hong Subbranch

Bank of China, Shenyang Nanhu Subbranch

The Export-Import Bank of China, Dalian Branch

AUDITORS

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road, Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong law
Sidley Austin

WEBSITE
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YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 J A7 R 2 )

FEERRT
EERIRIT RS RE ST
PR TRRITERMBR AR
BREIOHT
BRI RS BT

TR EE ) A RTTAE D TT

BB

2R TRV EBAT
RS AT

BB

HRIREFTE 105
KT KRE8E

SRR
BEERE
IR EHAT

A4

www.yuandacn.com



Turnover (RMB million)
Gross Profit margin

Net cash generated from operating activities
(RMB million)

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company (RMB million)

Basic and diluted earnings
per share (RMB cents)

Proposed final dividend per share
(HK$ cents)

2013 2012 Percentage
2013 % 2012F  EFEHL

LEB(BABEARE) 10,872.4 11,844.6
EF=X 12.5% 16.5%
REFHELEZFRE

(BBARE) 549.3 201.6 >
AR BRI R FE(E T

(BEARE) 104.4 438.5
BRERREERF

(AR¥ES) 1.68 7.06
EEERARPRE

(7l 8.0 4.0
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OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services Create Value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement
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PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

Identify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers

Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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Thousands of silkworms would be sacrificed for producing 1-inch
clothes and tremendous efforts of the farmers would be needed to
produce a spoon of rice. As such, we will serve with the grateful heart
as always.

Dear shareholders,
On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the

“Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present to you the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of RMB10,872.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013, a decrease of 8.2% as compared
to 2012. Despite making a loss of RMB269.6 million attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company in the first half of 2013,
the Company managed to turn losses to gains for the year ended
31 December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB104.4 million. It had undertaken 164 new
projects with a total contract value of approximately RMB12,836
million, a decrease of 12.0% as compared to 2012. Average contract
value for single project was RMB78.3 million, an increase of 16.5%.

The remaining value of backlog amounted to approximately RMB
20,228 million, which well-secured the Group’s future income.

During the year under review, the Group adopts the strategy of
“energy saving, information technology, intelligent, new technology,
new materials” as its future technical development direction, and
pioneers the development trend of the industry based on its technical
expertise and extensive research and development experience.

EXOE

HZE2013F12A31BIEZFE » A&
BB EXIWAARK10,87248 8T
B 2012F 5 1 8.2% ° R E20134F £ F
FARNRRRELEEARKE2606 88
JL 0 BR20132F QRN ERAEA
B HE2013F12A31HIEFEE » K
NARREEENNABARKE10448E
TC o AEEFEZE T2 1641E - BEHE
BEHAR12,836 BE T * 82012 F
DLHI12.0% - BEBFHERSEAAR
BE78.3E BT B20126 125 716.5% °

ARIARMEENBRTEBEATHOA
R#20228F &L 5 AEBERIKIK
AR T RIFRRRE ©

CIEEFR - AEBATERRR  ER
b - ZRERAE ~ FTEAlT ~ BATRL] BRI
MBERAR - BREEEEETRERDN
BB A4S S| BITRAORRERBE -
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Benefiting from rapid urbanization process and the trading-up
market in China, since 2004, the curtain wall market has experienced
a decade of fast development period. In the last few years, with the
upgrade of the industrial chain, and the greater demand of better
living environment from public, several policies have been introduced

» oo«

by the government, including “beautiful China”, “new urbanization”,
“housing industrialization”, “building integrated photovoltaic”, which
make us believe that the curtain wall market will develop forwards

low-carbon, environmental protection, high energy-saving standard.

In 2014, despite the rapid growth of domestic real estate investment
and the slightly recovery of overseas economy, the tightening policy
in the domestic credit market and more intensive competition in the
overseas market pose a huge challenge on the profitability of the
entire industry.

In 2014, the Company will continue to stay firmly with its steady
operating strategy, not to pursue the growth of topline and new
orders blindly given the tightening policy in the domestic credit
market and economic slowdown of overseas markets. The
Company will keep improving its cost budget control, reducing
its regular wage level, using the share award scheme to motivate
both employees and management teams and retrenching staff to
improve the performance per capita, which will help to reduce cost
of sales and administrative expenses and improve the profitability
of the Company. The Company will further accelerate the collection
of receivables and enjoy a longer credit period through centralized
strategic procurement to improve the Group’s operating cash flow
level. At last, the Company will be more active to explore some new
business models and get access to other industries.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 5 e A BR 24 7]
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

As certain projects undertaken prior to 2011 (including 2011) by
the Company carrying low profit margins have been gradually
completed, it is expected that profitability of the Company will get
better and better in coming year, and enhance the value of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

On behalf of the Board, | hereby expressed my heartfelt thanks
to all shareholders and partners who care and support Yuanda
China and all employees of the Group who make great efforts and
contribution. The Group will continue to implement the operational
philosophy of “Technology leads the market, Services create value”
and upholds the corporate spirit of “To do things honestly, To treat
people sincerely, To understand causes and results, To unify theory
and practice”. With these in mind, the Group will turn its workforce
into modernized talent who will act responsibly and in good faith and
repay the society. Based on this, the Group will prudently operate,
pioneer and innovate so as to bring sound results for seniors and
friends who have been giving selfless support to Yuanda and best
investment returns for shareholders as a whole.

Kang Baohua
Chairman
28 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a provider of one-stop integrated curtain wall
solutions covering the design of curtain wall systems, procurement
of materials, fabrication and assembly of curtain wall products,
performance testing, installation of products at construction sites
and after-sales services. End users of our curtain wall solutions
mainly concentrate in domestic and overseas non-residential
and infrastructure development areas, such as office buildings of
government authorities or headquarters of leading companies from
various industries, hotels, shopping centers, convention, cultural
and art centers, stadiums, exhibition halls, airports, train stations,
hospitals and universities.

We believe we are a world leading curtain wall provider with a
comprehensive product portfolio. We integrated elements of new
materials, new technology, alternative energy, environmental
protection and energy conservation into curtain wall products
through much sophisticated research and development (“R&D”),
design, production and installation works to further develop different
types of curtain wall products and be committed to realizing the idea
of “Low carbon, Function, Safety” in curtain wall products. Such
products include double-skin, photovoltaic, ecologically friendly,
video and membrane structure types of curtain walls. We also
provide ancillary products related to curtain wall systems, including
skylights, metal roofs, canopy systems, shading systems, balustrade
and breast board systems, fire door, roll-up door and energy-saving
aluminum alloy doors and windows.

After recording a loss of RMB269.6 million attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company in the first half of 2013, the Company
managed to turn losses to gains for the year ended 31 December
2013. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB104.4 million (31 December 2012: approximately RMB438.5
million).

EEEFWR DT

E 3 0]

AEBRERBERARORG  KEM
£ BUERERBIEER - Eaeil
KT TLZRER ARERRHES
SR —UAMSE S FHEEBRAERT
RHER - ROWFIBROR T REHH
ERREI2RANBARERPIETT
XEZOEEHEMAKE  URBEE -
RAEBmTH L 8& XM it
Do BES REHE - 5 NE-
Bt KBFEA - BINFHEEMER
RIBIZERR

HMEERMRAFEHEMEANE
RALFREEESD - RFPRERRERM
BT IT R (e ) - &REH £E -
ZIRIRE - K RIEEREM B B
o~ FHBEIR - IRIR - EREH R —RB1L
HEe  E—PREZBRBER ¥
WRERBEER KK - e 22
- ZFEMBREERE  LKE
% AR GRRELREEREE
FoHAMRHESERSABANEY
Em BRXLE 2BE@ WEXR
B EBERS - BT RERES DA
9 - aeF M ERBEIRIRER B 2 FTE -

TR T 2013 F ¥ F AR BIRRIEN
EEARKE260.6B&E L% - EZE2013
F12 A3 HIEFERARIREKINELR H
ERE - BE2013F 12 A1 HIEFE -
AARIRRELEFNABARKE10448
Et(2012F12 A31 B : Y AR 4385

41—

BHETT) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EROEE(ZE)
It was noted that: FERAE

In the second half of 2013, the Company improved the control
for cost budget of projects and reduced the installation and
on-site costs of projects;

In the second half of 2013, the Company managed the foreign
exchange risks and substantially reduced foreign exchange
losses incurred in the first half of 2013;

The Company reduced its regular wage and bonus level and
used the share award scheme to motivate the employees and
management teams, which improved the performance per
capita. As a result, the Group’s profitability was improved; and

Certain projects undertaken prior to 2011 (including 2011) by
the Company carrying a low profit margins (“the Low Profit
Projects”) were completed in the first half of 2013. Meanwhile,
projects undertaken after 2011 with higher profit margins
provided positive revenue contribution to the Group in the
second half of 2013. Hence, the Company’s profit margin
improved.

FE2013F R4 - QRN TEHR
TEEKATEE WIS - FIEENEY
HRRIGRAEFTRD

2013 F T H4F - RA)EIRINER,
% KB 7 2013 F FEFHE
HAEK

NE R EEERTE RIELLK
¥ BB R ZE R 88 E
BTMERBRGNE - R AYE
M IBINT ARWEMES - &

2011 F 2 A1 (52011 F ) R "l &
RE D TREMBERRE(ERBLT
Bl HFKREHE2013F L¥F
BRTTL - B - 20011 F2EEE
/)18 B A B FEKE - 7£2013
FTIHF  BEBROFABIREAR
SENRATREEER  BmE
NEFEKFEBRRA -

Newly-awarded Projects (excluding VAT) HEREBEIR(FERER)
2013 2012
20134 20124
Number Number
of projects RMB (million) of projects RMB (million)

HE#E AR (BER) HE#E ARB(BEET)

Domestic A 135 8,943 165 10,706
Overseas NETN 29 3,893 52 3,874
Total =X 164 12,836 217 14,580
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In 2013, the Group undertook 164 new projects with an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB 12,836 million, a decrease of about
RMB 1,744 million or 12.0% as compared to 2012. The main
reason was that the Company has voluntarily not participated in
bidding for those new projects with an expected low profit margin
or unfavourable payment terms in order to minimize potential risks
of the ongoing development of the Company arising from low-price
market competition.

Affected by the generally deteriorating payment terms and
intensification of price competition, the Company gradually dropped
out the Middle East market. However, the Company will continue
to adhere to its internationalized strategy. In the past few years, the
emerging market was developing in a fast pace, and on the other
hand, the European market and American market were gradually
recovering with some market scale. As such, the Company still got
a great amount of overseas orders.

Details of the certain landmark projects obtained by the Group in
2013 are as follows:

EEEFWR DT

EBmREE(E)

20134 » AREEF A TIZ 164 {H -
BEHARE12,836BETT * K20124F
TEBTHOANRE1 744 EE T 12.0% °
FERAARFIMRE T EEEETEE
#l - ETEHEBBHEFKERIE - IR
BHEEZSHTRIZIR  FREERBE
EmEHFHRRABIFELRNE
[BLBg o

BEIMNREERL  BERFHE
T RABREAEP RS - BB
fbBERBEEZ AR TEH TR -
ERERLT  HEMHBERIR - FR
2013 FBUM TS5 FIFE N T I5 8 FiE &k
MIZHRBE - RRDEEREFINET
D

AREBMN 2013 FHFHE THAR AR
AU

Domestic: ANIER :
Category of Approximately
Project name project utilization contract value
HE EB BB RRER BREENR
Nanjing Youth Olympic Stadium Sports Stadium RMB 269.5 million
MRER BEE AR¥E260.5EETT
Xuzhou Suning Plaza Headquarters Building RMB 198.4 million
RN ERE YN ARK1984BET
Avatar Dream World in Saudao town, High-end Residence RMB 194.7 million
Baoting County, Hainan province =iEEE ARBA947TAETT

BEERFT-EBEEXE EMALESOHR
Damei Central Plaza

FEERPD

Suzhou SBS Modern Media Building

# N SBS IR EHKE

Shanghai Grand City

LBXEg

Dalian International Trade Center

REEEH L

Commercial Complex
[SESGS=y

Cultural Media

XA ELE

Commercial Complex
[EEZR=y:
Headquarters Building
HERE

RMB 179.7 million
AR¥EA79.7EETT
RMB 173.2 million
AR¥A732AETT
RMB 167.2 million
ARKEAGT2AETT
RMB 159.1 million

ARK1591BHET
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Overseas:

Project name

HE&E

Marina Bay in Singapore
s E g

Vietnam ICB Center

W TEIRITRE

British Victoria Office Building
ik | /N
Algiers Masjid

MREBER

Moscow Adm|n|strative Commercial Center
ST TR E A O

British South Tower

EEEEREANE

Indescon Court Tower
EIEHT R AE

Backlog

Domestic A
Overseas SN
Total At

As at 31 December 2013, the remaining value of backlog amounted
to approximately RMB 20,228 million (31 December 2012:
approximately RMB 18,479 million), which well-secured the Group’s

future income.

XKERE(E)

wHMER
Category of Approximately
project utilization contract value
HE ARER EREENR
Office Buildings and Residence RMB 744.5 million
MAREBREE ARBET7445 58T
Financial Center RMB 461.4 million
SRF D AR 4614EET
Financial Center RMB 288.7 million
TRA D AR 288.7TEHETT
Public Facility RMB 246.3 million
NHFRE AR 2463 HETT
Government Office Building RMB 204.2 million
IEGSR N ARKE2042BETT
High-end Hotel RMB 191.9 million
SN ARE1919BETT
High-end Residence RMB 188.1 million
BiEEE ARKE188.1BHET

AKEILAR

As at 31 December 2013
Remaining contract value
EZ2013512A831H

As at 31 December 2012
Remaining contract value
BZE2012F12A31H

#BTEEEE STAaREE
Number Number
of projects RMB million of projects RMB million
HEHE ARW(EER) HRgE ARE(BERL)
365 13,455 376 12,964
92 6,773 96 5,515
457 20,228 472 18,479

HE2013FE12A31H » A ILAERMS
FEBTEES
Jt(20124 12 A31 H

AR 20,228 F &
M AR18,479

BETT) » HERBERROKRATEH TR

HIRE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Major technology achievements and awards

The Group adopts the strategy of “energy saving, information
technology, intelligent, new technology, new materials” as its future
technical development direction, and pioneers the development
trend of the industry based on its technical expertise and extensive
research and development experience.

In 2013, the Group initiated numerous new innovation programmes,
covering research mainly in low-carbon energy-saving modular
functional curtain wall, dual cycle energy-saving double window,
IOT (Internet of things) intelligentized curtain wall, airtight inflatable
maintenance-free double-skin curtain wall and building integrated
photovoltaic curtain wall. Some of which have been applied in certain
curtain wall projects, such as:

° ultra white insulating laminated glass curtain wall body of
Shenzhen Ping An Finance Centre (ZIIIFZ & R L);

° wide cellular stainless steel plate and sun shielding single-layer
glass of Xiamen Shigiao House (It B L))

° 3mm thick titanium plated stainless steel curtain wall systems
of Moscow President Service Centre (B HTRHAG ARG ).

Certain newly awarded projects in 2013 with an aggregate contract
amount of approximately RMB 2,836 million were categorized under
the new types of curtain wall systems, contributing to 22.1% of the
amount of the newly awarded orders in 2013, which comprises
unitized curtain wall, double-skin energy-saving curtain wall,
photovoltaic curtain wall, intelligentized curtain wall and LED curtain
wall. We would keep developing brand new, innovative curtain wall
products and technology so that we can apply them in curtain wall
projects with a view of strengthening our leading position in the
industry.

EEENWR DT

EBEE(E)
T 2R R BHR 2R

AEE L [EIREIRIR ~ R RME > BHEefL
B - FME ] RARREIMERT A -
BREHA S EMRE RO E G EE
SIBITENARRERBS -

20134 » R Y ZIRAIHT BT SREETT
MR TR BIABHEE - KRETREILR
1 Thee

% BREREEEEE W

BEREEE  THAARCEEEE
B SUERBRRS  ERXKRE

HEER AN BEBEMEEESR
BHETREPRIER - fimn

o [RYIFFRERF L KANEATS
ZERBREEIELR

e [EftE+SL]EKANBREEET
IR FIE - BB E T IBEIEIA
N

o [REREERBS L] MMM
AT HMREE R -

SE20IBFHAEBEBEFR  HARK
2,836 BB LM B RL - 152013
FHAETIRRERASEN221% T268
RETARE EEHERE  tKE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Major technology achievements and awards (continued)

In addition to constant innovations through the research and
development in our main operating business, the Group gradually
extends its business towards upstream and downstream and
peripheral sectors. In 2013, the Group launched several brand new
products, including the energy-saving insulated aluminum doors and
windows, decoration walls and so forth, which not only enriched
our product portfolios but also provided a new profit source for the
Group.

In 2013, the Group obtained 225 patents, including 21 patents
for invention, 190 patents for utility model and 14 patents for
appearance design. The accumulated number of patents owned by
the Group was 893 as at 31 December 2013.

In 2013, the “Cable prestressed glass curtain wall” was granted with
provincial patent award of excellence.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

In 2013, the Group’s turnover decreased by RMB972.2 million or
8.2% to approximately RMB10,872.4 million (2012: approximately
RMB11,844.6 million). Among our turnovers:

1. The turnover from domestic market increased by
approximately RMB427.7 million or 5.3% to approximately
RMB8,452.1 million (2012: approximately RMB8,024.4
million), contributing to 77.7% of the total turnover. The
turnover from East China, Northeast China and South China
increased as compared to that of 2012, partly offset by the
decrease in revenue from West China and North China.

The reason was that the number, contract value as well as
the percentage of the projects undertaken in domestic market
in the last couple of years increased. However, the Group’s
business in the West China and North China was adversely
affected by intense competition and market adjustment, which
led to a decrease in turnover in that segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Turnover (continued)

2. The turnover from overseas market decreased by RMB1,399.9
million to approximately RMB2,420.3 million (2012:
approximately RMB3,820.2 million), contributing to 22.3% of
the total turnover. The main reason was that the progress of
overseas projects has slowed down and the Company made
an adjustment to its market strategy.

Cost of sales

In 2013, the Group’s cost of sales decreased by about RMB374.6
million or 3.8% to approximately RMB9,512.2 million (2012: about
RMB9,886.8 million). It was mainly due to the decrease of turnover
in 2018.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2013, the Group’s gross profit decreased by RMB597.5 million or
30.5% to RMB1,360.3 million (2012: RMB1,957.8 million).

In 20183, the Group’s domestic gross profit margin decreased by
approximately 0.6% to 18.3% (2012: 18.9%). Given the prolonged
project period of certain domestic projects affected by tightening
policy in the domestic credit market and intense market competition,
the gross profit of West China and South China was adversely
affected.

However, in the second half of 2013, the Group’s domestic gross
profit margin improved for the reasons that:

1. Since 2011, the Company has been selective in the bidding
process, especially for those projects with low profit margin
and unfavorable payment terms. As a result, most of projects
undertaken after 2011 were carrying a better profit margin.
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BEER R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin (continued)

2. With a better cost budget control and acceleration of

contracting for the supplementary work with our customers,

the gross profit margin of our domestic projects improved.

For the reasons stated above, most of the existing domestic

projects were operating under better conditions, the gross

profit margin improved, which contributed to positive gross

profit in the second half of 2013, including:

@)

Dalian Stadium Project with a contract value of RMB285
million;

Shenyang Art Centre with a contract value of RMB163
million;

Dalian Media Centre with a contract value of RMB101
million;

The design and installation services to the Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Group Ltd. (“Yuanda Group”) with an
aggregate contract value of RMB245 million;

Wuxi Sunning Plaza with a contract value of RMB174

million; and

Sanya Beautiful Crown Hotel with a contract value of
RMB458 million.

In 2018, the Group’s overseas gross profit margin decreased by

19.1% to gross loss margin of 7.6% (2012: gross profit margin of

11.5%). Given the prolonged project period of certain overseas

projects as a result of continuous slowdown of global economy,

Europe debt crisis and intense market competition, the gross profit

of overseas projects was adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other revenue

In 2013, the Group’s other revenue increased by approximately
RMB20.6 million or 128.8% to approximately RMB36.6 million
(2012: approximately RMB16.0 million). This was mainly due to
the increase in one-off government corporate subsidy of RMB19.7
million.

Other net income

Other net income primarily comprises net income from provision of
repairs and maintenance services, sale of raw materials and net gain
on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

In 2013, the Group’s other net income increased by approximately
RMB3.0 million or 53.6% to approximately RMB8.6 million (2012:
approximately RMB5.6 million). This was mainly due to the increase in
the net income from provision of repairs and maintenance services.

Selling expenses

In 2013, the Group’s selling expenses decreased by approximately
RMB79.6 million or 31.0% to approximately RMB176.8 million
(2012: approximately RMB256.4 million). This is mainly due to the
decrease of staff costs by reducing the regular wage and bonus level
and retrenching staff to improve the performance per capita.

In 2013, selling expenses accounted for 1.6% of the revenue (2012:
2.2%).

Administrative expenses

In 2013, the administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB126.0 million or 10.8% to approximately RMB1,036.0 million
(2012: approximately RMB1,162.0 million). This is mainly due to the
decrease of staff costs by reducing the regular wage and bonus level
and retrenching staff to improve the performance per capita.

In 2013, administrative expenses accounted for 9.5% of the revenue
(2012: 9.8%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Finance costs

In 2013, the finance costs increased by about RMB28.5 million
or 21.7% to approximately RMB160.0 million (2012: RMB131.5
million). The reasons for the increase are as follow:

1. In 2013, the Company'’s interest expenses increased by
RMB42.8 million or 36.2% to RMB161.0 million (2012:
RMB118.2 million).

Even though the Group’s effective interest rate went down
as compared to last year, the Company’s interest expenses
somewhat increased. It was mainly due to the increase in
the Company’s total bank loans. As at 31 December 2013,
the Company’s total bank loans amounted to approximately
RMB3,063.2 million (2012: RMB1,952.0 million).

The Group obtained most of its new bank loans in the first half
of 2013 and its operating cash flow improved in the second
half of 2013. As at the date of this report, the Company has
no plan to repay the bank loans in advance or obtain any other
loan from the banks, considering the tightening the policy in the
domestic credit market.

2. In 2013, the Group’s net foreign exchange gain (after offsetting
the gain from forward foreign exchange contracts) increased
by approximately RMB10.9 million or 153.5% to RMB18.0
million (2012: RMB7.1 million). In 2013, the Company recorded
the foreign exchange gain arising from its transactions in
Australian Dollar (“AUD”), RUB, United States Dollar (“USD”)
and CHF, partly offset by the loss arising from transactions in
JPY, CAD, SGD and HKD.

In 2013, finance costs accounted for 1.5% of the revenue of the
Group (2012: 1.1%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income tax

In 2013, the Group’s income tax decreased by approximately
RMB46.4 million or 90.1% to RMB5.1 million (2012: RMB51.5
million) due to the decrease in profit before taxation.

Our effective tax rate increased from 12.0% in 2012 to 15.7% in
2013.

Profit attributable to our equity shareholders

In 2013, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
decreased by RMB334.1 million or 76.2% to approximately
RMB104.4 million (2012: approximately RMB438.5 million).

The basic and diluted earnings per share decreased by
approximately RMB5.38 cents or 76.2% to approximately RMB1.68
cents (2012: approximately RMB7.06 cents).

Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately RMB2,677.2 million (31 December 2012:
approximately RMB2,765.1 million).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB3,273.8 million (31 December
2012: approximately RMB2,132.3 million), mainly denominated in
RMB, AUD, USD and British Pound Sterling.

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB3,063.2 million (31 December
2012: approximately RMB1,952.0 million), including RMB2,972.3
million denominated in RMB and RMB90.9 million denominated in
USD. Such bank loans increased by approximately RMB1,111.2
million or 56.9% compared to 2012.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Bank loans and gearing ratio (continued)

The Group’s gearing ratio (total loans divided by total equity) was
74.6% (31 December 2012: 46.5%). The increase was due to an
increase in bank borrowings of the Group in 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total principal amount of bank
loans included RMB2,933.2 million which was repayable within one
year and RMB130.0 million which was repayable between one to
two years.

Turnover days of receivables/trade and bills payables/inventory
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Turnover days (day) 2013 2012
A (K ) 2013 £ 20124
Receivables (Note 1) FEUBRFR(FIRE1) 219 172
Trade and bills payables (Note 2) B S RN AR ENER(HE2) 208 163
Inventory (Note 3) FE(H:E3) 34 37
Notes: PIEE -

1. The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the 1. EUERZESEES @A E AR R

average amount of trade and bills receivables after net of provision
and net contract work receivables (gross amount due from
customers for contract work less gross amount due to customers
for contract work) after net of provision as at the beginning and
ending of the relevant period divided by total turnover of the
corresponding period and multiplied by 365 days of the financial
year.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at the
beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost of raw
materials and installation cost and multiplied by 365 days.

3. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average
amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending of the relevant
period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw materials and
multiplied by 365 days.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Bank loans and gearing ratio (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the receivables turnover
days of the Company were approximately 219 days (31 December
2012: approximately 172 days), an increase of 47 days, which
was mainly due to the fact that amidst the domestic credit and
fiscal crunch, the developers got cautious in project investment,
delayed in construction progress payment and examination of
completed projects, or reduced and delayed the payment of
materials reserved for the contract work, while according to the
contract or the developers’ payment undertaking, the Group should
meet the requirements of progress in the projects. This resulted in
more working capital being advanced by the Group and a longer
settlement period from the customers. At the same time, the cash
collection for those completed projects remained slow.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the trade and bills payables
turnover days of the Company were approximately 208 days (31
December 2012: 163 days), an increase of 45 days. As we are in
good and long-term cooperative relationship with suppliers, the
Group obtained flavourable payment terms, resulting in the increase
in the payables turnover days. The difference between receivables
turnover days and payables turnover days for the period was 11
days, basically under control.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the net operating cash flow
increased by RMB347.7 million to approximately RMB549.3 million
(81 December 2012: approximately RMB201.6 million).

Inventory turnover days

Our inventories primarily consist of materials used in fabrication of
curtain wall products, including extrusions aluminum, glass, steel
and sealant.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s inventory
turnover days were approximately 34 days (31 December 2012:
approximately 37 days), more or less the same as compared to that
of 2012.
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BEER R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Capital expenditure

In 2013, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to RMB87.6
million (31 December 2012: RMB130.5 million), which was mainly
related to the expenses incurred on acquiring land, construction of
plant and purchase of equipment. With respect to the expansion
of manufacturing capacity, the new Chengdu production base was
completed and commenced operation.

The headquarters and production base for photovoltaic curtain
wall of the new Chengdu production base is situated at KO+500, 4
Konggang Road at Southwest Airport Economic Development Zone
Phase 6 in Shuang Liu County, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province with
a site area of approximately 100,000 square meters and a gross
floor area of approximately 75,000 square meters, respectively. The
maximum annual production capacity is approximately 2,500,000
square meters of curtain wall area, representing an increase of about
180%, and will provide the Group with the product capacity for future
development.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in USD,
Euro, GBP, AUD and Swiss Francs. To hedge our foreign exchange
risks, we have entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
which hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of the Group with the net
fair value of RMB43.5 million and RMB64.5 million, respectively. The
Group ensures that the Group’s net exposure to currency risk arising
from recognised assets and liabilities is kept to an acceptable level.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Company’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2013 are set out in Note 32.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank loans of RMB630.0
million were secured by property, plant and equipment and land
use rights of the Group with the aggregate carrying value of

approximately RMB636.5 million.

Save as disclosed, the Group had no charge on the assets as at 31
December 2013.

Material Acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and
associated companies.

Significant Investments

The Group did not make any significant investments for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Company did not have any future plans for significant
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.

EEENWR DT

B EE(E)

& E

R2013F12 A31 H » KAEERIRITER
ARBEB30.0BETLAME - HE M&E
MAREE R L FE R EERT - AW
BN ABAREE36.5BETT

BRIBFEE SN - REERKR2013F 12831 H
Wi E R -

BEAWEBRLE

MR2013F 12 A1 BILFEER - AEEW
EIMEEKB AR NBE A AGNEKR
UeBE R & o

BRIKE

HE2013F12A31BHILEFE » AEFET
IEITERERIRE -

BEAREREREERRKEE

RARERH - AR EEREARKR
BYRAEENARRGTE -

Annual Report 2013 —F—=44FH

27



28

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering through
which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares were offered at a price
of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised by the Company were
approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s Prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and
supplementary Prospectus dated 5 May 2011, the Company
intended to use the proceeds for expansion of its production
capacity, repayment of its existing debts, investment in research and
development, expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2013, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$1,772 million of proceeds from the global offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$329 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing
network: HK$220 million) was utilized. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$631 million will be used as stated in the
Prospectus and the supplementary Prospectus of the Company.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 11,357 full-time employees
in total (31 December 2012: 12,532). The related employees’
costs for the period (including directors’ emoluments) amounted
to approximately RMB1,092.0 million (2012: RMB1,327.2 million).
The Group has sound policies of management incentives and
competitive remuneration, which align with the interests of
management, employees and shareholders’ alike. The Group sets
its remuneration policy with reference to the prevailing market
conditions and the performance of the individuals concerned,
subject to review from time to time. The components of the
remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances, fringe
benefits including medical insurance and contributions to pension
funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and participation
in share option scheme. Details of the share option scheme will be
available in this report of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (BEE ), aged 60, is the founder and chairman
of our Group, and has been our executive Director since 26
February 2010. Mr. Kang has been the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company and the director of numerous
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kang is the vice president of the
Liaoning Chamber of Commerce ((XEA B E). Graduated from
Liaoning University (&% X2 ) with a diploma in politics in 1984,
Mr. Kang has over 20 years of experience in the curtain wall industry
and has been responsible for the overall management and strategic
development of our Group since 1992. Prior to founding our Group,
Mr. Kang was an executive director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group
Company (/&5 R £ E /2 7). Since our establishment, Mr. Kang
has been involved in the management of our Company, including
business development, finance and corporate strategy formulation.

Mr. Tian Shouliang (FH=F B), aged 50, is our chief executive officer
and has been our executive Director since 18 December 2010.
Mr. Tian has been a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Tian joined our Group in 1994 and has over 19
years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1995 to 1997,
Mr. Tian was the vice general manager in production of Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (BF5E AR
T BRAF] (“Shenyang Yuanda”), where he was involved in
curtain wall product design and managed curtain wall production
systems. From 1997 to 2008, he was the vice chairman of Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Group Ltd. (&5 KiREEB AR A
7)) (“Yuanda Group”) where he was in charge of operations, finance
and human resources management activities. Since 2008, Mr. Tian
has been the president and a director of Shenyang Yuanda, leading
its business expansions and product development plans. Mr. Tian
graduated from Harbin Industrial University (}ERE L AE) in
1986 with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering specializing in the
study of heat turbines.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Guo Zhongshan (388 11), aged 49, has been our executive
Director since 18 December 2010. Mr. Guo joined our Group in 1994
and has over 19 years of experience in the curtain wall industry. From
1994 to 1996, Mr. Guo was the chief engineer of Shenyang Yuanda,
responsible for engineering design works related to curtain wall
products. From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Guo has been the vice president
of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for market development in the
PRC. Since 1997, Mr. Guo has been the vice president of Shenyang
Yuanda. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Guo was the technical
director of Shenyang Strong Wind Company (&5 38 @A &)) from
1992 to 1993. Mr. Guo graduated from Shenyang Aviation Industrial
College (&5 Ze
engineering in 1986 and from Dalian Polytechnic University ( A:&23E
T RE) with a master’s degree in mechanical engineering in 1992,

= T % 2t) with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical

Mr. Wang Yijun (EZ&%), aged 45, is the vice president of our
Group, managing director of our international operations and has
been our executive Director since December 18, 2010. Mr. Wang
has joined our Group since 1993 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the curtain wall industry. From 1993 to 1998, Mr.
Wang held various managerial positions in Shenyang Yuanda
where he managed engineering design and technology works.
In 1999, Mr. Wang was the technical manager of the Shanghai
branch of Shenyang Yuanda. Since 2000, Mr. Wang has been
the general manager of the international operations of Shenyang
Yuanda, responsible for its business in overseas markets. Mr. Wang
graduated from Shenyang Aviation Industrial College (&5 i 2=

% 2% ) with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering and
design in 1992. Mr. Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k [ 42 Bt A BR A H]

EE(E)
HITER(E)

BB IL £ - 49758 - R2010%F 12 H 18
AEZEAMITES - FEAENR1994F
MAREE  REZBTEEBR19FLK
B2 o FR1994 F = 1996 FF + P E BIERS
BRAMBREIEM AEAHEEEED
B TR2RRET TE o 71996 F = 1997 4F -
DEE—HREBEGRANEH A&
FETISHEBER - 51997 FiE - 50
EE—BHETBSRANBEE - i
AR E B AT - 205 A 7 1992 F £ 1993
FHRRERRR A TR M EE -
FAEAENR1986 FEENBGMET XS
Br - VIS TI22 L 847 - WM 1992
FEREBTIRSBREKMIREELS

fiL o

IREBERE 455 RAEEERIAHFR
BIPR EHE R EEIR - WH2010F 12 A
18ABZEARMITESE - TH4AEHE 1993
FIAREE  REBITEAER20F
4B o FA1993F £19984F + TR LT
BESEAZETERE BEEET
BERET KB T1E - 19994 - T 5E
ERBGERNEED ARIMEIMERE -
H2000F#E + T4 —H AEBBEAR
BREBNRLEE  BEBINTHER -
T Ao ER 1992 F R E N B G ZE I%ﬂ
Bt » XS T2 B aRaT 2+ 86 -
%iﬁﬁ$%§%¥%%@ﬁm%$o



Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Lihui (E£3Z#&), aged 44, is our Company’s chief
financial officer and has been our executive Director since 18
December 2010. Mr. Wang joined our Group in 1996 and has more
than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Wang
has experience in dealing with internal control, risk management,
corporate finance and taxation matters and is responsible for the
overall management of our Group’s financial operations. He has
been involved in formulating the Group’s budgets, remuneration and
incentive schemes. Prior to joining us, Mr. Wang was an accountant
in Northeast (No. 6) Pharmaceutical Manufacturer (B3t 58 /< H) %%
&) from 1992 to 1994 and the finance director of Shenyang Wumei
Shopping Centre ((EFZ¥3<mEH) from 1995 to 1996. From 1996
to 2004, Mr. Wang was the financial manager of Shenyang Yuanda.
Since 2004, Mr. Wang has been the chief accountant of Yuanda
Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Anhui Trade and Finance College
(ZZ 11 B Z2B7) with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 1992. Mr.
Wang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Lei (3R ), aged 41, has been our executive Director
since 4 June 2013, Mr. Zhang is also the vice president of Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. (EBf5ia KER%E T
EHERAF]) (“Shenyang Yuanda”), a subsidiary of the Company,
since February 2013. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2002 and
has over 10 years of experience in the curtain wall industry. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Zhang held various managerial positions in Northeast
Refractory Materials Factory (811 AR L), including the deputy
factory director of the fourth branch responsible for production
facilities and the head of the Department of Facilities of Northeast
Refractory Materials Factory from 1994 to 2000. From 2001 to 2002,
Mr. Zhang was a management trainee of YKK Japan Corporation.
Mr. Zhang served several positions with the Northeastern China
Branch of Shenyang Yuanda including the head of its Department
of Quality Control and Techonics from 2002 to 2005. He was a
designer of the Middle East Branch of Shenyang Yuanda from 2005
to 2006 and the chief designer of Dubai Branch of Shenyang Yuanda
from 2006 to 2008, responsible for the Group’s ACC44 Residential
Tower, Empire Tower and The Executive Towers at Business Bay
projects, respectively. From 2008 to 2012, Mr. Zhang has served
several positions with Shenyang Yuanda, including the assistant
to chief engineer of the management department for international
business of Shenyang Yuanda, the deputy factory director of the
overseas curtain wall manufacturing factory of Shenyang Yuanda,
chief supervisor of factories and the president of factories of
Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang received a diploma in mechanical
engineering from Shenyang Electrical and Mechanical Industrial
School (&G E T 24 ) in 1994,
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (7% B ), aged 51, has been our
independent non-executive Director since 12 April 2011. Mr. Poon
has been the chairman of the audit committee and the member of
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Poon obtained a
Master’s degree in international accounting, a Bachelor’s degree
in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in business studies. He was
awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of
London. He is a member and an associate instructor of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a Fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He now serves as
an executive director, vice-president and company secretary of
Huabao International Holdings Limited. Mr. Poon has over 24
years of experience in regulatory affairs and investment banking.
Mr. Poon worked in the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange. He
subsequently had been an executive director and managing director
of several investment banks. Currently, he is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of the following companies: Ningbo Port
Company Limited, Guangzhou Shipyard International Company
Limited, Sunac China Holdings Limited, Changan Minsheng APLL
Logistics Co., Ltd. and Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited. He
retired from his position as an Independent Non-executive Director
in Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited and China Tianrui Group
Cement Company Limited due to the expiry of his term of office in
June 2011 and December 2012 respectively.

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#Z#8), aged 44, has been
our independent non-executive Director since 12 April 2011. Mr.
Woo has been the chairman of the remuneration committee and
the member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Woo is an
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of
IRC Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1029). Mr. Woo has over 20
years of experience in the accounting and financial services industry.
He began his career as a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen
& Co where he qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior
positions as an investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities (HK)
Company Limited and Credit Suisse. Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree. He is a member of both the Australian Society
of Certified Practising Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (37 #8) , aged 41, has been our
independent non-executive Director since 12 April 2011. Mr. Pang
has been the member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pang
is the managing partner of Messrs. Pang & Co., in association with
Loeb & Loeb LLP. Between 1997 and 2009, Mr. Pang practiced
as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong and
Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree in laws (honors)
from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained
his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and master’s degree in laws
from The College of Law, Sydney and the University of New South
Wales, Australia, respectively. He has been admitted as a legal
practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia
since 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
2009. He is a member of both the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia and the Law Society of Hong Kong. Currently, Mr.
Pang is also an independent non-executive Director of the following
companies: China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited and
Goldenmars Technology Holdings Limited.

All directors are not involved in any matters concerning Rule 13.51(2)
(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Senior Management

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip, aged 36, was appointed as our Company
secretary and authorized representative on 20 June 2012 and has
over 10 years of experience in corporate services field. He was an
auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2000 to 2001. Since
2001, Mr. Yu has been the director of the Corporate and China
Services Division of Fung, Yu & Co. CPA Limited. Mr. Yu has also
been the company secretary of China National Materials Co. Ltd.
(stock code: 01893), Beijing Media Corporation Ltd. (stock code:
01000) and Vale S.A. (stock code: 06210, 06230), all of which
are listed companies in Hong Kong, since 2009, 2010 and 2010,
respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Toronto with
a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000 and from the University
of London with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2005. He is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified
Practicing Accountants of Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Xie Haizhuang (&1i8iR), aged 46, is the chief engineer of
Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Xie joined our Group in 1995. From 1995
to 2002, Mr. Xie held positions including technical designer and
technical manager, dealing with the technical aspects of curtain
wall projects. He has worked on the technical design of proposals
for bidding major projects. Since 2002, Mr. Xie was involved in our
corporate technical development management. Graduating from
Huadong Industrial College (223 T 2t ) in 1990, Mr. Xie holds a
bachelor’s degree in mechanical construction design.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal
controls and accountability to shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value including setting and approving the Company’s strategic
implementation, considering substantial investments, reviewing the
Group’s financial performance and developing and reviewing the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance. The Board
has delegated to the chief executive officer, of which the directors
also undertake, and through him, to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities (continued)

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, membership of the Board is made
up of nine members in total, with six executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
is set out below:
Executive Directors
Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman
Mr. Tian Shouliang Chief executive officer
Mr. Guo Zhongshan

Mr. Wang Yijun

Mr. Wang Lihui

Mr. Zhang Lei

Notes:

(1) Mr. Zhang Lei was appointed as the executive Director on 4 June
2018.

(2)  Mr. Wu Qingguo retired on 29 May 2013.
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors
are expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive directors are independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The roles and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer of

the Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Tian Shouliang. The positions of chairman
and chief executive officer are held by separate persons in order to
preserve independence and a balance of views and judgement. With
the support of the senior management, the chairman is responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings. The chief executive officer focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. The chief executive officer is in charge of
the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The chief
executive officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service contract for
a term of three years, and the appointment may be terminated by not
less than one month’s written notice. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of one year and
the appointment may be terminated by not less than three months’
written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed by
the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for reelection by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep directors informed of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

Our senior management, including chief executive officer, chief
financial officer and company secretary, attend all regular Board
meetings and where necessary, other Board and committee
meetings, to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of our Company is responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

Attendance Records of the Board meetings and committee
meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2013, eleven regular Board
meetings were held for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance records of each director at the Board meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and the annual general
meeting for the year of 2013 (the “2013 AGM”) are set out below:

EEgER(E)

ExhFE=eeshREeeRNC

HZE2013F12A31HILFE  £F€E
BIINMREHEE  BRMMERME R
ZBRIVUARE ERIER DG M
B N R

A

HE2013F12A31HILFE §8FH
FEEELHRULERFE2013FFERR
BAFEXe([2013FREFFAL )T
BREIINT -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

LERY &E¥E

Annual Extraordinary
Name of Nomination Remuneration Audit General General
Director Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
EENA EZ® REZEE FMEEE ENZEE RRBEFAE RREHAS
Kang Baohua 11/11 2/2 - - 11 11
REE
Tian Shouliang 11/11 - 2/2 - 11 11
H<F R
Guo Zhongshan 11/11 - - - 11 1/
BNl
Wang Yijun 11/11 - - - 11 11
FEE
Wang Lihui 11/11 - - - 11 11
Farp#
Zhang Lei* 6/11 - - - 0/1 11
RE
Poon Chiu Kwok 11/1 2/2 - 2/2 11 11
i
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 11/11 - 2/2 2/2 11 11
FARR
Chung Fai Pang, Benny 11/11 2/2 2/2 2/2 11 1/1
ZHhiE

* appointed on 4 June 2013

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors on 2 October
2013 without the presence of executive Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company would provide to each newly appointed director or
alternative director an induction package covering the summary
of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong
listed company, the Group’s businesses and the statutory
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company as well
as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Group also provided briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time.
Further, the Company continuously updates directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one in-
house seminar conducted covering the topics of directors’ duties,
corporate governance practices and disclosure requirements under
the Listing Rules and SFO. In addition, some of the directors also
attended external seminars and/or conferences organized during the
year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2013 are as follow:

Directors =
Executive Directors HITESE
Kang Baohua FREZE
Tian Shouliang HFR
Guo Zhongshan AL
Wang Yijun FEE
Wang Lihui FirpE
Zhang Lei * RE

Independent Non-Executive BIAEHTES
Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok i
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond LEEREY
Pang Chung Fai, Benny TR

*

appointed on 4 June 2013.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Appendix 10”) as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors’ dealing in the Company’s
securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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EZIEs
External
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seminar ShERERETE
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1 1
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full support of the chief
executive officer and the senior management for the discharge of its
responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of directors of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of each of the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 8 to the
Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available to shareholders on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Each of
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang Chung
Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of directors, and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and made
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
(including the appointment of Mr. Zhang Lei) to implement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

o made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-
third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

° revised the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee;
and

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination Committee
meetings were held during the year under review.

Further, the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) was adopted by the
Company pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 2 September
2013. The purpose of the Policy is to set out the basic principles to
be followed to ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. Selection of board candidates shall be based
on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee shall review the policy and the measurable
objectives at least annually, and as appropriate, to ensure the
continued effectiveness of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Tian Shouliang and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny. The majority of which are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on directors’ remuneration
packages and other benefits. The remuneration of all directors
is subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee
to ensure that level of their remuneration and compensation are
reasonable. Their written terms of reference are in line with the
provisions of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee would
make available its terms of reference, explaining its role and the
authority delegated to it by the Board.

AN\ A g s
ﬂ;'ﬁmﬁﬁ%

EEZREE(H)
RELZBE(#E)

o (EHRRZBENBERE X

REFEMRIREFSREES -

7]

SRIEEBEGESFE L
5o NOEEE  RAEER
%

4ZE8
—

=
)
T

=

g

o

e

&
=
=
=
A o

I $5 =

#
RN
1

Yha
N8B

S

a

SN - R ARIF2013F9 A2 HIREES
BREREMNESTSZ TLBE( ZK
K1) o ZBUREEHNHEARIRA - LARE
REZFGERE KRUKEANZ T
e EEIEEN TS KMEAES
EWNEMEFLRIFREENEEER
K o BIERIE AL — RIS Tl &
BRELE  WBREARRQA R EBEM
BEHK BEETERRMER - Eik -
BECNEEBE HEBES 1TELR
MEHLER - BRRZESEVEFRE
APKREAFEEE - N(WER) #R
EEeRBETZIAM -

¥HEES

FMZEem =R EENX D=
RRAEE(ER)  ATRAEERZTIE
T REAOREBRBYIFATES -

Yz EeaaESHMEa AN
BHRESSRHIER 2BEFHH
XFMEEeEHES  UREKRS
FHKFREEBSE -  REBELE
TyBREEERTRMEN - HMZE
SR HIR RERE REERENEE
EEMETHRES ©

Annual Report 2013 —F—=44FH

45



46

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band in the annual reports; and

o conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its performance
as it may consider appropriate.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

in the band of FrB & E

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang

Chung Fai, Benny. All of them are independent non-executive
directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee:

o make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

° reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2012 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 as well as significant issues on financial
control, internal control and risk management systems; and

° discussed the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion included the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the Company
twice without the presence of the executive directors and the senior
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company
performing the corporate governance duties as below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in Respect of
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in Respect of
Financial Statements (continued)

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of the
material controls including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff, budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company’s
assets with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The internal auditor and senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external company
secretary service provider of the Company, has been engaged by the
Company as its company secretary. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Jason Li, the vice president of the Finance
and Securities Department of the Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 29 to 34 of this
report. During the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Yu Leung Fai
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 88.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to RMB7.0 million. The external auditors of the Company
did not provide any non-audit services to the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.

o Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1101-06,11/F,
Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the extraordinary
general meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned.
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Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (including making proposals/moving a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting) (continued)

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of associations, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at General Meeting

° There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders
who wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 58 of the
articles of association of the Company for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at
such meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out in
the section headed “Procedures for shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/
moving a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting” in
this report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal
or other professional advice from the Company to its shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred
by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this subsection
headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
post through the following means:

Telephone number:  (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China
Attention: Investor Relations Department
By email: investors@yuandacn.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of the

Company’s articles of association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investors Communication Policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional investors
as important means to enhance the transparency of the Company
and collect views and feedbacks from institutional investors. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date information and updates
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are posted are available for public access. During the year under
review, the directors and senior management of the Company
participated in numerous road shows and investment conferences.
In addition, the Company also maintains regular communication with
the media through press conferences, news releases to the media
and on the Company’s website, and answering enquiries from the
media.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders face-to-
face dialogue with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (“AGM”) will be held on 28 May 2014.
The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 of the Group.

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set
out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in the Financial Statements on pages 90 to 223.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year are set
out in Note 28(c) to the Financial Statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a cash final dividend of HK$0.08 per share
for the year ended 31 December 2013, approximately HK$496.7
million in aggregate which is expected to be paid on or around 13
June 2014 (Friday), subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting to be
held on 28 May 2014 (Wednesday) (“Annual General Meeting”).

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

1. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the Company’s register of members
will be closed from 23 May 2014 (Friday) to 28 May 2014
(Wednesday) (both days inclusive), during which time no
transfer of shares will be registered. To ensure that the
Shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting, the Shareholders must deliver their duly
stamped instruments of transfer, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, to the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than
4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2014 (Thursday) for registration of the
relevant transfer.

2. For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company’s register
of members will be closed from 4 June 2014 (Wednesday) to
6 June 2014 (Friday) (both days inclusive), during which time
no transfer of shares will be registered, and the record date
is fixed on 6 June 2014 (Friday). To ensure the entitlement
to the final dividend, which will be resolved and voted at the
Annual General Meeting, the Shareholders must deliver their
duly stamped instruments of transfer, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, to the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Room 1712— 1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2014 (Tuesday) for registration of the
relevant transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements. Details of movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note
28(a) to the Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, and with the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividend may be declared and paid out of share premium account
or any other fund or account which can be authorised for this
propose. As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s distributable
reserves amounted to RMB1,454.4 million (as at 31 December
2012: RMB1,655.7 million). Details of distributable reserves of the
Company are set out in Note 28(e) to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 13 to the
Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the Group’s five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 5.3%
and 18.2% of the Group’s total purchase, respectively. The
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 2.5% and 7.0% of the Group’s total turnover,
respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors or his/her associates
and none of the Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, possessing over 5% of the interest in the share capital
of the Company) possessed any interest in the abovementioned
suppliers and customers.

DONATION
During the year, the charitable contributions and other donations

made by the Group in Hong Kong and China amounted to
approximately RMBO.1 million
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS

The directors in office during the year and as of the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Tian Shouliang (Chief Executive Officer)
Guo Zhongshan

Wang Yijun

Wang Lihui (Chief Financial Officer)

Wu Qingguo (retired on 29 May 2013)

Zhang Lei (appointed on 4 June 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the directors and senior management are
set forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and
non-executive Directors are set out under the section headed
“Appointment and Reelection of Directors” of the Corporate
Governance Report. There was no service contract entered by the
Company and any Directors to be re-elected in the coming annual
general meeting stipulating that the Company may not terminate the
appointment within one year without compensation payment (other
than the statutory compensation).

Pursuant to the terms of the Articles of Association of the Company
and the CG Code, Mr. Guo Zhongshan, Mr. Wang Yijun, Mr. Zhang
Lei and Mr. Wang Lihui will retire in the Annual General Meeting, and
being qualified, have offered to be re-elected and re-appointed at the
Annual General Meeting.

For the details of the directors’ remuneration of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2013, please refer to Note 8 to the
Financial Statement.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 29 to the Financial
Statements and in the section “Connected transactions” below,
no other significant contract with any member of the Group as the
contracting party and in which the Directors were either directly or
indirectly, materially interested subsisted at the year end or at any
time during the year and related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best Outlook
Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited (“Neo Pioneer”)
owns in aggregate approximately 53.36% of the issued share capital
in the Company as at the date of this report. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best
QOutlook and Neo Pioneer are the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also owns 100% interest in Yuanda
Aluminium Industry Engineering (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda
Singapore”) through Shenyang Yuanda Aluminum Industry Group
Ltd. (“Yuanda Group”), which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda
Singapore is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as
well as investment holding. Although the Company has established
a wholly-owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain wall
contracting projects, the ability to contract for large-scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on local contracting
experience. Given the lack of direct local contracting experience,
the Group has been cooperating with Yuanda Singapore on the
contracting of large scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore
during the last five years and will continue to supply curtain wall
products to Yuanda Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary will be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on
its own. As the Singapore market only accounted for approximately
0.3%, 1.6% and 1.2% of our revenue during the years ended 31
December 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively, we do not consider
the revenues generated from the Singapore market to be of material
importance to our operation. Please see the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the prospectus of the Company
dated 20 April 2011 (the “Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid
purpose, Yuanda Singapore has been excluded from the deed
of non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the
controlling shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The Group’s Singapore subsidiary started to undertake curtain wall
projects from Singapore market on its own since 2012. Given the
delay in the projects undertaken by Yuanda Singapore, the Group
will continue to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore
to facilitate the completion of those existing projects. Details of
which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2013.

We have received an annual written confirmation from each of the
Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the compliance by
them and their associates with the Deed of Non-competition. Each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company has also confirmed that
each of them has abided by the Deed of Non-competition during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed
of Non-competition and whether the controlling Shareholders have
abided by the non-competition undertaking under the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the
Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective associates have
any interests in any business that competed or might compete with
the business that the Group conducted during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board of Directors considers that they will contribute or
have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to
reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The maximum number
of shares that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 600,000,000 shares which is equivalent to 10% of the issued
capital of the Company defined in the Prospectus and approximately
9.66% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report). The number of options that may be granted pursuant
to the terms of the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the issued shares immediately after the completion of the Global
Offering. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may be
granted to the Participants under the Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those granted
to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or
the total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of
the Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that
the options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the
Board of Directors, and however no options shall be exercised 10
years after they have been granted. The exercise price of the option
shall be the higher of:

(@  the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c)  nominal value of the Share.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from
that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have been
granted.

DEBENTURE

At any time during the year under review, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of
any arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by
purchasing the shares or debentures of the Company or any other
companies.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interest or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which would
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which would be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, are as
follows:
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEERE

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(continued)

(i) Interest of the Company

Name of Director

EEAER

Kang Baohua
REE

Tian Shouliang
TR

Guo Zhongshan
B

Wang Yijun
I%E

Wang Lihui
FiE

Zhang Lei*
RE "

*

Nature of Interest

EEUE

Beneficial owner

EnlEEA

Interest of controlled corporation
X EE R

Beneficial owner

BEnlEEA

Beneficial owner

mEAA

Beneficial owner

BaBAA

i

/

Beneficial owner

EEEAA

L

\;

Beneficial owner
EmlEEA

EERRG - HBERORESNERR

KRB (E)

Number of Shares

ROBE®

135,806,000(1)

3,318,338,025(L)

6,357,230(L)

6,357,230(L)

6,357,230(L)

5,037,692(L)

1,000,000(1)

Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding
RERMVB DL

2.19%

53.45%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.08%

0.02%

appointed on 4 June 2013. * MR2013F6 4% -

Notes: s
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities 1) FEILIRRRZEESFNETE -
(2) 2,5679,971,923 Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and 2 E=HEEBR R AH H2579971,923

738,366,102 Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, both
companies of which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua.

B MBI BERARANFEE
738,366,102 [ fx i fn - MR A BH A
REELEZEHEE -
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(continued)

(i)

Interest in associated corporations

Name of associated
Name of Director corporation
BExpns HE=EER
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
REE ERARRNA
Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited
REE HEIERAR

U]

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

EERKRMD - HEROREFNERR
KRR (E)

(i)  RIRECAE RS

Percentage of

Number of shares Shareholding
RGEE® REBSL

1(L) 100%

(L) 100%

O FRILARRNZEFEFHLT
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company:

Interest in associated corporations

FERROERZRAR

MR2013%F 12 831 H » W8N AR 7
RIEEF K EBERGIFEI6HRATED
Zifl - TIAL(BEBERAREZET
A BBRINRSEIR B E ER RN
FRBARR ) R B RIEEH KA E RS
XV &P 2 K 3 9 EREME SR T I BB A i 2
/KB REEIEEESARAA
BT 5% sk bA_E BRS¢

Name

1

Best Outlook Limited
ERERATA]

Neo Pioneer Limited

HMAIBRRT

Long Thrive Limited @
REBARAAR

Standard Chartered PLC
Standard Chartered PLC

Standard Chartered Holdings Limited
BIT&EBR AR

Standard Chartered Bank
BITIRIT

SCMB Overseas Limited
SCMB Overseas Limited

Standard Chartered Holdings
(International) B.V.

Standard Chartered Holdings
(International) B.V.

Standard Chartered MB Holdings B.V.
Standard Chartered MB Holdings B.V.
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Capacity
3]

Beneficial owner

ESBAA

Beneficial owner
EaEEA

Beneficial owner

ESBAA

Interest of controlled corporation
R EENER

Interest of controlled corporation
R EENER

Interest of controlled corporation
REEEMER

Interest of controlled corporation
REEBEMER

Interest of controlled corporation

R EE RS

Interest of controlled corporation
R EENER

NN/ =Y
Percentage of
Number of Shares Shareholding
Reo#E RERDL
2,579,971,923(L) 41.55%
738,366,102(L) 11.89%
337,568,938(L) 5.44%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%



Report of the Board of Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS (continued)

Interest in associated corporations (continued)

Name Capacity

£ L7}

Standard Chartered Asia Limited Interest of controlled corporation
BT (M) BRAR] REFBEMER

Standard Chartered Private Equity Limited  Interest of controlled corporation
B ERREERAA REEENER

Standard Chartered Private Equity Beneficial owner

(Mauritius) IIl Limited
Standard Chartered Private Equity
(Mauritius) Il Limited

e

FEAAA

\

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

(2)  As at the date of this report, Long Thrive Limited is owned as to
16.95% by Tian Shouliang, 16.95% by Guo Zhongshan, 16.95%

by Wang Yijun, 9.10% by Wang Lihui and 40.05% by 3 employees
of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

ESERE

TERROEZRAR(E)

RARRH S (&)

Percentage of

Number of Shares Shareholding
ReH#E RERD
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%
374,885,803(L) 6.04%

(1) FEILRENZEFHFDITR -

@ AMEHEHH ERBRAAIHMBS
R-s3BIL - TEE  TALER3F
NEIEE D RIHEE 16.95% * 16.95%
16.95% ~ 9.10% % 40.05% °

BB A F

AAFN2013F12 A1 BT EHER
BEIEENIE e LA

EEEX
REEFERN - B L FETMNE

FAARRIZHMR T MEALD XHEE
RATHEEHK)
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions of the Company for the year

ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements

(1)

Supply and installation of the external facade by Shenyang
Yuanda

On 12 March 20183, Shenyang Yuanda, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shenyang Brilliant Elevator
Co., Ltd. (BEFEEMEE AR5 B R A 7])(“Briliant Elevator”)
entered into a first agreement (the “First Agreement”) and a
second agreement (the “Second Agreement”), pursuant to
which Shenyang Yuanda agreed to supply and install the
external facade of (a) D4 and E4 Factory Workshops of Brilliant
Elevator for an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB9.88 million; and (b) D5 Factory Workshop of Birilliant
Elevators for an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB7.8 million, respectively.

On 12 March 20183, Shenyang Yuanda and Shenyang
Yuanda Mechanical & Electrical Equipment Co., Ltd. (&%

R AME R FE AR A F])(“Yuanda Mechanical & Electrical”)
entered into an agreement (the “Third Agreement”), pursuant

to which Shenyang Yuanda agreed to supply and install the
external facade of M6 Factory Workshop of Yuanda Electrical
Equipment for an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB16.68 million.

The work under the First Agreement, the Second Agreement
and the Third Agreement (the “New Agreements”) was in the
ordinary course of business of the Group.

As at the date of the New Agreements, each of Brilliant
Elevator and Yuanda Electrical Equipment was ultimately
controlled by Mr. Kang Baohua, an executive Director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
each of Brilliant Elevator and Yuanda Electrical Equipment
was an associate of a connected person of the Company
and the transactions under the New Agreements constituted
connected transactions of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules. Details of the above transactions are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the
Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(2) Design, supply, manufacture and installation of the
aluminium alloy windows and doors of certain buildings
within Yuanda Garden by Shenyang Yuanda

On 24 June 2013, Shenyang Yuanda and Shenyang Yuanda
Property Development Co., Ltd. (BfFE XNEHEMNZES
FR A F])(“Yuanda Property Development”) entered into an
agreement (the “Original Agreement”) pursuant to which
Shenyang Yuanda agreed to design, supply, manufacture
and install the aluminium alloy windows and doors of certain
buildings within the Yuanda Garden (i& KJEE), a property
project developed by Yuanda Property Development, for an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB10.8 million.

The work carried out under the Original Agreement was in the
ordinary course of business of the Group.

As at the date of the Original Agreement, Yuanda Property
Development was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenyang
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Group Ltd. (Bf5E AR EE
ABR/AF])(“Yuanda Group”), which was in turn beneficially
owned by Mr. Kang Baohua, an executive Director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, Yuanda
Property Development was an associate of a connected
person of the Company and the transaction contemplated
under the Original Agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules. Details of the above transactions are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions which are subject to the Reporting,

Announcement and Independent Shareholders’ Approval

()

Supply of machinery, equipment and labour for the
installation of the aluminium alloy windows and doors to 23
buildings within Yuanda Garden by Shenyang Yuanda

On 10 September 2013, Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
Property Development entered into a supplemental agreement
to the Original Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda agreed to carry out
additional work to the aluminium alloy windows and doors of
23 buildings within the Yuanda Garden. Under the Original
Agreement, Shenyang Yuanda would design, supply,
manufacture and install aluminium alloy windows and doors
to the buildings in Yuanda Garden. Civil constructions of the
Yuanda Garden have been completed but certain window
and door openings built by the civil contractor deviated from
the construction plans and additional work would need to be
carried out by Shenyang Yuanda before the windows and
doors could be installed. The Supplemental Agreement was
entered into in relation to the additional work to be done.

The consideration for the work under the Supplemental
Agreement was approximately RMB15.7 million, based on a
contract installation area of 18,540 square meters and was
subject to adjustment in accordance with the actual area built.
The adjustment was calculated by multiplying the difference
between the contract installation area and the actual area built
by the unit installation cost.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 3 October 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions which are subject to the Reporting,

Announcement and Independent Shareholders’ Approval

(continued)

&

&)

Supply of machinery, equipment and labour for the
installation of the aluminum alloy windows and doors of to 19
buildings within Yuanda Jiayuan by Shenyang Yuanda

On 10 September 2013, Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
Property Development entered into an agreement (“Yuanda
Jiayuan Agreement”) pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda
agreed to supply the machinery, equipment and labour for
the installation of the aluminum alloy windows and doors
to 19 buildings at Yuanda Jiayuan (2 X&), a property
project developed by Yuanda Property Development, at the
consideration of approximately RMB10.8 million, based on a
contract installation area of 11,880 square meters and was
subject to adjustment in accordance with the actual area built.
The adjustment was calculated by multiplying the difference
between the contract installation area and the actual area built
by the unit installation cost.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 3 October 2013.

Construction design of the curtain walls for Yuanda Xintiandi
Commercial Centre and the commercial areas of Yuanda
Jiayuan for Yuanda Property Development by Shenyang
Yuanda

On 10 September 2013, Shenyang Yuanda entered into a
first design agreement (the “First Design Agreement”) and a
second design agreement (the “Second Design Agreement”)
(collectively, the “Design Agreements’) with Yuanda Property
Development, pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda agreed
to design and provide the schematic design plan and the
detailed construction drawings of the curtain walls for (a)
Yuanda Xintiandi Commercial Centre (& A ¥ K i i 2
F.0y), a property project developed by Yuanda Property
Development, at the consideration of RMB20.0 million; and (b)
the commercial areas of Yuanda Jiayuan at the consideration
of RMB20.0 million, respectively.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 3 October 2013.
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EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions which are subject to the Reporting,

Announcement and Independent Shareholders’ Approval

(continued)

()

()

Feasibility study and design services on the development of
the construction materials industrial park of Yuanda Group in
Africa by Shenyuang Yuanda

On 10 September 20183, Shenyang Yuanda entered into an
agreement (“Design and Consulting Services Agreement”) with
Yuanda Group pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda agreed
to assist Yuanda Group to conduct the feasibility study on
the development of a construction materials industrial park
in Africa and provide construction and engineering design
services for the proposed development at the consideration
of RMB53.0 million. Such consideration could be divided into
RMB8.0 million for the preparation of the feasibility study and
RMB45.0 million for the provision of the design services.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 3 October 2013.

Renovation of the outer walls of the production facilities

On 10 September 2013, Shenyang Yuanda entered into
the agreement (the “First Construction Agreement”) with
Shenyang Yuanda Technology Electrical Co., Ltd. (&%
IR ARHYE T AR A A )(*Yuanda Technology Electrical”),
pursuant to which Shenyang Yuanda agreed to renovate the
outer wall of the production facilities of Yuanda Technology
Electrical for the consideration of RMB55.8 million.

On 10 September 2013, Shenyang Yuanda entered into
the agreement (the “Second Construction Agreement”) with
Yuanda Electrical Equipment, pursuant to which Shenyang
Yuanda agreed to renovate the outer wall of the production
facilities of Yuanda Electrical Equipment for the consideration
of RMB75.2 million.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions which are subject to the Reporting,
Announcement and Independent Shareholders’ Approval
(continued)

(5) Renovation of the outer walls of the production facilities
(continued)

As each of Yuanda Technology Electrical and Yuanda
Electrical Equipment was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Yuanda Group and therefore a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 3 October 2013.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the
Reporting and Announcement Requirements

(1) Construction, decoration and renovation services from
Puhua construction

Prior to January 2013, there were no historical transactions
between the Group and Shenyang Yuanda Puhua
Construction and Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. (&5 & K
T EFAEMTIZAMR A7) (“Puhua Construction”). On 22
July 2013, Shenyang Yuanda entered into an Agreement (the
“Service Agreement”) with Puhua Construction, pursuant to
which Puhua Construction agreed to provide the construction,
decoration and renovation services to Shenyang Yuanda and/
or its associates for a term of three years ending 31 December
2015 subject to the annual caps not exceeding RMB10.0
million, RMB10.0 million and RMB10.0 million, respectively.
The transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2013
was approximately RMB2.1 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

(1)

Construction, decoration and renovation services from
Puhua construction (continued)

The annual caps under the Service Agreement were
determined with reference to the prevailing market rates for
the provision of services of a similar nature and based on the
contract amount of the confirmed construction projects and
the planned construction projects of the Group.

As at the date of the Service Agreement, Shenyang Yuanda
was principally engaged in the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain wall systems
and its main production facility was located in Shenyang,
the PRC. Owing to the development of Shenyang Yuanda,
the facility of Shenyang Yuanda required constant building
maintenance and upgrading work. As at the date of the Service
Agreement, Puhua Construction was principally engaged in
the construction, decoration and renovation business.

As at the date of the Service Agreement, Puhua Construction
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was
in turn beneficially owned by Mr. Kang Baohua, an executive
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, Puhua Construction was an associate of a
connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Service Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Group under the
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Service Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 July 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

@

Purchase of Raw Materials from Shenyang Yuancheng

Prior to the Listing of the Shares of the Company on 17 May
2011 (the “Listing Date”), the Group purchased glass from
Shenyang Yuancheng Insulating Glass Co., Ltd. (&5 =2
PRI AR A A]) (“Shenyang Yuancheng”), a company
which was owned as to 80% by Ms. Kang Fengxian (EZ/Bl
fill) and as to 20% by her husband, Zhang Dianhai (38R
8). As Ms. Kang Fengxian is the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua,
the Company’s chairman and controlling shareholder,
transactions between Shenyang Yuancheng and the Group
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The glass supplied by
Shenyang Yuancheng are used primarily for the construction
of the Group’s manufacturing facilities and are not used in the
Group’s projects.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement with Shenyang Yuancheng pursuant
to which we agreed to purchase glass from Shenyang
Yuancheng for a term of three years subject to an annual
cap not exceeding RMB8.0 million, RMB4.5 million and
RMB4.1 million for the three years ending 31 December 2013,
respectively. The transaction amount for the year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately RMBO.6 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The annual caps of the purchases of glass from Shenyang
Yuancheng were calculated based on the project demand
of glass that the Group would purchase from Shenyang
Yuancheng with reference to the market prices for glass of
similar specifications.

Since the construction of the Group’s manufacturing facilities
was completed, the Group will no longer purchase glass from
Shenyang Yuancheng.

ESERE

REXRS(E)

N
A

@

HRB IR ENHRTE - HEAETH
BRAMRENRBRER S (E)

&G R IR IR T

AAE K201 E5 4178 K &
M EmBEBDA - AEBBRS
ERPEFEBERAAESGERE
BDREEE  Z2FHEBILKZ
T REXRERREG D BI#EE 80% &
20% > MREBILZ AR RE E
FEFITIRAR R R E E S £ IR EE
B - RIE ETWRAIE 14AE &
(BRIEEANEE 2 HHRZSHEHRAR
SENFBEAER S - FEHREMH
FEREBEEZRRERASEMNAE
B - MIIEARAEEMNIER -

H2011F4 8128 » ARQ G EERS
RIBFI S BB E - Bt - B
EEREGRERERE - BE=
F 0 HEE2013F12A31HIE=1&
FEMNFELRAFTFBBAR
%8O0BEEIL ARK4EETLR
AR®41BETT - #E2013F 12
AB1BLEFE  RZEEHAEAR
¥®06BEBIT  WAHBEZE2013
F12H3NBIEFENFELR -

B R R BB L LR T
B B R T2 B I e TE
BB @2EBLRROIIE
B E S -

HREELEERERETREEE S
T SESITBRESEREBEER
I o

Annual Report 2013 —F—=44FH

73



74

Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

E)

Supply of Curtain Wall Products to Yuanda Singapore

Prior to the Listing Date, Yuanda Singapore contracted for
curtain wall projects in Singapore for which the Group supplied
the curtain wall products. As Yuanda Singapore was a wholly
owned subsidiary of Yuanda Group, which was owned by
Mr. Kang Baohua, the Company’s chairman and controlling
shareholder, the supply of such curtain wall products by the
Group to Yuanda Singapore constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 12 April 2011, the Group entered into a master supply
agreement with Yuanda Singapore (“Yuanda Singapore
Supply Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed
to supply curtain wall products to Yuanda Singapore for a
term of three years. On 15 November 2012, we entered into
a supplemental agreement to the Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement with Yuanda Singapore (“Yuanda Singapore
Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which the annual cap
for each of the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013
has been increased to RMB208.0 million and RMB156.0
million, respectively. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 November 2012 for further details. The
transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB148.2 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2013.

On 31 December 2013, the Company and Yuanda Singapore
entered into an agreement (the “New Yuanda Singapore
Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed
to supply curtain wall products to Yunada Singapore for a
term of three years ending 31 December 2016, subject to
the annual cap not exceeding RMB80.0 million, RMB40.0
million and RMB40.0 million, respectively. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2013 for
further details.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

E)

(4)

Supply of Curtain Wall Products to Yuanda Singapore
(continued)

The supply of curtain wall products under the Yuanda
Singapore Supply Agreement, Yuanda Singapore
Supplemental Agreement and New Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement were being provided based on prevailing market
prices.

As at the date of the New Yuanda Singapore Supply
Agreement, the Group was principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of curtain walls and the supply of
curtain wall products under the New Yuanda Singapore
Supply Agreement to Yuanda Singapore to facilitate it to
complete its unfinished projects was in the usual and ordinary
course of business of the Company. As the supply of curtain
wall products to Yuanda Singapore was in accordance with
the prevailing market prices of the curtain wall products of
the Group, the Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) were of the view that the transactions
under the New Yuanda Singapore Supply Agreement were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole. Details of the New Yuanda
Singapore Supply Agreement are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 December 2013.

Purchase of Raw Materials from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master
purchase agreement with Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
Commerce Co., Ltd. (BB MM ERE®EZE BR 2 7))
(“Shenyang Xinwan Fulong”), pursuant to which we agreed
to purchase building materials and hardware tools from
Shenyang Xinwan Fulong for a term of three years ending
31 December 2013, subject to an annual cap not exceeding
RMB17.0 million, RMB18.5 million and RMB20.0 million
respectively. The transaction amount for the year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately RMB7.5 million, which did
not exceed the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

)

Purchase of Raw Materials from Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
(continued)

On 31 December 2013, the Company and Shenyang Xinwan
Fulong entered into the agreement (“Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed
to purchase building materials and hardware tools from
Shenyang Xinwan Fulong for a term of three years ending 31
December 2016, subject to the annual cap not exceeding
RMB20.0 million, RMB20.0 million and RMB20.0 million,
respectively.

As at the date of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement, the Group was principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of curtain walls. The Group would
need to purchase building materials and hardware tools for
both the manufacturing of the Group’s products and for
the installation and maintenance work. As the purchases of
building materials and hardware tools covered a large variety
of products of various quantity, it would be time consuming
to source such products directly from the large number of
suppliers. The purchase of such products from Shenyang
Xinwan Fulong would reduce the administrative burden of the
Group and improve the operation efficiency of the Group.

As at the date of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong Purchase
Agreement, Shenyang Xinwan Fulong was wholly-owned by
Ms. Kang Fengxian (5Bl ), the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua,
the chairman and controlling shareholder of the Company
and therefore was a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the Shenyang
Xinwan Fulong Purchase Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Group under chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the Shenyang Xinwan Fulong
Purchase Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2013.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirement but are Subject to the

Reporting and Announcement Requirements (continued)

()

Glass Processing and Assembly Services provided by
Shanghai Jianxing

Prior to the Listing Date, Shanghai Jianxing Insulating Glass
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (/B2 FR I HEEEFRQR])
(“Shanghai Jianxing”) provided glass processing and assembly
services to the Group. Shanghai Jianxing was owned as to
30% by Ms. Kang Fengxian (FZ[Elfll) and as to 70% by her
husband, Zhang Dianhai (5&/#8%). As Ms. Kang Fengxian is
the sister of Mr. Kang Baohua, our chairman and controlling
Shareholder, transactions between Shanghai Jianxing and the
Group constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Group under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 12 April 2011, the Company entered into a master services
agreement with Shanghai Jianxing pursuant to which we
agreed to procure glass processing and assembly services
from Shanghai Jianxing for a term of three years ending 31
December 2013, subject to an annual cap not exceeding
RMB7.0 million, RMB8.5 million and RMB10.0 million,
respectively. The transaction amount for the year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately RMB3.4 million which did
not exceed the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The annual caps of the glass processing and assembly
services were based on the expected growth in demand for
insular glass in the market and our projected demand for such
services with reference to the market prices for the provision of
services of a similar nature.

The Group will not procure glass processing and assembly
services from Shanghai Jianxing in the future.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements

prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the

continuing connected transactions above of the Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that those
transactions were entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. under normal commercial terms, or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the agreements related to the above
continuing connected transactions, the terms of which are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
confirmed to the Board that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;
2. arein accordance with the pricing policy of the Group;

3. have been entered into under the terms of the related
agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the relevant cap allowed by the Stock
Exchange in the previous announcements.

Pursuant to rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence
issued by all the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board of
Directors considered all the independent non-executive Directors
independent.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLICOFFERING

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering through
which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares were offered at a price
of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised by the Company were
approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s Prospectus dated 20 April 2011 and
supplementary Prospectus dated 5 May 2011, the Company
intended to use the proceeds for expansion of its production
capacity, repayment of its existing debts, investment in research
and development, expansion of its sales and marketing network. As
at 31 December 2013, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$1,772 million of proceeds from the global offering (of which
expansion of production capacity: HK$329 million; repayment of
bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan of Standard Chartered
Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research and development:
HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and marketing
network: HK$220 million) was utilized. The remaining proceeds of
HK$631 million will be used as stated in the Prospectus and the
supplementary Prospectus of the Company.

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of our operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings
Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L. (*Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar
respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign
companies to own a majority interest in a local operating company.
We had no operation in Qatar prior to the establishment of Yuanda
Qatar and prior to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait, we supplied
products to a local company for projects it undertook in Kuwait.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable us to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait and capture
its entire economic interest from its operations, we entered into an
agreement on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait Incorporation Agreement”)
with Mr. Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the “Kuwait Local Partner”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Kuwait Local Partner
agreed to be the facilitator of the Group in relation to the conduct
of our business in Kuwait. Pursuant to the Kuwait Incorporation
Agreement, the Kuwait Local Partner has declared that:

all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to get
any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to the profit of
Yuanda Kuwait;

he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda
Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination
with the local government authorities;

all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda;

he would not be held liable for any losses; and

the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing
and will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless
and until terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90
days in advance.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by our legal advisors as to
Kuwait law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is legal, valid and
binding to its parties and constitutes legally binding and enforceable
obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under Kuwait law and
is in compliance with the laws and regulations of Kuwait. Based on
the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting standards,
the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait into its consolidated financial
statements as a wholly owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
and the annual report of the Company in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012, notwithstanding that we consider that we are
able to effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda
Kuwait under the present arrangement, we have undertaken that
in order to protect the interests of the Company, we will introduce
further measures, including using our best efforts to amend the
terms of the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, by entering into
supplemental agreements that would include, among others,
provisions that the Kuwait Local Partner will not transfer any of its
shares in Yuanda Kuwait without our prior written consent, it will
vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in accordance with our
instruction, and if there shall be any change to the Kuwait laws or
regulations and/or policies such that a foreign entity becomes legally
entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda Kuwait, it will promptly
transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda Kuwait to the extent permitted
by the then applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to
enable us to become the majority shareholder in Yuanda Kuwait.

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will
not be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as
a result of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to
implement these additional measures. However, in order to better
protect our interests, we will search for a replacement for our existing
local partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement
with us that will contain the terms of the above mentioned additional
measures which are in line with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

As of the date of this annual report, we are still in negotiation with the
Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of the above additional
measures and we will disclose any measures implemented and/or
replacement of our existing local partner in our future annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority interest
in the local operating company. In order to enable us to govern and
control the financial and operation of Yuanda Qatar and capture its
entire economic interest from its operations, we have entered into
the memorandum of association of Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January
2008 (the “Qatar Articles”) with Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the
“Qatar Local Partner”), an independent third party, and an agreement
dated 16 September 2007 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”)
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading &
Contracting, a company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the
authorized signatory with respect to the governing of the operation
of Yuanda Qatar.

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51%
by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda.
Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

° representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing the company during the entire term of its existence;

o profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to
Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner;
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

° the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to
conduct business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar
Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000
plus a scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5%
of the contract value of projects Yuanda Qatar won with the
assistance of the Qatar Local Partner;

o the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to offset
and settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar Local
Partner;

° save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the
local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not
involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda.

As advised by our legal advisors as to Qatar law, subject to the Qatar
Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is legal, valid, binding
and enforceable under Qatar law, and as the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement and the Qatar Articles are related to the same subject
matter, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is considered to be an
explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar law. Our legal advisors
as to Qatar law has further advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly
binding and legally enforceable document and constitutes legal,
valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with
respect to the governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar and the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against the Qatar
Local Partner.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

We entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to enable us
to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the economic
interest from its operations, and these are supported by the following
terms in the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to
similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as
board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its existence
and they may not be removed without the approval from
Shenyang Yuanda;

° resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be
valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding
75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;

° Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives for the period of its existence.
Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives shall have full and
absolute authority and exclusive right to manage and operate
the business of Yuanda Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable
and the Qatar Local Partner may not intervene in managing
the company or bind or commit Yuanda Qatar in any way
whatsoever except with prior written consent from Shenyang
Yuanda;

° Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar
will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as to
5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the dividends declared by
Shenyang Yuanda may be used to offset and settle any service
fees due or payable under the management of Shenyang
Yuanda under the Qatar Incorporation Agreement.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its
consolidated financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011
and the annual report of the Company in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012, notwithstanding that we consider that we are
able to effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Qatar
under the present arrangement, we have undertaken that in order
to protect the interests of the Company, we will introduce further
measures, including using our best efforts to amend the terms of
the Qatar Incorporation Agreement, by entering into supplemental
agreements that would include, among others, provisions that the
Qatar Local Partner will not transfer any of its shares in Yuanda Qatar
without our prior written consent, it will vote for any resolutions of
Yuanda Qatar in accordance with our instruction, and if there shall be
any change to the Qatar laws or regulations and/or policies such that
a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest
in Yuanda Qatar, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in
Yuanda Qatar to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or
regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable us to become the majority
shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will not
be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as a result
of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to implement
these additional measures. However, in order to better protect our
interests, we will search for a replacement for our existing local partner
who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement with us that will
contain the terms of the abovementioned additional measures which
are in line with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, we are still in negotiation with the
Qatar Local Partner on the implementation of the above additional
measures and we will disclose any measures implemented and/or
replacement of our existing local partner in our future annual reports.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REPURCHASE OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the listed
securities of the Company, except that the trustee of the share award
scheme adopted by the Board on 10 April 2013, pursuant to the
terms of the rules and trust deed of such scheme, purchased on the
Stock Exchange a total of 48,020,000 shares of the Company. In
addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in the
past five years is set out on page 224 of this report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman Islands,
stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according to the
respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the Company
when new shares are issued by the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of our Directors as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained adequate public float under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2013. The Company will submit a
resolution in the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint KPMG as the
Auditor of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Kang Baohua
Chairman

28 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 223, which comprise
the consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

affiEm%
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2013
(AAREE(TARY]) REA) BZ2013F12A31BILEFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARET T ARETIT
Turnover ] 4 10,872,404 11,844,578
Cost of sales SHES AR (9,512,152) (9,886,757)
Gross profit EF 4(b) 1,360,252 1,957,821
Other revenue Hapdlg A 5 36,615 16,031
Other net income EfEUA 5 8,648 5,576
Selling expenses HEER (176,781) (256,445)
Administrative expenses THREX (1,036,034) (1,161,984)
Profit from operations FEE = el 192,700 560,999
Finance costs BhE R AN 6(a) (160,019) (131,543)
Profit before taxation i A0 F 5 6 32,681 429,456
Income tax PSR 7 (5,133) (51,546)
Profit for the year FRRE 27,548 377,910
Attributable to: BUR ARG :
Equity shareholders of the Company 282 &) & 104,367 438,491
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS (76,819) (60,581)
Profit for the year FERFE 27,548 377,910
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREN(ARESD)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 1.68 7.06

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial FO0H £F 2238 2 A FEHBHmE 2
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of —Zn - ENARAIREREGEFRTEZ
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note % S FEIEE T 5E 28(0) ©

28(0).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EftREERAEMEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2013
(AARKEREN) HZE2013F12A31ALFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®T ARET T
Profit for the year FERFE 27,548 377,910
Other comprehensive income FREMEEmKE
for the year (after tax and (BRBRREHIHE
reclassification adjustments) FRE) 11
ltems that may be reclassified Higr&sHoEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmrIEE ¢
- Exchange differences on translation - #8527 EHH)
into presentation currency PE R Z=RE 72,357 (1,883)
— Cash flow hedge: -BeREEF
net movement in the hedging RS E)FE
reserve 27,473 1,040
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year 99,830 (843)
Total comprehensive income FRAZHERRBEE
for the year 127,378 377,067
Attributable to: IS AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company — ZANA &A% B 206,573 439,302
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR 2 (79,195) (62,235)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENEETE
for the year 127,378 377,067

QB EF2238 Z AN ENBERE 2

statements. —&5 ©

H

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB R R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2013

(MARBABN) R2013F12A31H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories

Gross amount due from customers

for contract work
Trade and bills receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables

Gross amount due to customers

for contract work
Receipts in advance
Accrued expenses and
other payables
Bank loans
Income tax payable
Provision for warranties

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial

statements.
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REAE
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TalRIAE
FERT R R ELAR A 3R

RITER
eI PSR
RIEBM

REBEEFE

REERRBAE

Note
Kzt

13
14
26(c)

16

17
18

19(a)
20(a)

21

17
22

23(a)

24(a)

26(a)
27

FO9EZE

—#5 -

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
829,175 842,930
597,338 602,914
237,903 214,930
1,664,416 1,660,774
417,325 485,297
5,152,193 4,954,134
2,843,223 2,494,479
583,567 493,134
3,273,800 2,132,343
12,270,108 10,559,387
4,275,207 3,896,868
1,310,610 1,090,045
202,783 136,536
626,220 641,669
2,933,153 1,801,990
190,963 190,373
53,977 36,856
9,592,913 7,794,337
2,677,195 2,765,050
4,341,611 4,425,824
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
&M AR R R ()

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2013
(AARBRER) R2013F12A31H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Bank loans BITEN 24(b) 130,000 150,000
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIBEE 26(c) 1,768 1,461
Provision for warranties RIS 27 103,107 79,151
234,875 230,612
NET ASSETS BEE 4,106,736 4,195,212
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 28
Share capital B&ZR 519,723 519,723
Reserves HiE 3,781,681 3,790,962
Total equity attributable to equity  Zx 7\ TR R AE(L A fE 2%
shareholders of the Company 4,301,404 4,310,685
Non-controlling interests EE IR (194,668) (115,479)
TOTAL EQUITY R 4,106,736 4,195,212

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 EEEH201453 A28 B b/ IR -
March 2014.

Kang Baohua Tian Shouliang
REE HTR
Director (Chairman) Director
EE(FE) EE

QB EF2238 Z AN ENERE 2

statements. — =45 o

H

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2013
(AARBRBEM) M2013F12A318

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other payables
Bank loan

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RITB AR ZIRE
REBEE

TEA RN EL A UK
RAekReEEY
RBRE

FERTRAST R LA AR

RITER

RBEEFE
BEE

BAXK G
L@

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

March 2014.

Kang Baohua

FEEE

Director (Chairman)

EFE(TE)

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial

statements.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B B 24 7]

Note
Kzt

15

28

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
12,089 1
2,069,125 2,084,585
22,002 50,546
2,091,127 2,135,131
195,515 138
90,911 -
286,426 138
1,804,701 2,134,993
1,816,790 2,134,994
519,723 519,723
1,297,067 1,615,271
1,816,790 2,134,994

BEEN2014F3 A28 B #H /£ R IEHER A o

Tian Shouliang
HFR
Director

EBEF

FOEEF223H 2 ANENBRE Z

37
=]

B

e



Balance at 1 January 2012

Changes in equity for 2012:

Profi/{loss) for the year
Qther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year (Note 26(b))

Effect on equity arising from the
acquisition of a business under
common control

Appropriation to reserves

Balance at 31 December 2012

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE2013F 12 A3 BIEFE

RO12E1B1AZER
N12E7BREY
EnilE/ (BE)
Efp2AkE

NG EE

RE-FEREZRR
(it 2l
RS RREH 2

/
HEnsvE

B3

AER

R012F 12831 Az

Shere  Share
captal  premium

B BiEE

Attrioutable o equtty shareholders of the Company

Other
Teseve

EbEE

(Expressed in RMB)

(AAREBER)

RRARREL,

PRC

statutory

reseves  Exchange  Hedging
MEEE  reseve  resene
i EXEE UARRE

RMBOOD RMBOO0 RMBO0D  RMBO0D
NERTT ARRTR ARRTT ARRTR

RVBO0O  RMBO0D
ARRTT ARBFT

Retained
profits Total
REFE

RMB'OOO  RMB'000

Non-

controling
interests Total
AR ey
s s
RMB'000  RMB000

ARETTL ARBTT ARMTRL ARETT

Note Note Note Note Note Note
280 2800 28w 280  28)v) 28l
W B B hE Bt B
20 240 20 2800 2900 280

519723 1857066 190263 290,708 (19265 4108 1,230,683 4073285  (53,238) 4,020,047

- - - - - - 438491 438491 (60581) 377,910

- - - - (229 1,040 - 811 (1,694) (843)

- - - - (229 1040 438491 439302 (62235 377,067

- (201331) - - - - - (201,337) - (20133)

- - (665) - - - - (65) - (565)

- - - 5367 - - (367 - - -

- (201387 (565 5367 - - (b367) (201902 - (201902

510723 1,695,728 189698 296075  (194%4) 5148 1,663807 4310685 (115473 4195212

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial

statements.

FI9BE EF 2238 2 M AL EUHRRZ
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
SR BB R (E)

(Expressed in RMB)

(AARBEEN) HE2013F12A318LFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANARREL
Shares held
under share
award PRC Non-
scheme statutory controlling
Share  Share RERH Capital  Other reserves Exchange Hedging Retained interests ~ Total
capital premium  #EiE reseve reseve HEXE reseve reseve profits  Totl  FER  equiy
Ba RGEE FERf EARE RHEE  BE EXRE WNEE RENE &% 0 B8 4R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEET7 ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Note ~ Note  Note  Note  Note  Note  Note  Note
280) 280 28 2l 28)) 28l 28] 28{ci)
Kt kE kg KE KR KR KR K
26 200) 20 20 26 26y 26 20
Balance at 1 January 2013 RO13E1 B 1A ZES 519,723 1,695,128 - - 160698 296075 (19494 5148 1,663,807 4,310,685 (115473) 4,195,212
Changes i equity for 2013: NIF2RRET:
Profoss)for the year EnilE/(68) - - - - - - - - 104367 104367 (16819 21548
Other comprefensive incore E2Elks - - - - - - 4T 418 - 102206 (2376) 99,830
Total comprefiensive income: SEhGEE - - - - - - AT 4T3 104367 206573 (19,195 121,378
Dividends approved in espect FL-EENEZRE
of the previous year (2900
(ot 280 - ooy - - - - - - BT I . )
Shares purchased under the share — RER( 28 2EE
award scheme (Note 25 ) - - (26,568) - - - - - - (26,568) - (26,569)
Shassgrantedinderheshae EROEEEAL
award scheme (Note 25) ki) - - - 12088 - - - - - 12088 - 12,088
Shres vested under the share RERNREHZEE
v scheme (Vofe 25 2R H225) - - 1125 (1208 - - - - m - - -
Appropriaion foresenves ARERE - - - - - 68 - - (68 - - -
- (201374 (15,:359) - - 678 - - (5855 (2158%4) - (215854)
Balance at 31 December 2013~ R2013E12A31 Azs 519728 149435 (15,359 - 160698 302803 55280 32621 1,762,319 4301404 (194,668) 4,106,736
The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial F OB EF 228 H 2 Wik Bt FM =R
statements. Z—EB7 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEESHRER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2013
(AARKEREN) HZE2013F12A31ALFE

2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARBT T ARETT
Operating activities RETEE
Profit before taxation FEIAE 32,681 429,456
Adjustments for: FEIER
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE 6(c) 68,042 67,363
Interest income FBWA 6(a) (12,263) (11,983)
Interest expenses and other FIERAZ REMEEKA
borrowing costs 6(a) 190,299 150,624
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEKRE
plant and equipment Wz 5 (1) (689)
Equity-settled share-based PARR A £ B LARR AR R R 2
payment expenses 6(b) 12,088
Changes in working capital: ER ST
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /(32) 67,972 (28,099)
Increase in gross amount due from EWEEA R I @
customers for contract work (198,059) (1,110,510)
Increase in trade and bills receivables E FEWE R FEWE B (338,959) (682,231)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, B EREREM R
prepayments and other receivables (2w (53,319) 15,815
Increase in trade and bills payables E S EMNTRERZEEM 473,953 1,225,735
Increase in gross amount due EREPERIIZEEEEM
to customers for contract work 220,565 212,799
Increase in receipts in advance TAU R IEHE 66,247 36,802
Increase in accrued expenses JiE =15 = K Lt A~ R 0
and other payables 15,816 17,150
Increase in provision for warranties (RIE B 27 41,077 8,949
Cash generated from operations REMBHRS 586,139 331,285
Income tax paid BTFEH 26(a) (36,829) (129,710)
Net cash generated from RETBHREREFE
operating activities 549,310 201,575

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial FO9B EF223E v i Al EFERE 2
statements. —Ep5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

EHRERER ()

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2013
(AARBREBR) BE2013512A31BIEFE

2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARBT R AREFITL
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of property, BEVE BER
plant and equipment BGENES (80,036) (106,609)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE MEHE
plant and equipment ZFTS5E 619 7,912
Payments for land use right premiums THfE AR ES N (7,597) -
Payment for the acquisition of a WS L R i Y
business under common control ES-INE - (23,877)
Decrease in time deposits with original REEB A=A LM
maturity over three months EHETRD = 200,132
Interest received BUFI S 12,347 12,901
Net cash (used in)/generated B&EE (FTH) /Fig
from investing activities BT (74,667) 90,463
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank and other loans BRI R EMER
PiREE N 3,578,153 2,324,420
Repayment of bank and other loans BEFITRAMBER (2,466,990 (1,879,892)
Payments for purchase of shares under RIER DR 2BE
share award scheme Bt 2 (3K 25 (26,568) -
Net decrease/(increase) in advances FERARBERRERE &
granted to the controlling equity HEB AR BTF
shareholder of the Company and md/ ()
his affiliates 29(a) 1,981 (485)
Dividends paid to the equity BERARRRREREARS
shareholders of the Company (201,374) (201,337)
Other finance costs paid HpBARERA (185,346) (149,875)
Net cash generated from BMETHELHSFE
financing activities 699,856 92,831
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 K H&Z BT 1,174,499 384,869
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R181B0NBRERBRLZEY  200) 2,132,343 1,744,338
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  $M&E RS EHE (33,042) 3,136
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12831 AEERELZEY 20a) 3,273,800 2,132,343

The notes on pages 99 to 223 form part of these financial FO9H EF 2238 2 At FEH MK 2
statements. — &5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). The
principal activities of the Group are the design, procurement,
production, sale and installation of curtain wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

B RS AR BT RE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

RAEHR

BAPBEZERERAB([AAR DR
201052 H26 A RIBEH S FH S A A
SR 22F (1961 £ =AM - 4R
G RIER]) EREHSEMK L A
HNEBRAR o AARIRRMHIR2011F
S5A17TBEERBERZBRAR
(TB AT ) £ o AR BINEHI 7
HEBEARRIREWE R R (578
[AEBDWER - AEBWHEEH
BAEZ K £E  HERTHE
BRBRS -

BEREFHEE
@ EHER

Itk 55 B 7 K T AR B PR A i
F) B8 % B 765 R 5 22 R ([ B B B
BREEL ] HEGERE
EEER e EREES ([BR
ST EREES ) BRAGNME
328 PR 8 ) B R B 75 3 o 22 )
Bt ZA(TBER S E
D) REEREBANETE AR
RBIEVIZFEREMARE - B F
MBRERTTEBIPTES L
mARREERWEGX( £E™
MAD - REBFRMHEAXN
SETEEBAT -

il R SRl S
TRTR] R AR IS AT H) B R B 75 3
SR W FEEAERAEH
RARBEMHNEHEER
EREARFRM - BRER
% FEAR B A R B RS
WELEAPSIBRE AT BES
AAHENSFBREHE R
Rt FEMBHRE - BRENE
SIRBEE2(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

2

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B B 24 7]
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EXERBEE)
(b) MBEEmRARBEELE

HE2013F12 A31 BIEFER
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e

i L B 795 S 5 DA R SR BN 7 &t
EREE HTESRIATNR
HERARBEYIR(RHE2M0) -

B 75 sk T B B R B 7 e o
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B~ WA KRR X H) B IR & B
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&H@F“E&ﬂﬁmﬁﬁy
AEMBEREALTBNA?
MRAERFH - E%%@WW&
BRATA] B E b AR 15
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

° IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
° IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
° IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

o Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of new or
amended IFRSs are discussed below.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly. In
addition, the Group has chosen to use the new titles
“statement of profit or loss” and “statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income” as introduced by
the amendments in these financial statements.

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

2 EREFHEERGE)

©

SETRRAE
B e EABEgE RS

TRET R B B A5 s 2 Al
HERMBEREENEFT
It S H# AT RAERT AN S B ] X
RENANGTHRERER -
Hep o T3 28 )5 8 A K E &
BHmREm :

o HEEREFERFE1RAE
'Wﬁﬁﬁiﬂ—iﬂ
Atz EH KR A
e HERMBHBEERE
5 BB HA
e BERMBHBEEAFE2
S RAEMERER IR
=
s BRMBREERES
S A 1EEE
o BIRMBRELEMNE7HR
WIER] —KE T H
BERTHMEE

R E R R E RN AEE
HA R o R AR R EY BT £ Bl sk 2
B o JRNFNAT BT BFR B
BHREERZENTHRMT

BIFR S Rt 2ERISE 1 SRAVIEET - BE
B/R2ZY -2 EMEEK
#MIHHE

EBRIREEBEERARNAR
HEETIRERAIRER DR

ERmmEMmEmKmIER R
KTEREBHFNBERANHE
fEEKEEREDREZ5 - &
SENEEHBRREINNE
o2 R EEIER B -
s - NEE B U F M R
RTPBEEZERER SENIET
BIESER M B kEMEE
Weassk | o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEHERMN - AARERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in |IAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements, relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and SIC-12, Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether
an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on
whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee. The
adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by IFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards.
To the extent that the requirements are applicable to
the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in
Note 15.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B B 24 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs
with a single source of fair value measurement guidance.
IFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements for both financial
instruments and non-financial instruments. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the
Group has provided those disclosures in Note 30. The
adoption of IFRS 13 does not have any material impact
on the fair value measurements of the Group’s assets
and liabilities.

Amendments to IFRS 7 - Disclosures - Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial instruments: Presentation, and those that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments and transactions, irrespective of whether the
financial instruments are set off in accordance with IAS
32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements because the Group
has not offset financial instruments, nor has it entered
into master netting arrangement or similar agreement
which is subject to the disclosures of IFRS 7 during the
periods presented.

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

2 EREFHEERGE)

©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

2

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Business combinations for entities under common
control

Business combinations for entities that are under the
control of the ultimate equity shareholder of the Group,
Mr. Kang Baohua (the “Controlling Shareholder”), are
accounted for as acquisitions under common control.
The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at
the carrying amounts recognised previously from the
Controlling Shareholder’s perspective, any difference
between the Group’s interest in the carrying value of the
assets and liabilities acquired and the cost of transfer
of equity interests in the entity is recognised directly in
equity.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

2 EREFHEERGE)

€

KB ] K IRt A as (A7)

FFEREEER —RMBEAF
P SEEEKEERE AR A
Mg MAKEYEEZE
P AE B 15 A5 TE (E I B SM
Ko BREAEEEERTE S
MABEERNREREAES
REE- - REXBKAHMS
AEEERR AR BEIR
FEFRRHE 2216 P /BB 2 ) RO AT 3%
BB EFEN L PIET & E[I3E
RS -

FEFERHE 22 TN B OF R TSR
RAZFINESED  BULRA
AARREGEZD - AEEX
AR T ES IR A BB
mREAHBZEREMEEI
mk E 2 BF AR IFERE
BmRARABRR BB DA
BEEmW SRR -

ZN- N i N = PNV S
B T~ E Sl KT
o RIS RS AR W
BOFEE PR R IR
M BIERE - ARRIBEN
Pere ey - MERE SR E(ET
B AEmERWRessER -

Annual Report 2013 =F—=4F4EH)

105



106

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEHERMN - AARERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see Note 2(k(ii), unless the investment
is classified as held-for-sale.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss is in accordance with Note 2(g).

Hedging

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses
on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Hedging (continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit
or loss (such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEHS

2

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(k)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see Note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated

useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the estimated useful life
of an asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

2

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)} Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges (continued)

Payments made on the acquisition of land held
under an operating lease are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(K)(ii)). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
receivable’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the receivable’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these receivables), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these receivables share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for receivables which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for receivables with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
receivable’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHEHS

2

AR RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(K)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
receivables whose recoveries are considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
the receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease; and

- investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EASHBEK#E)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) BEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HtFEREE)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measureable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEHERMN - AARERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(K)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(k(ii)).

Inventories

Inventories record the cost of raw materials waiting to be
assigned to specific construction contracts. Inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost is calculated at acquisition or direct production
cost. The cost of inventories includes design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
production overheads. The net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are assigned to specific construction
contracts, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the year in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HERN - AARERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in Note 2(u)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount due
from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amount due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid
by the customer are presented as “Trade receivables
for contract work” under “Trade and bills receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed
are presented as “Receipts in advance for contract
work” under “Receipts in advance”.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair

value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost

unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at cost.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to profit or loss
when incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HERN - AARERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Share-based payments (continued)

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date plus any
directly attributable incremental costs. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the shares,
the total fair value of the shares is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognhised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the awarded shares
vested are credited to “Shares held under share
award scheme”, and the grant date fair value of
the awarded shares vested are debited to the
capital reserve. The difference between the related
weighted average acquisition cost and the grant
date fair value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to business combinations, or items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R M RE (4R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B

2

EFLEi-(iP

MAR®RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R M RE (4R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEESN  UARKRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

= different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

(i)

(i)

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Sale of raw materials

Other income is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the raw
materials have been transferred to the customers.
Other income excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any sales
discounts. No other income is recognised if there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due, the possible return of raw
materials, or continuing management involvement
with the raw materials.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HERN - AARERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

2

MAR®RER)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or completed.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)  Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R M RE (4R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEESN  UARKRER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 25 and 30 contain information about the assumptions

and the risk factors relating to fair value of shares granted

under share award scheme and financial instruments. Other

key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(@)

Contract revenue

As explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
2(0) and 2(u)(i), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as
the work done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the activity undertaken
by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point
at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is reached
the gross amount due from customers for contract work
as disclosed in Note 17 will not include profit which
the Group may eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Provision for warranties

As explained in Note 27, the Group makes provisions
under the warranties it gives on construction of curtain
wall systems contracts, taking into account the Group’s
recent claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by the customers become more complex,
it is probable that the recent claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in
respect of past construction of curtain wall systems. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit
or loss in future years.

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of the customers and debtors to make the required
payments. The management bases the estimates on
the assessment of recoverability of individual debtor
balance, customer and debtor credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of the customers or debtors were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEIERMN - AARERER)

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(d)

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of long-lived assets as described in Note
2(K)(ii). The carrying amounts of long-lived assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of the level
of revenue and amount of operating costs. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

©)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values, if any, are based on historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
In determining the amount of deferred tax assets to be
recognised, significant judgement is required relating to
the timing and level of future taxable profits, after taking
into account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.

Br R AR BT AE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHERN  AARERER)

3 ERHERMAE(E)

W% BEMREBEE B
RerBE(WA)KR BREE
BT R A F A B SRR
E-BEETHRSEEN
sHAIE R FH R RIS EE(D
B UEBEREMREHAT
UIARMFTERX - AIERF
HEFSEE(ME) WEEE
REUEENBELRILE
BEARMESE L - WBEE
Mt BERES  RERAFW
WERAXETUAR -

BT IR
ERAE AR ENBEEREA

B B AR A0 B R 2R FE A B A
RMRER - BILATA AR A
BB R R AT RS = R g
RIETERAEE - FEERK
B A 1 B 2K A 5T R SR P8 A A A
R R EAKE - BERER
HEEBIKE - T BORTERER
FMIEERIREEMN TR ° Mt
FMFBERNE - EARKE
REEHRAEENSEEEL
FEE o

-,

ng

Annual Report 2013 =F—=4F4EH)

131



132

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEESN  UARKRER)

4

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems.

Turnover represents contract revenue derived from the
design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Group’s customer base is diversified. There was no
customer with transactions that exceeded 10% of the
Group’s turnover for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the Group’s largest customers are set out in Note
30(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations of the construction contracts. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following six reportable segments: Northeast China,
North China, East China, West China, South China
and Overseas. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Northeast China: comprises construction
contracts carried out in the northeastern region
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
which includes Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang,
Shandong, Henan and Inner Mongolia provinces
and autonomous region.

North China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the northern region of the PRC,
which includes Hebei and Shanxi provinces,
Beijing and Tianjin

East China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the eastern region of the PRC, which
includes Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangxi
provinces, and Shanghai.

West China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the western and northwestern
regions of the PRC, which include Sichuan,
Yunnan, Guizhou, Hubei, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Gansu,
Qinghai and Xinjiang provinces and autonomous
regions, and Chongging.

South China: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the southern region of the PRC,
which includes Guangdong, Hunan, Fujian, Hainan
and Guangxi provinces and autonomous region.

Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HERN - AARERER)

4

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

In view of the increasing competitiveness within
the curtain wall systems industry, the management
considers it is more important to focus on the
profitability and cash flows of the construction
projects within each of the segment identified
by the Group. As a result, the treasury function
is more centrally managed by the Group, and
the Group’s fixed assets and related lease
prepayments have been deployed across the
various segments to increase efficiency at a
group level. Accordingly, certain information
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment
has been changed in 2013. Consequently, the
measure previously used for reporting segment
result has been changed to gross profit or
loss from “adjusted EBITDA” i.e., “adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, and segment assets information
has been changed to exclude the amounts
of property, plant and equipment and lease
prepayments. Comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform to the current year’s segment
presentation.

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Segment assets include all assets with the
exception of property, plant and equipment,
lease prepayments, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and bills payables, gross amount due to
customers for contract work, receipts in advance,
accrued expenses and other payables and
provision for warranties managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling and
administrative expense and finance costs, and
non-current assets, including property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments, are not
measured under individual segments. Accordingly,
the information concerning capital expenditure,
interest income and finance costs is not
presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - UARKRER)

4  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 HBEERIDHRSE(E)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) b) PEBEHRE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities ) H"BER BERAR
(continued) (&)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable H E20134F K 20124F 12
segments as provided to the Group’s most RA31BILFE - BREM
senior executive management for the purposes of FAREESESTHRERE A
resource allocation and assessment of segment EUNBERET DY
performance for the years ended 31 December RIBHAREE ] B D H
2013 and 2012 is set out below. BRI -
2013
2013%
Northeast North East West South

China China China China China  Overseas Total
R E3 1 £ Edi] £ i3 ) fazt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARET:n

Revenue from external ~ REMSZFHMA
customers and FEEEGET N
reportable
segment revenue 2,271,568  1,626211 2438917 694,004 1,421,363 2,420,341 10,872,404

Reportable segment ~ WEHHAE
gross profit/(loss) £Rl/(28) 492139 280,189 497,988 45214 21931 (183,700) 1,360,252

Reportable segment  TRHLHEE
assets 2423611 1,347,030 2503711 1,039,787  1,282960 2443454 11,040,553

Reportable segment  TEHAFERF
liabilities 1,134,268 877,622 1,687,216 650,568 807,935 1,634,474 6,792,083
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 TN DERE (&)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEBRE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities ) SBER BERAR
(continued) (&)
2012
012%
Northeast North Fast West South
China China China China China~ Overseas Total

it £l L] i 8 7 it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBIOO
ARRTL ARETT ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMR

Revenue from external ~ RESMPZFHRA
customers and BELEGETLIN
reportable
segment revenue 2074135 1704902 1972077  1,039656 1233640 3,820,169 11,844,578

Reportable segment  AEHAPEF
gross profit 469,897 300,855 405,471 142,233 201,884 437481 1,957,821

Reportable segment ~ WRHAHEE
assets 1936314 1207919 2223318 1,102,264 991959  2567,165 10,028,939

Reportable segment ~ WEHAHEE
liabilities 1,065,297 811,356 1,294,776 704,969 811623 1533934 6,221,855
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: Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
m WS ERIRMEE (B)
u (Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
B (REEERN  UAREAEA)
4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 BRI D ERE (&)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEBERE (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets (i) FHESBEERARD
and liabilities HELGE S
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets A BRI EE E 11,040,553 10,028,939
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 - B K& 829,175 842,930
Lease prepayments S 597,338 602,914
Deferred tax assets EETH IR E 2 237,903 214,930
Unallocated head office and APOERAI R AR EE
corporate assets 1,677,495 1,008,435
Elimination of receivables 73 BB A Fo 730 £ 48 FR
between segments, and e TR ET EH
segments and head office (447,940) (477,987)
Consolidated total assets BptHEEE 13,934,524 12,220,161
Liabilities =l
Reportable segment liabilities EE SR =E 6,792,083 6,221,855
Bank loans RITER 3,063,153 1,951,990
Income tax payable FERTPTIS TR 190,963 190,373
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEEE 1,768 1,461
Unallocated head office and AN N /NCTN =K =
corporate liabilities 227,761 137,257
Elimination of payables 73 E#BIE N 7 B B 48 HB
between segments, and FEST RS8R
segments and head office (447,940) (477,987)
Consolidated total liabilities aftEaE 9,827,788 8,024,949
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) :

MBHRME(E) =

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) n

(BhaakEmN MAREAERN) N

4  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 EEERST®RE(E)
(o)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEIRE ()
(i) Geographic information (ii) HWEFE
The following table sets out information about the TREIIEBAER ()R
geographical location of the Group’s (i) revenue ERINESSENL NS
from external customers and (i) property, plant % HEMEEARERN
and equipment and lease prepayments (the He ((HEEERHEE])
“specified non-current assets”). The geographical RIHIBAIBERER - B
location of customers is based on the location at R IR B T IRIBEI TR
which the construction contracts are carried out. HERHEEEI D - BUE
For overseas construction contracts, the Group INTRELME » ANEE
further divided the customers based on regions, HE—SREREASER -
where each country within the region share similar i AN 52 B 7R b [ P -1
characteristics as to the depth of the Group’s RS 2B ENITERE
penetration in the market and industry practices. BHEEELULE - BE
No individual country has construction contracts 2013 K 2012 12 H31H
generated revenue exceeded 10% of the Group’s FEE - HEERBERE
turnover for the years ended 31 December 2013 FEREEE R EEA
and 2012, and accordingly, the management SEEEFEE10% MU E -
considers the current classification of customers It BEERATRNE
into regions is sufficient. As a result of the change PiEoEBEE - AR
in how segment information is reported internally to RAEESZERERITH
the Group’s most senior executive management, EREARNIAZHRODEE
the geographical location of the specified non- Beys B e - BUg
current assets is changed to being determined EIEREEEMNMIENE
based on the physical location of the assets. B AREBEEENERI
BhElD ©
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: Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
m BIEERRME (&)
u (Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
B (REEREI MAREAER)
4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 BEERIBHRE(E)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) b) PEBEHRE (&)
(i) Geographic information (continued) (i) HIBFE(Z)
() The Group’s revenue from external ) ETEBRBINDBE
customers: FHIA -
2013 2012
2013F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

The PRC (excluding Bl (N EEEAS RORFT)

Hong Kong and Macau)  (5Xffih)

(Place of domicile) 8,452,063 8,024,409
Europe region BN [= 735,430 637,657
Australia region SN b = 615,843 946,005
Far East region IR R [ 342,505 877,632
Middle East region AR i = 321,727 1,074,209
Americas region M= 309,105 219,841
Others region Hubth[= 95,731 64,825

10,872,404 11,844,578
(i) The Group’s specified non-current assets: (i) ANEBERIEEIER
BEE :
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
The PRC (excluding P E (TEEEEKRF)

Hong Kong and Macau)  (5:ffih)

(Place of domicile) 1,400,341 1,414,105
Overseas RSB 26,172 31,739

1,426,513 1,445,844
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

Other revenue
Government grants
Rental income from operating leases

Other net income

Net income from provision of repairs
and maintenance services

Net gain from sale of raw materials

Net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Hetr A
BT FE G
REHERS KA

HAFBA

Rt ERRERBER
U

HE R YR R

HEWE - BELRE
MU ER

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@)  Finance costs:

Interest on bank advances and

other borrowings wholly repayable

within five years

Bank charges and other finance costs

Total borrowing costs

Interest income
Net foreign exchange loss
Forward foreign exchange contracts:
cash flow hedges, reclassified from
equity (Note 11(b))

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BAAEEHEIN - UARERER)

HAag A & E AR U A
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
34,043 14,323
2,572 1,708
36,615 16,031
6,405 =
2,242 4,991
1 585
8,648 5,576

BiATFE

BATAMB TR, (FEA) AT &R
‘S

@ BEKA
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T ARETIT
AR AFREHERHERIT
BFREMEENT S
161,002 118,199
ERITULE I E A g & A AN 29,297 32,425
FEV =S 159N 190,299 150,624
A BHA (12,263) (11,983)
SNV 518 F BR 86,874 7,664
REPINEAR -
WERELF - BERS
EMOEHE11D) (104,891) (14,762)
160,019 131,543
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6

(@)

Finance costs: (continued)

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMBNIil).

Staff costs”:

Salaries, wages and other benefits He » TENMEMET
Contributions to defined contribution  [A] 5 E M FUR ARG 215K

retirement plans (Note (j)) (B1aE@)

Equity-settled share-based B AR R ET 2RI A
payment expenses in respect of IR 485 E PABR D 15 SR 52
share award scheme (Note 25) (Hit25)

Note:

(i) The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby these
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the schemes
at rates ranging from 11% to 22% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established outside of the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed by
the respective local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
respective schemes at rates stipulated by the relevant
rules and regulations of the respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material

obligations for payments of other retirement benefits
beyond the above annual contributions.
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(@)

BERKAK : (&)

REZE2013F 12 A31 BILFE T &
BEERAHERN L (20124F : ARE

BT
() BImKA":
2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

976,731 1,231,553
103,191 95,643
12,088 =
1,092,010 1,327,196

HEE

AN B A B S K B A Rl
828 7 BT B R R R e
FRAREREE - BEPEEA
AIBEREBEART S 11% £22% [
ZEFTEIMR - FEMBARES
R BUE %R IR e B A f ik bt
L%%%Eﬁﬁ¢l¥ﬁ%ﬁm¥
D EETE R RIRER o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BA R R BT EE ()

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 HAREE)
(©)  Other items: ) HMIER :
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

Depreciation and amortisation WEREE" (HE 13K 14)
(Notes 13 and 14)

Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 K E A fE W ZORE 18
receivables (Notes 18(b) and 19(a)) (K17t 18(b) 5% 19(a))

Operating lease charges in respect of B+ - HEREF -

land, plant and buildings, motor VRER N B R A R AR
vehicles and other equipment” mHEmRst
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEME
— audit services — RS
— other services — H AR

Research and development costs” T EEak A

Increase in provision for warranties® (RS EEL N (F1227)
(Note 27)

Cost of inventories” (Note 16(b)) GFEERA" (Kat 16()

Cost of inventories includes RMB720.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB739.4
million), relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges,
research and development costs and provision for
warranties, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above
or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

AR®TR ARETTT

68,042 67,363
83,701 85,118
53,545 70,635
7,000 6,500
3,329 1,188
386,139 372,967
90,690 53,287

9,512,152 9,886,757

HE2013F12 A AL EERFE
RABIEE TR - 378 R
Y RERERY - KA KR
ERBEERHKRNARKE7206H
Sr(2012F : ARK73948 &
JT) v M Bl BN ATE b SOk
F6) D AR BN S BFATREEF -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

7  INCOME TAX 7 FiSH
(@  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss @ AEffBERFRAKME
represents:
2013 2012
2013 4 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Current taxation (Note 26(a)): BNEAFRIAE : (H727 26(a))
— PRC Corporate Income Tax - AR ERER 13,999 103,486
— Overseas income tax — BINTISEL 23,420 6,147
37,419 109,633
Deferred taxation (Note 26(b)): RIEFRIA « (M2 26(b))
— Origination and reversal of - B ERRRE £ KT
temporary differences (32,286) (568,087)
5,133 51,546
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting by TIERAZEREAMETAERN
profit at applicable tax rates: ZEHFEAYE AR
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Profit before taxation T EI R E 32,681 429,456
Expected tax on profit before RFERE R AR = A E E
taxation, calculated at the MERAENFRIHE
rates applicable to profits BEBBA L) ~ () »
in the jurisdictions concerned (if) %% (iv))
(Notes (i), (ii), (i) and (iv)) 12,409 101,686
Tax effect of non-deductible AT S ISR 2
expenses (Note (v)) (B15E () 15,733 25,178
Tax effect of unused tax losses AIER AR B FIAEER
not recognised g2 32,086 22,169
Tax concessions (Note (Vi) MIBRE (H75% (vi) (55,095) (97,487)
Income tax PS8 5,133 51,546
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made, as
the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMBNIl).

The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 25%).

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
countries other than the PRC (including Hong Kong),
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 8.5% to 34%
for the year ended 31 December 2013 pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2012: 8.5% to 34%).

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

7 BB (E)

b) BEFAXEZERREFTEN
SETAERHER : ()

)

(i)

(V)

AATRREBKILHANE
B KB A AR E20134F
12 A31 BIEFEHIZ16.5%
(20124 : 16.5%) K i = 44
MEEFFE - ARARA]
RAEBRE ST
BB A B R & 22013 12
A1 BIEFEMEABNE
78 T 15 B0 B FE FR AR IR - A
I G BB TSR IRBE
(2012%F : ARBEZTL) ©

RIFEE B e M AL B K 7
BMAIRER - DRIRHASE
& KRB R 2 B B Rt A 3L
B AN X B R AN R B — S Y
REBAEBAERFTER

AN ER B A R B R R AR AL
Z20135F12A31HILFEEA
1225% (2012 FF : 25%) K7
ER NP B D FE TSR o

REESEEMAERAY
RAIRCER - AEENRFHER
(BEEE) ASHERH
B R ZEE LINE R A
AT B A RIZE R ELE 2013
F12A31 BIEFEANIZL8.5%
£ 34% TERFTSH RN
Fr 8 $ (20124 : 8.5% =
34%) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

7

INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v) The amounts mainly comprised non-deductible
entertainment and other expenses in excess of the
tax deductibility allowances under the PRC tax laws
and regulations.

(v  One of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC has obtained approval from the tax
bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced
and new technologies for the calendar years from
2012 to 20183 and therefore enjoys a preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 15%). In addition
to the preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate,
this subsidiary entitles an additional tax deductible
allowance amounted to 50% of the qualified research
and development costs incurred in the PRC by this
subsidiary.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 7]

7

Frig®t (42)

(b)

BIAR X B E R R ER
SETAERHER : (F)

Hiet : (&)

V) ZELEIECEBBET
BiERERIA T AR &
BV AT BUREE e B f ST -

V) AEEHF-—RPEMBEA
A|EEFRS BIE 8 2012
FEE2013F ILHEFRIEA
= AT S AN IE - i
EHZE2013F 12 A31 HILFE
ZH15% 8 Bl EFTiS TR
BEF R (20124F : 15%) °
RTEZBRBEMRBRE
BRE  ZMBRARE
BREXNHEEENEGE
BT 35 B AN B9 50% HN T H1 B
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEIRAN - MARBAEN)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 E=EHM<

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out below: EEMEFBEIOT ¢

2013
2013 F
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Retirement

in kind scheme Total
Directors’ £ - contributions
fees RUR BIRETE
BE=we BYER H et

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®TR ARBT:R

Executive directors HITES
Mr Kang Baohua REESE - 311 19 330
Mr Tian Shouliang HsFR £ - 347 29 376
Mr Guo Zhongshan BRILSE - 344 29 373
Mr Wang Yijun TRELE - 302 29 331
Mr Wang Lihui FIEEE - 327 29 356
Mr Zhang Lei (appointed on RE A (20134

4 June 2013) 6 A4 BZME) - 132 17 149
Mr Wu Qingguo (resigned on  REEIS 4 (20134

29 May 2013) 5 F 29 HEHT) - 124 7 131

Independent non-executive BV EHTES

directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok RIRE S 156 - - 156
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond ~ #AfR5c 4% 156 - - 156
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny EHELE 156 - - 156

468 1,887 159 2,514
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EZHL(E)

2012
20124
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement

in kind scheme Total
Directors’ <4 - contributions
fees AR RRGTE
Yk EMER R Fae

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTE  ARBTT ARETRT ARETRH

Executive directors HITESE
Mr Kang Baohua EEELE - 273 24 297
Mr Tian Shouliang HTRESE - 359 26 385
Mr Guo Zhongshan BARWLEE - 353 26 379
Mr Wang Yijun ITEELE - 335 26 361
Mr Wu Qingguo REBRLE - 346 26 372
Mr Wang Lihui TUERE - 336 26 362
Mr Si Zuobao (resigned on BEERAE (R20124

30 November 2012) 11 B30 ABHT) - 058 29 287
Mr Wang Degjiang (resigned on ~ F1&3 504 (A 2012 4

30 November 2012) 11 B30 HEHT) = 259 24 283

Independent non-executive JFVEHITES

directors
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok EIRE LA 163 - - 163
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond eV Ve 163 = = 163
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny THELE 163 - - 163
489 2,519 207 3,215
There were no amounts paid during the year to the directors NEBERFEFNBEREEHBIIER
in connection with their retirement from employment or R ABERAL A (E 3 b BR MY 52 B i S 1+
compensation for loss of office with the Group, or inducement EAIFIE - £ - PEESHENA
to join. There was no arrangement under which a director BREE ISR ZHE o

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none
(2012: none) is a director whose emolument is disclosed in
Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five
individuals (2012: five) who are not directors are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits e M LREYET

in kind
Discretionary bonuses B IEAL
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET

The emoluments of the employees who are not directors and
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are within the following bands:

(In Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) (BrExD)

2,000,001-2,500,000 2,000,001 2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000 2,500, 001 3,000,000

No emoluments were paid or payable to these employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB5.4 million (2012: a loss
of RMB5.9 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (see Note 28(a)).

10

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

REFHMAL

hEssFMALY  BEEFAL
(20124 : ) REF - FENFE
RHESKE - WIHFEEMZABA
(20124 : ) WFBNAEZRIT ¢

2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

7,984 6,180

149 3,401
1,216 505
9,349 10,086

AEERERSHFMELIFERZA
THFNFIATHE :

2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
3 2

2 3

F A EF%F R B N B
B < 1 /% hn B2 s 0 BB AR SR 1R O 22 B
KAERKREBAAOMIE -

SN E Y SR

RATIRRRIEL & HEFE D B 28
BARES47E (20124 « FEA
R¥5908E) ' BIIRARARAIE
sk (RK1EE28(@)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

11 Htb2EWE

(@ Tax effects relating to each component of other ()

comprehensive income

Exchange differences on
translation into presentation
currency (before and after tax)

BEREINEEHER 28
(BRI R ARR)

Cash flow hedge: REREE M
net movement in the hedging P REEEE RS
reserve
— Before tax amount —BiRl&%
— Tax expense —MIERAX
— Net of tax amount —F iR
Other comprehensive income H b 2mikas
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, including (o)
reclassification adjustments
Cash flow hedges: REREEH
Effective portion of changes in RERNTERRE T A
fair value of hedging instruments R EEEENERED

recognised during the year
Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit
or loss (Note 6(a))
Net deferred tax charged to other
comprehensive income (Note 26(b))

Net movement in the hedging reserve
during the year recognised
in other comprehensive income

BREERaSBENENRIE
HE (15 6())

RE M2 WS HIBR A
R IR 58 (f5E 26(b))

REMEERSEERNFEA
R EEHEEF R
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2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

72,357 (1,883)
37,093 1,568
(9,620) (528)
27,473 1,040
99,830 (843)

ERAHEME2mKSEEKED
BREEHDHEAR

2013 2012
20134 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

141,084 16,330
(104,891) (14,762)
(9,620) (528)
27,473 1,040




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2013 is calculated based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB104.4 million (2012: RMB438.5 million) and the
weighted average of 6,203,764,000 ordinary shares
(2012: 6,208,734,000 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year.

The calculation of the weighted average number of
ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2012 was as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1 A1 B2 3THE @R

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

12 EREAXAREBEER

@ EREXEN

#H ZE2013F12A31H It FE &K
BEARRFIBRIEA R TRREGEFDEA
K®¥10448 87T (20125 : AR
4385 BEIT) RIAFEE BTN
F19816,203,764,000 AL @A% (2012
F : 6,208,734,000 L 3@A%) 5T o

REZE2013F 20124512 A31 H 1k
FEBITEINEZBRATENT ¢

2013 2012
20134 20124
’000 '000
T TR

6,208,734 6,208,734

Effect of shares purchased and RIEM D ZZRT 2B E &
vested under a share award SERMD I E (FiE25)

scheme (Note 25)

Weighted average number of ordinary # 12 A 31 B &9 N

shares at 31 December TEALE R

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

(4,970) -

6,203,764 6,208,734

b) SREFRF

R E 220134F K2012F 12 A
S1HLEFEMELBEETN
FERIRRADEEITIEIN o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5HEHM

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AR RER)

The Group

Cost:

At 1 January 2012

Additions

Additions through acquisition of
a business under common
control

Transfer in/(out)

Disposals

At 31 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2012

Additions through acquisition of
a business under common
control

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2012

Net book value:
At 31 December 2012

Cost:

At 1 January 2013
Additions
Transfer in/(out)
Disposals

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2013

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2013

Net book value:
At 31 December 2013

R :

R2012%1A1R
AE

BBIET LR
FBARE

gr/(i)
e

2012612 A31 B

ZitHE:
R2012%1A1R
BBIET LRI
FBARE

ERAE
HERE

20124612 A31 B

REFE:
12012512 A31H
B
R2013%1 1B
NE

21/(1)

il

12013412 431 B

ZiHE:
120131 A 18
FRfE
HERD

12013412 431 B

REFE:
201312 A31 B

13 Y% - MERRE

REE

Motor

vehicles

Machinery and other

Plant and and equipment  Construction

buildings  equipment BRER  inprogress Total
BERET BERRE Hitkfe ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETr ARETT AR
513,671 321,069 185,797 51,697 1,072,234
1,567 11,334 21,766 111,367 146,034
- 30,952 2,958 - 33,510
2,047 4,142 - (6,189) -
(1,094) (1,183) (5,304) - (7,581)
516,191 365,914 205,217 156,875 1,244,197
(90,324) (144,168) (108,045) - (342,537)
- (7,980) (2,218) - (10,198)
(13,497) (17,184) (23,864) - (54,545)
256 1,075 4,682 - 6,013
(108,569) (168,257) (129,445) - (401,267)
412,626 197,657 75,772 156,875 842,930
516,191 365,914 205,217 156,875 1,244,197
2,334 13,265 8,298 17,835 41,732
153,627 408 - (154,035) -
- (349) (7,296) - (7,645)
672,152 379,238 206,219 20,675 1,278,284
(103,565) (168,257) (129,445) - (401,267)
(15,163) (18,106) (21,600) - (54,869)
- 315 6,712 - 7,027
(118,728) (186,048) (144,333) - (449,109)
553,424 193,190 61,886 20,675 829,175

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 7]



13

14

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

At 31 December 2013, property certificates of certain

properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB183.8
million (31 December 2012: RMB85.8 million) are yet to be
obtained. Of these properties, the Controlling Shareholder has

undertaken to procure the obtaining of the title documents
of RMB78.6 million (31 December 2012: RMB81.2 million). If
these title documents could not be obtained, the Controlling

Shareholder agreed to indemnify the Group for all the losses

and damages arising therefrom.

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Cost:
At 1 January 2012
Additions

At 31 December 2012

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2012

Net book value:
At 31 December 2012

Cost:
At 1 January 2013
Additions

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2013

Net book value:
At 31 December 2013

AR
R201241 A1H
NE
MR2012412 A31 H
ZiT e -
R20129F1 A1H
F N

R20129F12 A31 H
BREFEE
MR2012F12 A31 H
AR
R201341 H1H
NE
72013412 A31 H
ZoT e -
MR2013%F1 A1H
F N EEE

MR2013%F 12 A31 H

RREFE
MR2013F 12 A31 H

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

13 "% - BERRE (&)
AE&EE (&)

R2013F 12 A31 H * &FTRE®EF
BEAARKA183.8F & L(20124F 12
A31H: ARKESSSEHE L) NWE
BAMGMEZRE - H - ERER
EABREREEEARKTS6EE T
(201212 A31H : AR¥8126B8
TT) KW SEEVS SERE S o AR BEER
REREX  EREREERAEER
SBEE LM EERFTE BB RIENR -

14 FENHEE

The Group
rEH
RMB’000
ARETTT

650,613
7,597

658,210

(47,699)
(13,173)

(60,872)

597,338
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

14

15

LEASE PREPAYMENTS (continued) 14

Lease prepayments represented land use right premiums paid
by the Group for land situated in the PRC. At 31 December
2013, land use right certificates of certain land use rights with
an aggregate carrying value of RMB23.4 million (31 December
2012: RMB42.4 million) are yet to be obtained.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 15

Unlisted shares, at cost JE T B - REAS

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 7]

ANEE(E)

BN EASERA AT R i
FZ (TR (e AR RS - 712013
F12A31H + MARBRERERA
R¥23.4HEC(2012412 8318 :
AR ABE L) WE T HER
RER) 1 HhfF FRAERE o

R EARNRE

The Company
RAF]
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

12,089 1

TREFHHAKENES  BENK
BEEEATEZMBRRER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Place and date
of establishment/

incorporation
Name of subsidiary KL/ i
HEAREHE K37 KA H
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium The PRC
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. 17 April 1993
(“Shenyang Yuanda") t
EGEARETIRERAH 199364 A17H
(FEBEA])"
Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium The PRC
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd. 24 March 1998

FEEAREIRERAR G

19983 A 24 H
Shenyang Haihui Technology The PRC
Investment Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000
EREEREREABRAR i
200044 A20H
Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd. United Kindom
EAREBRAR 30 April 2002
B
200244 A30H
Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating ~ The PRC
Co., Ltd. 19 March 2003
EGEACEEAERAT G
20033 A 19H

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

15 RKBLARNKRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
Group’s
effective

registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRBRAGHE

interest
&8z
ERER
Registered and 100%
paid-up capital of
United States Dollar
(“USD")323,298,200
FEAT R A R AR
323,298, 2005 T
(EA)
Registered and 100%
paid-up capital of
RMB15,000,000
AEAT R R AR
AR 15,000,0007C

Registered and 100%
paid-up capital of
RMB5,000,000

FEAT R R AR

AE#5,000,0007

Issued and 60%
paid-up capital of
British Pound Sterling
(“GBP")500,000

BETRARKRA
500,000 543
(r#g])

Registered and 100%
paid-up capital of
RMB7,000,000

FEAT R R AR
AR 7,000,000

AR A

Held
by the Held by
Company subsidiaries

HAAE  ENEAF

o2} b

Principal
activities

TREH

100%

Design, procurement,
production, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Hat B AE
HERTEBRER

- 100% Design, procurement,
production, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Rt KB AE
HERZERRZD

= 100% Purchase of materials
for group companies

BEEATRERME

= 100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems
SOREE
HERTEBRER

- 100% Plating and coating

of metals

SBPERES
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155



156

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

AR RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Shenyang Yuanhai Trading
Co., Ltd.
BEEeE S BRAR

Foshan Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd.
BEARETRERAR"

LLC Yuanda Curtain Wall
BARRARAR ™

Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering (Macao), Ltd.
BABEETIR(RM)ERAR™

Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd.
BARANEERAR™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
K7 R A

The PRC

9 January 2004
e

20041 H9R

The PRC

9 March 2005
e
20053 H9A

Russian Federation
23 November 2005
e H
200511 4231

Macau

22 June 2006
o
200664220

Australia

5 September 2006
BAFIE
20069 A5H

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
M/ ERTR 582
BRBRAFE ERER
Registered and 100%

paid-up capital of

RMB1,000,000
i R R

AR®1,000,0007T
Registered and 100%

paid-up capital of

RMB20,000,000
R R R

AR 20,000,000

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Russian Ruble
280,000

BETRAERA
280,000 R

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Macao Pataca
8,028,000

BETRAERA
8,028,000;217

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Australian Dollar
(*AUD")1,069,291

BETRARRA
1,069,201 27
(p-5d))

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B B 24 7]

WARLL A

Held

by the
Company
AR
b2

Held by
subsidiaries
HMEAR
o2}

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

15 RHBLARNRE(E)

Principal
activities

IREH

Purchase of materials
for group companies
BEBLARERIH

Purchase of materials
for and provision
of services
to group companies
BEBLARERNH
RimE iR AR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

RS A LR
HERTERBAS

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS A LR
HERZERRZR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A LR
HERTEBRER



15

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

Yuanda USA Corporation
BAEEBRAR™

Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L

EARE (AR T
BRAR

Yuanda Canada Enterprises Ltd.
EAMERBRAR ™

Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering (Germany) GmbH
(“Yuanda Germany")

BABRETE(BE)ERAR™
(MEAEE )

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering
(India) Private Limited
(“Yuanda India")

BARFTR(HE)BA
ARAR(TERAE )™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
KR A

United States

of America

16 May 2007
X

2007E5A 16

State of Qatar

11 February 2008
AR

20082 A 1A

Canada

15 Apri 2008
mEX

20084 A 150

Germany

28 April 2008

=

20084 4 A28 H

Republic of India

(“Indlia”)

28 July 2008

BN skAnel ([ EDE )
20087 A28 H

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
Bff/ERGR  #E2
MRRAHE MR
Issued and 100%

paid-up capital of

USD1,000,000
BETRAERA

1,000,000%7T

Issued and paid-up ~ 100%"
capital of Qatar Riyal
(“QAR")200,000

BETRARRA
200,000 FERELH
((ERERA])

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
USD500,000

BETRARRA
500,000%7T

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Euro100,000

BETRARRA

100,000EA7C

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Indian Rupee
(“INR") 1,476,200
BETRARRA
1,476,200EE B L

(TENEELL])

AR A

Held

by the
Company
BARAH
o2}

Held by
subsidiaries
HMEAR
b

100%

100%"

100%

100%

100%

15 RKBLARNKRE (&)

Principal
activities

TREH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EERES A iER
HERTEBRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Rt~ WiE - A%

HERZERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Hat KB AK
HERRERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SO
HERTEBRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

RS A LR
HERZERREZR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 15 RHEARNIRE (£)

Proportion of ownership interest

158

BEERLA
Particulars of The
Place and date registered/ Group’s Held
of establishment/ issued and effective by the Held by
incorporation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries Principal
Name of subsidiary ML/ M/ BRIR €@z  BADE  HKEAF activities
HWEARERE K7 R A MR RAFE ERER b2 o) TEXH
Yuanda Europe Ltd. Swiss Confederation  Issued and 60% - 60% Design, procurement,
(“Yuanda Europe”) 29 July 2008 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
BABNERAR ™ Tt 7 Swiss Franc installation of
20087 A29H (“CHF")1,000,000 curtain wall systems
BETRAERA EE RS A LR
1,000,00057 /458 HERTEBRER
(BT ))
Yuanda Curtain Wall Hong Kong Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
(Hong Kong) Company Limited 14 May 2009 paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
AR (BB ERAR™ % HK$2,000,000 installation of
200945 A 14H BETRERRA curtain wall systems
2,000,000/ SRS LR
HERZERRZD
Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting ~ State of Kuwait Issued and paid-up ~ 100%" - 100%" Design, procurement,
for Buildings Underes 17 May 2009 capital of assembly, sale and
BAMB R BEAD R Kuwaiti Dinar installation of
BREEAR™ 2009F5A17H ("KWD")1,000,000 curtain wall systems
BETRAERA EE RS A LR
1,000,000 R G S 4R HERTEBRER
((MEEsEnE])
Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vietnam) Socialist Republic Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,

Co., Ltd.

EARE (48) BRAEAA ™

of Vietnam
29 July 2009
MRt e FE LA
200947 29K

paid-up capital of

USD100,000
BETRAERA

100,000% 7

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 7]

assembly, sale and

installation of

curtain wall systems
Hah R AR

HERRERRAR

L



15

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., BR
BEEAEETRERAR

DT

Well Galaxy Limited
REERAF ™

Eurl Yuanda France
BNEEBRAF

Yuanda (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited
EX(BE) ERERAR ™

Endai Japan Co., Ltd.
EARRRA 24

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
KR A

Kingdom of

Saudi Arabia
21 November 2009
PWERR
200911 4218

The British Virgin
Islands
25 February 2010
EBRLES
201042 A 250

France

18 March 2010
A

20103 18H

Hong Kong

23 March 2010
B

201043 H23H

Japan

28 April 2010
B

201044 A28 H

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

15 RKBLARNKRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
Bff/ERGR  #E2
MRRAHE MR
Issued and 100%

paid-up capital of
Saudi Arabian Riyal
500,000
BETRARRA
500,000 ST AR
BoR
Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
USD1
BETRARRAR
1%7

Issued and 60%
paid-up capital of
Euro13,020,000

BETRAERAR
13,020,000 847

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
HK$1

BETRAERA
18T

Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Japanese Yen
("JPY")354,000,000

BETRARRA
354,000,000 H
(TBE)

AR A

Held
by the Held by
Company subsidiaries
HAAE  ENEAF
o2} b

Principal
activities

TREH

100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EERES A iER
HERTEBRER

100% = Investment holding

RERK

100%

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS A ER
HERRERRER

100%

Investment holding

RERKR

100% Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EERES A ER
HERTEBRER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

MAR®RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering

BABRETRHERRE
ARAR

Yuanda Azerbaijan Limited
Liability Company
BAMEEBAREELE™

Yuanda Curtain Wall
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
BARE BTN BRAF ™

Yuanda Mexico S.A. de C.V.
BABHAREEABRAR

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
K35 KA S

Republic of
Indonesia

9 June 2010

fle

201066 H9H

Republic of
Azerbaijan

17 December 2010

e

2010612178

Republic of Singapore
27 December 2010
AR HAE

2010612 4178

The United Mexican
States

29 April 2011

itk

201164 A29H

15 RHBLARNRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERLA

Particulars of The

registered/ Group’s Held

issued and effective by the Held by

paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries Principal

i/ ERITR £8z AADE  AKEAR  activities

BRBRAFE ERER BE BE  EEEE

Issued and 99% - 99% Design, procurement,
paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
USD150,000 installation of

BEIRBRRA curtain wall systems
150,000% 7T Rt R AR

HERTEBRER

Issued and 100% = 100% Design, procurement,
paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
Azerbaijani installation of
Manat 400 curtain wall systems

BETRAERA RS A iR
A0 FEFES HERRERR RS

Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
Singapore Dollar installation of
("SGD")1,950,000 curtain wall systems

BETRAERA SRS LR
1,950,000 A% 7T HERZERRZD
(M)

Issued and 100% = 100% Design, procurement,

paid-up capital of
Mexican Peso

assembly, sale and
installation of

1,000,000 curtain wall systems
BETRARRA Rt FiE AR

1,000,000 BF R HERRERREZN

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B A B 24 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

15 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

Haihui Curtain Wall (Cambodia)
Co., Ltd.

BERR (RER)
BREEAR™

Yuanda Brazil Aluminium Industry
Engineering and Trading Import
and Export Co., Ltd.

EACREETREZENLN
BRARF™

Yuanda International Aluminium
Engineering India Private Limited

EABR SRR TROELA
BRARF™

Yuanda ltaly SR.L.
BABANBREER T

Shenyang Yuanda Investment
Co., Ltd.
EGEAREERAT

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
K7k A

Kingdom of
Cambodia

3 May 2011

RBRLE

2011E5H3H

Federative
Republic of
Brazi

7 July 2011

BEBLNE

20116 7H7H

India

7 July 2011
I
2001ETATH

Italy

14 September 2011
BAM

201149 14H

The PRC

23 September 2011
el
2011E9A23H

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
Group’s
effective

registered/
issued and
paid-up capital
i/ ERTR
BRRAGHE

interest
£82
ERER
Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Cambodian
Riel4,000,000
BETRARRA
4,000,000 RFEEER
Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
Brazilian Real
637,000
BETRAERA
637,000 EAE A
Issued and 100%
paid-up
capital of
USD540,000
BETRAERA
540,000

Issued and 60%
paid-up capital of
Eur20,000

BETRAERA
20,000 BT

Registered and 100%
paid-up capital of
RMB10,000,000

A R R R

ARE10,000,000 7T

BERERLA

Held
by the Held by
Company subsidiaries
BAAAE  ENEAF
o2} b
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

15 RKBLARNKRE (&)

Principal
activities

TREH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A iER
HERREBRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Rt~ g A%

HERZERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS A ER
HERRERRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SO
HERREBRER

Investment holding

RERR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

MAR®RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Shenyang Yuanda Commercial
Senvices Co., Ltd.
AR ABREERAR

Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd.
BARTHARAR

Shenyang Yuanda Building
Materials Co., Ltd.
EREARMERAT

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
BARE (RE) BRAR™

Shenyang Yuanda Ocean
International Logistics Co., Ltd.
BHENRFERRARAR

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
R A

The PRC

18 November 2011
i
2011E11A18H

Australia
25 November 2011
BAFIE
2011E11 /250

The PRC

14 December 2011
il

2011512 4148

Kingdom of Thailand
30 January 2012
%I

201241 A30A

The PRC

30 January 2012
i

20121 A30H

15 RHBLARNRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERLA

Particulars of The

registered/ Group’s Held

issued and effective by the Held by

paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiaries Principal

i/ ERITR £8z AADE  AKEAR  activities

BRBRAFE ERER BE bz TERK

Registered and 100% - 100% Provision of travel
paid-up capital of services o group
RMB1,500,000 companies

R R R AREA AR RE
AR 1,500,000 o

Issued and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
paid-up assembly, sale and
capital of installation of
AUD800,000 curtain wall systems

BETRBRERA EE RS A LR
800,000 87 HERTEBREN

Registered and 100% = 100% Production and sale of
paid-up capital of building materials
RMB10,000,000 EERAERMN

i R RN R
10,000,000 7T

Registered and 100% - 100% Design, procurement,
paid-up capital of assembly, sale and
Thai Baht10,000,000 installation of

RS RRA curtain wall systems
10,000,000%k Het R A%

HERTERBAS

Registered and 100% - 100% Provision of logistic
paid-up services to group
capital of companies
RMBS5,000,000 MEBRFRMER

R AR RAR 37
AK%5,000,0007

SR P B BT IR A T



15

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

Yuanda WA Pty Ltd.
BABRANTERAR™

Yuanda SA Pty Ltd.
BABRANEERAR ™

Shenyang Yuanda Xinchuang Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
ERE AT EREERA A

Shenyang Ruijing Glass Technology
Co., Ltd.
ESRRREREERAR

Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd.
BABENZARAA™

Place and date
of establishment/
incorporation
AL/ 2
K7k A

Australia

3 December 2012
ol

201212 A3H

Australia

3 December 2012
i

2012512 A3H

The PRC

12 August 2013
il
2013812 B

The PRC

25 September 2013
il

20139 A 25R

Australia

28 October 2013
A
201310 A28 8

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The
registered/ Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
i/ ERTR £82
BRRAGHE {34
Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
AUD1
FEAT R R AR
127
Issued and 100%
paid-up capital of
AUD1
FEAT R R AR
127
Registered and 100%
paid-up capital of
RMB50,000,000
FEAT R R AR
ARE50,000,0007C
Registered and 100%
paid up capital of
RMB10,000,000
FEAT R R AR
ARE10,000,0007T
Issued and 100%

paid-up capital of
AUD1

FEAT R R AR
1R

BERERLA

Held
by the Held by
Company subsidiaries
BAAAE  ENEAF
o2} b
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

15 RKBLARNKRE (&)

Principal
activities

TREH

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

EE RS A B
HERREBRED

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

Rt g A%

HERZERRER

Real estate
development

FIERE

Production and sale of
glass products

TERHETRER

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of
curtain wall systems

SRS A ER
HERRERRER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R M RE (4R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

15

MAR®RER)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

*k

This company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies established
in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity
interests in these companies, where the remaining 51%
equity interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda
by individuals resided in the respective jurisdictions. In
accordance with the respective entrust agreements,
these individuals do not have the right to vote or receive
dividends declared or participate in the liquidation of these
companies. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests
in these companies.

The following table lists out the combined financial information
of Yuanda Europe and its subsidiaries, a sub-group within the
Group, which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Turnover
LLoss for the year

LLoss attributable to NCI

S

FAEIE

Non-current assets ERBNEE
Current assets MENEEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Net liabilities FAE

Attributable to NCI

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k H B 2 B B 24 7]

FEiER s PR R

B IR

15

RIBARNRE ()

ok

A RRHRBEKZNIINEEE D

5
)

e X
3

FERBEIRAPEKINEREE
= -

=103

D)N

ZERA F%EAEP B 352 SNE M AR SZ B
7% R

AEEBBEGRAEGZSAA
H949% A% # - T B #251% AR #E Ty
HERS VAR AT MR
AREBEGEAFA - RESTER
#F o ZEERAL L EENRZE
AFHEZE KN E R B 5k £
B Hlt - ARAREZERE A
EEER LHAZE A RM100%M%
Fg °

TREFEREMN R EHBRF (R
SEEEAFERESNMBEE)

BHMBER - TXZ2

HO T ER

MRS EM R RREHEER 2 Al

RS FE o

2013 2012
20134 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
559,681 778,181
(192,048) (151,453)
(76,819) (60,581)
6,552 7,772
203,254 320,388
(696,477) (616,843)
(486,671) (288,683)
(194,668) (115,473)




Notes to the Financial

Statements (continued)
B A 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B AAEEHEIN - UARERER)

16 INVENTORIES 16 #&

(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise:

Raw materials R
Less: write down of inventories B TEERMUR

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories used AR EZESRNEFES
in construction contracts AREE

(Reversal of write down)/write down 125 (MU @) /U
of inventories

(@) BHIBTIMARANTFERE

The Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

431,977 509,296
(14,652) (23,999
417,325 485,297

b) RERNER/FAILETARH
WaRARNFESEITT

The Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

9,521,499 9,879,499

(9,347) 7,258

9,512,152 9,886,757
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - UARKRER)

17 GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

Contract costs incurred plus WMEHRAIEREERAT

recognised profits less recognised EERE RN
losses in connection with ERERFERE
construction contracts in progress R E e

at the end of the reporting period
Less: progress billings

A E IR

Gross amount due from customers for FWEFARIIZ45E
contract work (Notes (i) and (i) (HIEE0) % (i)
Gross amount due to customers for ENEEARIIZ A58
contract work (Note (i) (BT (i)
Notes: Kt -
(i) Except for amounts of RMB315.6 million at 31 December (i)
2013 (31 December 2012: RMB274.4 million), all of the
remaining gross amount due from customers for contract
work are expected to be recovered within one year.
(if) Included in the gross amount due from customers for (i)
contract work are amounts of RMB16.8 million at 31
December 2013 (31 December 2012: RMB40.0 million) due
from affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder.
(i) All of the gross amount due to customers for contract work (iii)

are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

166 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED % 54 Ji 5 B 7

17 EBW EFEEIRELE

The Group
rEH

2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
36,395,339 27,651,808
(32,553,756) (23,787,719)
3,841,583 3,864,089
5,152,193 4,954,134
(1,310,610) (1,090,045)
3,841,583 3,864,089

BR2013412 31 B AR S315.6
BEL(2012F12 A31 8 : ARE
2744 BETT) NS I - HERFTE
BUREFAR TRRBEBHN—F
AE

Bl EFARILIZAEMIER 2013
%12 A 31 B EYIEAR AR R B B A
AIRIBARK16.8H &7t (20124
12A318 : AR¥4008ET) °

FERNZF &R IIZEBRAN
—FERRERBEA -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18 EFZEWRKREKREE
The Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Trade receivables for contract work ARIEESEWE
due from:
— Third parties —5$=h 2,798,523 2,492,700
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — PR AR R B B A A 136,715 82,050
2,935,238 2,574,750
Bills receivables for contract work ARIEEREE 243,390 174,426

Trade receivables for sale of raw materials ~ $4%& FEM K E 5 eI -

due from:
— Third parties —ZEH=7 1,559 3,014
— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — PR I R A A 1,884 1,687
3,443 4,701
3,182,071 2,753,877
Less: allowance for doubtful W REREAE (M 18b))
debts (Note 18(b)) (338,848) (259,398)
2,843,223 2,494,479
At 31 December 2013, the amount of retentions receivable 201312 A31H ' BIEEESE
from customers included in trade and bills receivables (net WKk EREBEAREREFRES
of allowance for doubtful debts) is RMB449.2 million (31 e (R RERE) RAR449.2
December 2012: RMB407.2 million). AE (201212 A31H : ARE
4072EETT) °
Except for retentions receivable (net of allowance for doubtful Br 7 20183F 12 H31H A R #97.9
debts) of RMB97.9 million at 31 December 2013 (31 AE (2012612 A318 : ARE
December 2012: RMB168.9 million), all of the remaining trade 168.9 B & T) MEKIRE & (KRR
and bills receivables are expected to be recovered within one IREME) I ERMAEEZRKFE KL
year. FEW IR TEBAR —F AU [E] o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - UARKRER)

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

18 EBSRURREWRRE(E)

Ageing analysis @ BREOMT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RNEBEER - B ERARERER
of trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date (HOBR RERHEE ) 122 R B AR BRES 7
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: G N
The Group
REHE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 1 month

More than 1 month but less
than 3 months

More than 3 months but less
than 6 months

More than 6 months

AR®TR ARET T

—(EAR 532,599 613,653
BE—{EAELR={EA

380,056 487,245
FBB={E AELRINE A

465,932 599,692
BB 7 fE A 1,464,636 793,889

2,843,223 2,494,479

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note AEEBEEBRRENFBSH N E
30(a). 30(a) °

Impairment of trade and bills receivables ) EFEWEKkERERNRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills B ZRERF R ERE R REBET
receivables are recorded using an allowance account FERABREBRAR  BRIEAEEEHK
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount ElFZ R IEM S R - WA ER T
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off BEBEEERE SRKZR K EKE
against trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k) B (R 2(K))

(0)-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
account during the year are as follows:

At 1 January ®W1HA1H
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE
Uncollectible amounts written off ANAT UK [B] FRIE i 5
At 31 December K12 H 31 H

At 31 December 20183, the Group’s trade and bills
receivables of RMB350.8 million (31 December 2012:
RMB286.9 million) are individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management of the Group assessed that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts
of RMB338.8 million (31 December 2012: RMB259.4
million) are recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

b) EBZREFEERRENRE

18 EBSRURKREWRRE(E)

(%)
FRRREBEESIOT :
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
2013 % 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
259,398 175,616
80,174 85,118
(724) (1,336)
338,848 259,398

R2013F 12 A31H » A& E
WESEWRRERERAR
#350.8 B BT (2012412 A 31
H: AR¥2869A &) C A
RIEE FE AR E o 18 Bl B &Y FE
W Ty B 3R B B R R & P
Bl MASEERENGHE
R AT U B 3B 5 A 8 FE LR o
At - EEREEREBREA
R#¥338.8BEL(20124F12 A
318 : AR¥25045HET) °
REBWERZEERTER

AR5 o

(© YEABRREEZESEY KR

R

3 BRI & 3 B E 2 B
5 0 M M R B e A

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

MAR®RER)

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(©)

Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired
(continued)

Neither past due nor impaired WAk HA SR E
Less than 1 month past due wHI1E AW
More than 1 month but less 6 BAR 5 1 {6 A
than 3 months past due B 31EA
More than 3 months but less 161 HAER 15 3 1 A
than 6 months past due B 6fEA
More than 6 months past due B HEAEE 61 A

Given the nature of the Group’s business, except for
retentions receivable under credit terms granted and bills
receivables not yet matured, all remaining receivables
are considered past due once billings have been made
by the Group and the customers have not settled the
billings within the credit terms granted, where applicable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to bills receivables from the issuing banks and
retentions receivable from customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of customers that have a good track
record with the Group. These receivables mainly relate
to construction projects either in progress or at final
inspection stage. Based on past experience and credit
insurance scheme entered into by the Group (see
Note 30(a)), management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 )

18 EBSRURREWRRE(E)

(©)

I & B IRBE 2 B 5 B W &
L ESE-P)

The Group
RE

2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
545,391 466,071
578,508 521,434
278,290 439,913
400,230 546,482
1,028,879 493,042
2,285,907 2,000,871
2,831,298 2,466,942

ERAEEXEHHEE - BRRE
REEEGRERRESRE
W RBANERI - — B
HEHAKEELmES IR
RERHEEGK(WER) B
BEFR - RIFTA E A g R TD
BIEBE -

BE R 78 8 75 KR (B 2 e ik £
ZPRTOBEERRERE
FRESAEH ZEXPLE
BEHER LR °

B 7 BB 3 R {8 2 e YR B
ZREFHAM REEFPEX
SEAFBEARHZERRT
o RERPAETEBARNER
SEEBREEEMNTEER -
REBELREANKRER LA
EERRATE (RHEE30())
RN EEERTEEAES
B SRR IR 5 R B2
O - MEEBREHANZS
REEARHIRRERE -  AKEY
BB %S B ERRA TR



19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RECEIVABLES

(@)

The Group

Prepayments for purchase of
inventories (Note (aa))

Prepayments and deposits for
operating leases

Deposits for construction contracts’

bidding and performance (Note (bb))

Deposits for purchase of forward
aluminium contracts

Advances to staff

Advances to third parties

Derivative financial instruments
held as cash flow hedging
instruments — forward foreign
exchange contracts (Note 30(e))

Amounts due from the Controlling
Shareholder and his affiliates
(Note (cc))

Amounts due from non-controlling
interests of the Group (Note (cc))

Others

Less: allowance for doubtful debts
(Note 19(a))

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(@)

BEGEERNR (M (@a)
REMERNREES

BREARREMENES
(K1t (bb)
BEEMnESRZS

BB T8

BNE=F8XK

BERSREHP T ANITE
ST E—RBAINESR
(K151 30(€))

P& 2R P S ER e ELESE S /2 )

KA (Mt (cc))

U AN &= B T AR A 2 SR TE
(K15t (cc)

HAth

B R (MaE 19(2)

BA R R BT EE ()

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

19 RE - ANRREMERK

AEE
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
184,962 175,309
9,056 16,667
166,364 199,743
27,487 24,589
20,829 26,734
23,391 23,134
117,511 13,999
1,731 1,626
2,703 2,682
34,260 11,099
588,294 495,582
(4,727) (2,448)
583,567 493,134

Annual Report 2013 =& —=4R4EH

171



172

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

The Group (continued)

Notes:

(@a) Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB30.4
million at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:
RMB24.0 million) made to affiliates of the Controlling
Shareholder.

(bb) The balance represented deposits placed with
customers for contracts bidding and performance of
contracts in progress. The deposits will be released to
the Group upon the completion of the related bidding
and contract work, where applicable.

(cc) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Except for amounts of RMB32.1 million at 31 December
2013 (31 December 2012: RMB4.0 million), all of the
remaining deposits, prepayments and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Impairment losses in respect of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against deposits, prepayments and other
receivables directly (see Note 2(K)(i)).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B B 24 7]

19 RE - ANRREMEYRRK(E)

2N SENG-))

Hrat -

(aa) FEEERBIER2013F 12 A31
HAR®30.45EL(20124F
128818 : AR¥E240E8
LB G E NGRS
HEFERFK

(bb) ZEHRIERERERBNER
BIZRBHMEE X FHIE
© o ZFEREKRBEBERE
ReRIE(MER)TI®
O AREE -

o

(o) %EFERBAREEN  25H
HEEEIE TR

B 2013%F 12 A31 HHE R A
R#¥321 8 & (20125612 A
318 : AR¥40B8ET) I
H#pFTARS  BANREEM
FE W R TE B R — F ik [l 5k
ERABRAX -

Be RAARREMEKRRLD
B

BE - BN E A R YGRE
MEBRCERRERAR
B IEAR S BE U B % IR R
BB WEHBERT R
BEEREEREES  BAFK
Ho A & Wk 38 CRLBRRE2(9)()) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

The Group (continued)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

account during the year are as follows:

At 1 January
Impairment losses recognised
Uncollectible amounts written off

At 31 December

M1 A1H
HER AR EE1R
MsHARU Bl S 78

®12A31H

At 831 December 2013, the Group’s deposits,
prepayments and other receivables of RMB4.7 million
(831 December 2012: RMB2.4 million) are individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired

deposits, prepayments and other receivables related to
debtors that were in financial difficulties. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB4.7 million
(81 December 2012: RMB2.4 million) are recognised.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

19

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BA R R BT EE ()

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

BE - ANRREMEYRR(E)

@ AKE#E)
FARRBEESHWOT
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
2,448 2,448
3,527 =
(1,248) =
4,727 2,448

R2013F 12318 ' A& E
iR E ~ TB T 30 K H e UK
ARB47BEIT(20125F12 A
31H: ARK 245 &) E A
RIEEE AR ME o 8RR E A IZ
©  TEAT R E b FE U5k 5 B
PR BRENEBEABEA -
EHit - EEBEREEREREE
ARB47BEIT(20125F12 A
31H: ARB24FET) - &
SEVERZEEHRFTHEM
@ e
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS R AR B L ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19 ¥B& - AARREMERRR(E)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) The Company (b) AAF]
2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW—ZK Bt /B A R F I8

(Note (aa)) (K15t (@a)) 2,069,015 2,084,053
Prepayments and other receivables — FE/ 31 B B fto E UG 110 532

2,069,125 2,084,585
Note: Hrat -
(aa) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and (@a) ZHREREER 2SHE
have no fixed terms of repayment. EEE N -

All of the prepayments and other receivables are FiT 78 T8 15 30 I E i & Y SR T8 HR
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses AR —F Uk Bl sk iER AR -

within one year.

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BHERBEESEEY
(@) The Group @ A£EE
2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand RITERNFHERS 3,250,689 2,042,343
Time deposits with banks SR1TEEATER 23,111 90,000

3,273,800 2,132,343
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BAAEEHEIN - UARERER)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 RERBREZEEY (E)
(b)  The Company (o) AAQT]
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Cash at bank and on hand PRITERETFEES 22,002 10,546
Time deposits with banks HR1TTE BATF R - 40,000
22,002 50,546
(c) The Group’s business operations in the PRC are ) AEEMTRBEEBFUARES
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible B ARETIAAI B A KIBH
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is B ELPBENESZH
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC BRI & e B0 SN B 6 FT AR PR o
government.
21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21 EZENRRESEE
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Trade payables for purchase of BEGTEEIENK

inventories due to:

— Third parties —%=5 2,345,901 2,271,179

— Affiliates of the Controlling Shareholder — 1A% A% BB B N ) 2,130 21,693

2,348,031 2,292,872

Trade payables due to sub-contractors M0 B R E S EMK 601,090 541,452
Bills payables NS 1,326,086 1,062,544
Financial liabilities measured at REER AT EN TR B E

amortised cost 4,275,207 3,896,868
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled FrEE S EMNRERENEZIETEEN—
within one year or are repayable on demand. FEREELBIRENRES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 21 BSEARRESRE(E)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RIEER - EHENALENEE
trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as BREIEAH R BREE DATAA R -
follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Within 1 month or on demand —{E A A IR E K EH 3,061,118 3,049,499
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #B3@—1#& B 18 1 = & A 3| &8 270,394 281,454
More than 3 months B:m =& A 2 HA 943,695 565,915

4,275,207 3,896,868

22 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 22 FEWRE

The Group
rEH
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T

Receipts in advance for contract work AR TIETa A 202,783 136,536
Receipts in advance represented advances received from YUk B SN R A HIR AR RS
customers for which the related construction work has not MHERETREWEEHEE o

been commenced as of the end of the reporting period.

All of the receipts in advance are expected to be recognised as Fra T IBTEEI R — F NER AU
revenue within one year. Ao
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23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Group

Payables for staff related costs

Payables for miscellaneous taxes

Payables for transportation and
insurance expenses

Payables for interest expenses

Payables for construction and
purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Payable for legal claim (Note (aa))

Deposits from sub-contractors

Deposits from suppliers for contracts’
bidding and performance

Amounts due to the Controlling
Shareholder and his affiliates
(Note (bb))

Others

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Derivative financial instruments
held as cash flow hedging
instruments — forward foreign
exchange contracts (Note 30(g))

Other derivatives — forward
aluminium contracts (Note 30(e))

Note:

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

@ A&EE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
FE1 B THERER AR 246,467 332,326
FETRERT 108,429 95,975
FEtiE S KRBT
20,814 41,800
FERFERX 8,341 3,388
BERBEVE  BEX
BB ETR
73,228 111,532
EIRRIEFEN TR (H15F (aa)) 10,103 -
DERZTRIES 45,507 32,463
HER T AIHRER
B &R ® 74,447 4,532
FE (T R B o K Ho B B R )
BIFRIE (H772 (bb))
2,086 =
EHAh 25,302 15,234
REBEK AT ENSRAE
614,814 637,250
BER SRR TAMITE
LRI E—RAINESH
(#15#30())
9,487 4,302
HMHTAET A — R HRES R
(H1£30()) 1,919 117
626,220 641,669
Hifat -
(ea) WRBERFREAEEHS—

(aa) The amount represents a compensation of Euro1.2
million payable to one of Yuanda Germany’s
customers according to a final court decision on the
lawsuit initiated by this customer in 2010.

(bb) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

23 MEEHBAX R EMEMARK

(bb)

£ E PR 2010 F 42 H #95F 7
FREB SRR EOR - FERIE X

1.2 BERUTHEEE -

ZHA R BT DR ER

HEETEE R
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: Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
m BIEERRME (&)
u (Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
B (REEERN  UAREAEA)
23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 MEFBAXREMEMNRK(E)
(continued)
(@  The Group (continued) @ AEEBE#E)
Except for amounts of RMB2.7 million at 31 December BRI2013F 12 H31 HHW AR
2013 (81 December 2012: RMB1.0 million), all of the 27E8BL(2012F12 8318 :
accrued expenses and other payables are expected to AREA0BEL) WEEEIN
be settled or recognised in profit or loss within one year BT 78 FE AT R S I E h e 1 5K T8
or are repayable on demand. R —FRIBERE FFIK

REBRIHERME -

(o) The Company (o) AAF]
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Amount due to a subsidiary (Note (aa)) FEf—RIMIE A T8 195,260 =
(K15t (@a))

Accrued expenses and other payables &5tz K E {th FE X 255 138
195,515 138

Note: Wit

(aa) The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and (@a) ZHEBEER . TFHER

has no fixed terms of repayment. EETE R o

All of the accrued expenses and other payables are BT 5 FE =T 58 > I H Ath fE < 3k 58

expected to be settled within one year or are repayable BN —FERNEENIZRERE

on demand. fF o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24 BANKLOANS

(@)

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

24 HTER

The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as (@)
follows:
Bank loans RITER

Add: current portion of long-term
bank loans (Note 24(b))

i RERITE SR BENEREE >
(K15t 24(b))

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s short-term bank
loans (excluding the current portion of long-term bank

loans) are secured as follows:

Secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights
of the Group (Note (i)

Secured by property, plant and
equipment and land use rights
of the Group and guaranteed
by an affiliate of the Controlling
Shareholder (Note (i)

Guaranteed by an affiliate of the
Controlling Shareholder

Guaranteed by a subsidiary of the
Group (Note 24(c))

Unguaranteed and unsecured

AARSENME - BEK
RAA R T30 PR R
B ()

AAREENME - BEK
RAA R T30 PR R
AR AR B AR R
HOBHIR D RIFE R (VAL ()

RN ER B 12 AR AR R
BB A BIHE (R

HAEENHRBARIEE
(H1aE24(c)

£ P IVE i

REERRERHRITER A
T

2013 2012
2013 F 2012 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
2,833,153 1,386,990
100,000 415,000
2,933,153 1,801,990

R2013%12 A31 H » REBEH
CHIRTTER( T EERETT
EFHANEE ) R T

2013 2012
2013 F 2012 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
150,000 235,000
250,000 -
200,000 =
90,911 =
2,142,242 1,151,990
2,833,153 1,386,990
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

24 BANK LOANS (continued) 24 SRITERE)
(@ The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as @ AKBEHEHRITERSTH
follows: (continued) T (&)

Note: Hiat -

(i) At 31 December 2013, the aggregate carrying value 0] M2013F 12 431 H * &
of the secured property, plant and equipment and EEMNEHRTERMS -
land use rights for the Group’s short-term bank loans EERFNREEDE  KE
is RMB402.2 million (31 December 2012: RMB241.7 AR T RN R
million). BREEAARK40225ET

(2012512831 H : ARK
241 7EBTT)
e T a
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as () AREEHRBRITERD A
follows: s

2013 2012

2013 % 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Secured by property, plant and DUAREBHME - MEK

equipment and land use rights SR A DA N b f5F FRAEE
of the Group (Note (i) WA (K27 0) 230,000 545,000
Unguaranteed and unsecured SRR R R AR = 20,000
230,000 565,000

Less: current portion of long-term B RABRITE A ENERE

bank loans (Note 24(a)) (H15+24(a) (100,000) (415,000)
130,000 150,000

Note: Kt -

() At 31 December 2013, the aggregate carrying value (i) M2018F12A31H » §t &
of the secured property, plant and equipment and SEBENEHBETERMS
land use rights for the Group’s long-term bank loans DN AEEYSE BE
is RMB234.3 million (31 December 2012: RMB589.0 REAN T RN
million). REERARKE2343BET

(2012F 12 A31H : AR¥
589.0 BB TT) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as
follows: (continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year or on demand —FENPIRER
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFN

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are
carried at amortised cost and are not expected to be
settled within one year, except for RMB100,000,000 of
the non-current portion at 31 December 2012 which had
been repaid in 2013.

The Company’s short-term bank loan

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s short-term bank
loan is guaranteed by a standby letter of credit issued by
a subsidiary of the Group.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to RMB2,500.0 million (31 December 2012:
RMB1,070.0 million) were utilised to the extent of
RMB1,225.0 million (31 December 2012: RMB542.0
million).

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

24 RITEXR(E)

(b)

AREBHNRBBITERD TN
T: (&)

REBNRPBTERNER
1ESEAR

2013 2012
2013 F 2012 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
100,000 415,000
130,000 150,000
230,000 565,000

FT B 3ERNHA T B B R 1R 4
BRAGIER ¥ ABEHIERN
—FRIFE - MER20125F12
A31BMIEENH M AR
100,000,000 7T 2 720134 (8

ARBEERITER

M2013F12 A31H * AR A
RBBRTERAAEENE A
RIBITNEREREER -

R2013F 12 A31H * Z&EEH
RITRAAARE 2500088
(20125612 A31H : AR
1,070.0B &) - EBAARE
1,225.0 B & 7L(20124 12 A 31
H: AR¥B420HET) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEHERMN - AARERER)

24

25

BANK LOANS (continued)

(e) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
30(b). At 31 December 2013, none of the covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached (31
December 2012: RMBNIl).

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of the
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining certain
employees of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. A trust has been set up for
the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may purchase
shares of the Company from the Stock Exchange with cash
contributed by the Group, and to hold such shares until they
are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time, at its
sole and absolute discretion, select any employee of the Group
(other than those classes of employees specifically excluded
as stated in the Share Award Scheme) for participation
in the Share Award Scheme and grant such number of
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at nil
consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled to
impose any conditions (including a period of continued service
within the Group after the award) with respect to the vesting of
the awarded shares.

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date
of early termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are
set out below:

At 1 January 2013

Shares purchased during the year

Shares granted and vested during
the year

20131 418
HIREE B AR
HIAR & F B R

At 31 December 2013 R2013%F 12 A31 B

On 20 May 2013, 18,020,000 ordinary shares held under the
Share Award Scheme were awarded to certain employees of
the Group with a fair value per share of HK$0.84 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.67 per share). The fair value of these
awarded shares is determined by reference to the closing price
of the Company’s ordinary shares on 20 May 2013. These
awarded shares were vested on 23 May 2013.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Movements of current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

Income tax payable at 1 January
Provision for income tax on the

estimated taxable profits for Bt (1t 7(a@)
the year (Note 7(a))
Income tax paid during the year FAEATEH

Income tax payable at 31 December

25

Average
purchase
price

FHBRE

26

®1 A1 BRERATE
FRAFHERTE T BRI TS

K12 A 31 B EMFTEH

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BAAEEHEIN - UARERER)

LIRAGEERZ 5 (&)
Befn B2 BT EIRF A B BT -

2013
2013
No. of
shares held
Frisi &
A
’000
Tk

Value

BE
RMB’000

ARBTR

HK$
BT

0.70 48,020 26,568

(18,020) (11,215)

30,000 15,353

7201345 H20H * 18,020,000 %1%
B R EHENEAREE T
rEEETESEREE  BEAARE
BEAER0.84B T (HHERLNEIRA
R¥o06770) - BEIRMHHARER
Th2ERRRIE R 20134F5 A 20
B MEEE - 25 RBRHER
201345 A 23 HERE ©

B OB R FATER

(@ AFFMBHRK AT IA

BT ¢
The Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
190,373 210,450
37,419 109,633
(36,829) (129,710)
190,963 190,373
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

26

AR RER)

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

follows:

The Group

Deferred tax arising from:

BRI &R NEERE :

At1 January 2012

Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Note 7(a))

Charged to reserves (Note 11(b))

At 31 December 2012

Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Note 7(a))

Charged to reserves (Note 11(b))

26. SHPBMRRRANAES (&)

(b)

ERRARLEHBREENEE :

RE FR BN R R A ET
MABEERABBENAKED &

position and the movements during the year are as FAEEIT -
*5KE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the related
depreciation,
and
government Remeasurement
grants and Impairment  Provision for of the
related losses  warranties fair value of
depreciation on trade and  derivative
Unused BBEE andother  expected financial
tax FEN Write  receivables contract instruments
losses EZHE:  downof 5K losses  EfitE
RBA ORBAEE inventories EMEWHN REREH HEERIA Total
HEER REEAE  FEMAE  AEEE  GOEE  NAAEE &t
RMB'000 ~ RMBO0  RWMBOOO ~ RMBOO0O  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'00O
ARETR ARMTR ARBTRT  ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR
201251 A1H 45,128 43,509 4,186 42,014 22,576 (1,508 166,910
RABRERTTA/ (R)
(litrg)
30,728 2,33 1814 20933 6,672 293 58,087
REREA W 1) = = = - - (528) (528)
R2012%128318 75,856 41,156 6,000 62,947 29,248 (1,738) 213,469
RABRERTTA/ (R)
(litrg)
30,943 (6,804) (2,337) 17,684 7,968 (15,168) 32,286
MR 1) - - - - - (9,620) (9,620)
R2013F 12318 106,799 34,352 3,663 80,631 31,216 (26,526) 236,135

At 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEIRAN - MARBAEN)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26. AHBBRRERAMPFES (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities © BEHPBEMRIRAERNIELE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HIBEENKBEREEE
position:

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Deferred tax assets recognised RE T AR NFERH
in the consolidated statement EEBIBEE
of financial position 237,903 214,930
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RE AT R NFERH
in the consolidated statement EEFIEEE
of financial position (1,768) (1,461)
236,135 213,469
(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised d) RERELERIAEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note RIBZMIFE 2(s) FRE I 25T EOR -
2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets AREBEIAFL2013F12 A31 H
in respect of unused tax losses of RMB445.2 million at B REN B IEEER AR 445.2
31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: RMB306.3 BHEL(2012F12A31H : A
million), as it is not probable that future taxable profits R¥306.3E 8B T) ERELES
against which the losses can be utilised will be available BEE BRRAREMEHIEAE
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. HENEEN AR LR
a0 1 AR DA K 85 0] B AR A /S
8o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

26

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26. SOHIERARANTER (&)

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating
to the retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC amounted to RMB2,663.4 million
(81 December 2012: RMB2,321.6 million), of which no
deferred tax liabilities in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these profits was
provided as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it

() AERELEHIREE

R2013F12 A31H » AFALE
& A B A Al B4R B A A
TREREAARK26634EE
L(2012F 12 H31H : AR
2,321.6B87T) « EFfERE
7 Ik 52 5 A E S T IE A IR
EHEEEELEE RFES
AR ' E S L B A R AR

is probabile that such profits will not be distributed in the BEOR  MEEETEZSHE

foreseeable future.

27 PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES

AIRETE N Al RARKIEDIK

27 RIERHE

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
2013 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT

At 1 January Mm1HA18 116,007 107,058
Additional provisions made ERHERRIMNE 90,690 53,287
Provisions utilised EBREE (49,613) (44,338)
At 31 December ®12 A31H 157,084 116,007
Less: amounts included under current B REHR S

liabilities at the end of the ERBaEAnESE

reporting period (53,977) (36,856)

103,107 79,151

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts with its BEAEEEAR PV HRESH
customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising within one G REFBEeEFHEISTEER
to ten years from the date of completion of the construction SR - BIEEAREESRTIA
contracts, depending on the terms negotiated with each HE R —Z=+FRNEENRRE -
customer. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of It BB DR E BRI — 2 +F R
the expected settlement under these construction contracts SERHEESRMIBEZEEZZEAR
in respect of construction contracts completed within one TS BN R EmET MR o B
to ten years prior to the end of the reporting period. The BT A SEI N RRER
amount of provision takes into account the Group’s recent WEE AT REH IR RIS R REFETR ©

claim experience and is only made where a warranty claim is

probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

28 &EAX - RERRE
(@)  HEZSHEREE Hy B

AEEWE GRS AKE D
R R R S R e B R B
BHEREHRT FOEF
AR HERRE AN X B) &9 {8 ) 4 25 4ELAK

the Company’s individual components of equity between o R EB FIBFINT
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Shares held
under share
award
Share Share scheme Capital  Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium RERGEE reserve reserve losses Total
Bx  RGRE SEFRRGE 0 EARE  EARE  ZHER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn  ARETT  ARETT ARETR
Note 28(c) ~ Note 28(c))  Note 28(cl)i)  Note 28(cii) ~ Note 28(c))
Wizoqe)  HEsen  WEzsan  HiEos)  HaEosd)
At1 January 2012 W2012%1 18 ____?1_9,_7_2(%___j,{iS_?_,O_G?_________—_________— ______ Z,E)ES_O_____£4_1,§29_)___2_,(§4_2,_1§9___
Changesin equity for 2012 2012 ER&E%E :
Loss for the year FREE = - - - - (5,909) (5,909)
Qther comprehensive income Hth 2 e - - - - 1l - 7
Total comprehensive income: dEbEEE 0 - e e no B9 (8%
Dividends approved inrespect B EZ LEERS

of the previous year (Hi2800)

(ote280)) - ot - - - - (eon3en)
At 31 December 2012 R2012E12A31H 519728 1,665,728 - - 7,131 (47588 2,134,994
M ROWEARIR SR 0GB - - T ) 2140
Changes in equity for 2013: 2013 EE%EE :

Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (5,387) (5,387)
Other comprehensive income 2 Eliz - - = = (96,963) - (96,963)
Total comprehensive income 3G = e = a (96968 (6:387)  (102350)
Dividends approved inrespect B EZ FEERS

of the previous year (Hi2800)

(Note 28(b)(i)) - (201,374) - - - - (201,374)
Shares purchased under the RERDREHEIEE

share award scheme (Note 25) 2Rk (#:2.25) - - (26,568) - - - (26,568)
Shares granted under the BERHREREIRL

share award scheme (Vote 25) 2R3 (#29) - - - 12,088 - - 12,088
Shares vested under the RERNREHEGR

share award scheme (Note 25) 2Rk (#:2.25) - - 11,215 (12,088) - 873 -

e . S e
At31 December 2013 201312831 B 59728 1454354 (15359 - (8983%) (52109 1,816,790
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: Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
m ISR ERMEE (&)
u (Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
B (REEERN  UAREAEA)
28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 EA - HERKRE(E)
(o)  Dividends ) &S
()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () SBEAFANENAADF
Company attributable to the year IRERAR 2
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Final dividend proposed after R4 B RIE IR

the end of the reporting REARR BB AR E B

period of HK$0.08 per 0.08787T (2012 4F :

ordinary share SR EEAY0.04 5 7T)

(2012: HK$0.04 per

ordinary share) 390,519 201,374
The final dividend proposed after the end of the MR HASR 18 12 53 1Y R Hf
reporting period has not been recognised as a A% B MR R B R T R
liability at the end of the reporting period. REfME-

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) HERE—MERFENE
Company attributable to the previous financial MARBRERE - ER
year, approved and paid during the year REZHE RR S

2013 2012
2013F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Final dividend in respect of the  _=—BA B 4E /& H AR HRA% 2.

previous financial year, HR&E R 0.04 7T

approved and paid during (20124 : HARE@AR

the year, of HK$0.04 per 0.04%7T) ' ER

ordinary share (2012: HK$0.04 R4 ZE#hfE KR~

per ordinary share) 201,374 201,337

188 YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED % 54 Ji 5 B A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BAAEEHEIN - UARERER)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 BE - HEERRE(E)
(€©)  Share capital © IR
()  Authorised and issued share capital: () EERBEBETRA:
2013 2012
2013 % 20126
No. of shares No. of shares
B2 E RIDEE
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T THET Fhx THT
Authorised: ey
Ordinary shares of FRAECBT
HK$0.1 each SRSl 12,000,000 1,200,000 12,000,000 1,200,000
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
No. of shares No. of shares
R EE iEE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
T TET Tk THL
Ordinary shares, L@

issued and fully paid: BETRAR :

At 1 January and R1A1BR
31 December 12A31H 6,208,734 519,723 6,208,734 519,723
(i) At 31 December 2013, 30,000,000 ordinary (i) H20183F12831H * &
shares are held by the Company under the Share N EIRIR AR () BB ET Bl %5
Award Scheme (31 December 2012: Nil) (see Note 4 30,000,000 f% & @ I%
25). (201212 A31 8 : £&)

(RHIEE25) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

MAR®RER)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the net consideration paid
for shares held under the Share Award Scheme.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unvested shares under the
Share Award Scheme granted to employees of the
Group that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(r)(ii).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents (i) the aggregate
carrying value of non-controlling interests
acquired by the Group in excess of the total
considerations paid; (i) the surplus/deficit of the
carrying values of the controlling equity interests
in subsidiaries under common control disposed
of over the considerations received; (iii) the
difference between the carrying values of the
controlling equity interests in subsidiaries acquired
and the considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv) the
difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
acquisition of a business under common control in
2012.
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28 EBEX - RERRE(E)

(d)

EEHIEE R B

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
these subsidiaries are required to set up certain
statutory reserves, which are non-distributable.
The appropriation to these reserves is at discretion
of the directors of the respective subsidiaries.
The PRC statutory reserves can only be utilised
for predetermined means upon approval by the
relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012, a
reserve for production safety is required to be
set up and to be appropriated at a fixed rate
on the turnover of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC. The reserve can be utilised
for expenses or capital expenditures incurred in
connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(v).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
Note 2(g).

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

28 B REERRE(E)

(@) FREEOEERBENE)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

L E R

IRIBA SR B B A7)
MABERAR - ZFW
BRRARMET NS
IREVETE [ o M ER
BE 2 B i & KT B A A E
BEEWMIRRTE - FEDEE
Fé 12 R] R (R AE AE R 1A R
HENBRETRE

Lo - RIEE 20121 A
1 F 8 A Rk A9 A8 BE P BDE
] AEBE T EEA R
ARNIREEENEELL
BIRRS 22 AR - %
REATREZNEBEEZ S
EEMEENRAZHER
FixZ °

9 B G

9V FE B 1 2 FEIR SN
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R M RE (4R

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEIERMN - AARERER)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

)

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company’s retained profits, if
any, and share premium) available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company is RMB1,454.4
million (31 December 2012: RMB1,655.7 million). After
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company proposed the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.08 per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: HK$0.04 per ordinary share) (see
Note 28(b)(i). The dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans and trade and bills payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity other than amounts recognised in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Capital management (continued)

During 2013, the Group’s strategy was to maintain

the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an acceptable

level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity

shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity

shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to

reduce debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December

2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Current liabilities:
Trade and bills payables
Bank loans

Non-current liabilities:
Bank loans

Total debt
Add: proposed dividends
Less: cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt

Total equity
Less: hedging reserve
Less: proposed dividends

Adjusted capital

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio

mBAIE :
BIRNALENER
RITEN

FRBAME -
RITE

BEH

o ERERS

o R MIREEHEY
RRABFEE

M

B

L BURALE
RBRER

RARFERRER LR

28

Br R AR BT AE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHERN  AARERER)

X RERRE(E)

f)

BREE(E)

R20183%F » REBMHBRSE
AR BEHARFEFREEANL
R RAIERKF - BERH
AEZAL R KREERGEE
AEIRN TR B S5
BOHRN RODEXRT R
R BEFEGREILESR
ELURDET ©

A20134FE K 2012412 A31 BHY
AR FERHEE AR R T

The Group
KEE

2013 2012
20134 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
4,275,207 3,896,868
2,933,153 1,801,990
7,208,360 5,698,358
130,000 150,000
7,338,360 5,848,858
390,519 201,374
(3,273,800) (2,132,343)
4,455,079 3,917,889
4,106,736 4,195,212
(32,621) (5,148)
(390,519) (201,374)
3,683,596 3,988,690
121% 98%
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: Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
m BIEERRME (&)
u (Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
B (REEEE MAREAER)
28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 BAE - HERRE(E)
()  Capital management (continued) H BXREEE)
The Company
AT
2013 2012
2013F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

Total debt — bank loan BEE—-RITER 90,911 -
Add: proposed dividends 0 BORRR S 390,519 201,374
Less: cash and cash equivalents A e RRESEEY (22,002) (50,546)
Adjusted net debt RAEFEK 459,428 150,828
Total equity B 1,816,790 2,134,994
Less: proposed dividends B IR AR B (390,519) (201,374)
Adjusted capital RAREAR 1,426,271 1,933,620
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio TR FEREAE AR = 32% 8%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are VNN =R e (| = RN B
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. ZHNEFHEINHY B AR TE PRl o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EAREHLIRZ
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these MR E P R EM A o R4
financial statements, the material related party transactions BRIN - AREE RN EF NE] M ) E A
entered into by the Group during the year are set out below. R SESAT
(@ Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and his @ EHEERREREEBARAIR
affiliates 2
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Revenue from contract work BSRIIFZIA 443,147 205,765
Sale of raw materials HE R R 1,813 1,687
Purchase of raw materials BB EiME 15,167 54,936
Rental income from operating leases  #& <2 E/FHEE A 121 613
Net increase in non-interest bearing  TE{TEAE A TEI T2 B
advances granted to related parties & j1)5%8 105 485
Net increase in non-interest bearing £ @88 A L UWERE) 5T B2
advances received from AL AN FEE
related parties 2,086 -
Further details on guarantees provided by a related party RAE A TR AEEIRITETIRHAE
for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in Note 24(a). (RENE— ISP 5E 24(2) BB o
(b) Transactions entered into by the Company with (b) ARFEANEFMNBA TR
subsidiaries of the Group 2
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Net increase in non-interest bearing  TE1T P& A Bl Tt 2

advances granted to subsidiaries SFIENNFEER 88,472 11,689
Net increase in non-interest bearing  #—RME A FUEE T &

advance received from a subsidiary ~ EAZk#% H1iFEEE 195,260 =
Further details on a guarantee provided by a subsidiary —ZWEB AT AR TIRITERIRM
of the Group for the Company’s bank loan are disclosed R ER A — FEF BT 5F 24(c) ]
in Note 24(c). g o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEESN  UARKRER)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

20 EARBEHARE (E)

(continued)

(€©)  Key management personnel remuneration ) FEZEEAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEBFEEREASREE -
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the BRERMTSIRENARARES
Company as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the EHFOHENAERE TRS
highest paid employees of the Group as disclosed in FHEESZHFIENT :

Note 9, is as follows:
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTTT
Short-term employee benefits 52 AR B 2 A 2,840 4,039
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE TR 186 234
Equity compensation benefits in B RERD R =T 2
respect of share award scheme R /(& (H7aE 25)
(Note 25) 892 =
3,918 4,273
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note FERe s EIRAI(R
6()). HizE6(b)) °
(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected @ EFHAEBIREERSHEDS

transactions

The related party transactions in respect of revenue from
contract work, sale and purchase of raw materials, rental
income from operating leases and non-interest bearing
advances granted to and received from related parties
included in Note 29(a) above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. These
transactions are disclosed in the Report of the Board
of Directors as required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, except for rental income from operating leases
and non-interest bearing advances granted to and
received from related parties which are exempted from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to gross
amount due from customers for contract work, trade and
other receivables and derivative financial instruments.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of the gross amount due from customers
for contract work and trade and other receivables
other than derivative financial instruments, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers and
debtors. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
and debtor’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers and debtors as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customers and debtors operates. The Group generally
requires customers and debtors to settle progress
billings and retentions receivables in accordance with
contracted terms and other debts in accordance with
agreements. Credit terms may be granted to customers
and debtors, depending on credit assessment carried
out by management on an individual customer or debtor
basis. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers and debtors. In 2013, the Group
entered into a credit insurance scheme with an insurance
company to insure against the recoverablility of certain
trade receivables arisen from the Group’s overseas
construction contracts. At 31 December 2013, 15% (31
December 2012: Nil) of trade and bills receivables are
insured by this credit insurance scheme.

30

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

BEEREEREMIANDIAE

=]

AEEAZRABERGEERELN

=8

nBEL  MEREERR

T E A S BA R R ZE R R A
5 B0 P A B I 5 B B 1 B A L B
BB MIER -

(@)

EE =R

AEENEERREZREE
WEFERTIRRERE BHR
HibBUK R TEERT A -
EEECFBEERR  ¥Z

FEEEEBEZEEERR

REREFARIZATEUR
B o5 REMBUGR(PTESRT
BRI ME - ERMEETMH
TEHABER REBA#ET
ZETEEFREFREBA
AT B BAFRIE A R 1 A 8% R IR
RO RED TEEEER
FREBARBRF QLT
KERBEBBENEEER - K
SE—RERATEFREBA
BIEE RS EEERE R
BEBHEEEMEL - RTE
EREERENZEPHEHAZR
ERETHEETEME @ &
ErgegmE PR TEESR -
—RhE  AEETEARP
REBARGEIRR - 722013
F - AEERREFERBRARG
Y EERBEE  LRERTR
EAREEFIITRENNET
B 5 B 12018312 A
31H ' 15% M & 5 &I K& fE
WEBZ L EERRETERE
(201212 531 H : &) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

AR RER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are entered into with either banks or recognised futures
exchange in the PRC, and with whom the Group
has signed netting agreements. Given the high credit
standing of the banks and futures exchange in the PRC,
the management of the Group does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer or
debtor rather than the industry or country in which the
customers and debtors operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers
and debtors. At 31 December 2013, 1.8% (31
December 2012: 2.0%) and 5.8% (31 December 2012:
6.1%) of the total gross amount due from customers for
contract work and trade and other receivables (excluding
the amounts due from the Controlling Shareholder and
his affiliates) were due from the Group’s largest debtor
and five largest debtors, respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in Note 32(a), the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credlit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
gross exposure to credit risk arising from gross amount
due from customers for contract work and trade and
other receivables are set out in Notes 17, 18 and 19.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the Group,
which including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and of the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group and
the Company can be required to pay:

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

30 FHXERREEREMIBENAAE
BE(E&)

(b)

MEE MR

AEBEREEMBEMN - &
RAEESNENRENER
EXMEEPREFL - AL
BHRRRERERERDE
TREMEETEERENR
o AREREERF TR S
BREETESRBEISTHM
MAKERBRERE  AnEERE
HREMRSHESHER -

TRALRAEE KA RT3
TEemBBERITESREAE
RESHEEERNRT AR
2HR - DERBRIERERR
ERE(BEERERMNEGFE
B A S TR IR Bk (f BV B A R )
BEREHHEERNIRTH
) RAEERARRFERNRK
M&RF HEEH -

The Group x5E
2013
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARERESRE
More than Carrying
Within 1 year but amount
1 year or on less than at 31
demand 2 years December
—FR BB-F Total #12A31A
BEX BHORWE Bt REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T ARBTR
Trade and bills payables B RNFRENRE 4,275,207 - 4,275,207 4,275,207
Accrued expenses and RESHR AR 2R
other payables measured  fEETRIE REM
at amortised cost TERR 614,814 - 614,814 614,814
Bank loans RITER 3,015,889 132,033 3,147,922 3,063,153
7,905,910 132,033 8,037,943 7,953,174
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR &R M (&)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHERAN  AARBRER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEBEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (&)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) ARBESRR(E)
The Group (continued) *&KE(E)
2013
20134

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
RRABRAS (RE)/RA
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or on less than less than

demand 2 years 5 years
—£R BA-F BEMF Total
HRER BLRME BBmE #ct

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR® TR ARBTFR AR®TR

Derivatives settled gross: BREETET AR
Forward foreign exchange  #{EB &R 8

contracts held as cash b T AR

flow hedging instruments HNEA R

(Note 30(c)(): (HaE30@)))

- outflow — i (594,044) (717,779) (74,550) (1,386,373)

— inflow —RA 624,140 730,641 77,009 1,431,790
Other forward foreign HErBINEAR

exchange contracts (HaE30())) -

(Note 30(a)(i):

- outflow — it (561,273) (326,865) (68,484) (956,622)

— inflow A 611,519 340,969 70,959 1,023,447

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEIRAN - MARBAEN)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEABEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (#&)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) FwHELER(Z)
The Group (continued) *&EE(E)
2012
20124
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRERR LML
More than Carrying
Within 1 year but amount
1 year or on less than at 31
demand 2 years December
—FA% Bl Total  M12A31E
REX BORmE st HREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Trade and bills payables B EMNTRENEE 3,896,868 = 3,896,868 3,896,868
Accrued expenses and RESHR AT 2R
other payables measured  fEETEIE KM

at amortised cost TER X 637,250 - 637,250 637,250
Bank loans RTREMER 1,869,064 153,790 2,022,854 1,951,990
6,403,182 153,790 6,556,972 6,486,108

Annual Report 2013 =& —=4E4EH

201
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B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEBEERSMIANAARE

202

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(E)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) ARBESRR(E)
The Group (continued) *&KE(E)
2012
2012

Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
BRAREREAS (RH)/ A

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years
—FR HBiE—F B E Total
FRER (RN BORTE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETT
Derivatives settled gross: BREEMETAEE:
Forward foreign exchange ~ #H{EB &R 8
contracts held as cash b T AR
flow hedging instruments INES R
(Note 30(c)i): (Hrst30)) -
— outflow — e (766,525) (353,368) (95,508)  (1,215,399)
- inflow —mA 769,993 365,852 95,955 1,221,800
Other forward foreign HErMINEAR
exchange contracts (& 30())) :
(Note 30(d)i):
- outflow =it (320,636) (35,785) - (356,421)
— inflow —RA 323,849 35,868 = 359,717
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(o)  Liquidity risk (continued)

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEIRAN - MARBAEN)

30 MBEREEREMIANDAME
B (#&)

b) FwHELER(Z)

The Company (continued) AT (&)
2013 2012
20135 2012%F
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flow cash flow
within 1 within 1
year or on year or on
demand Carrying demand Carrying
SR&BE amount at 31 AEARRBE  amount at 31
H&#8  December BEmE December
—FR R12831H —FA M12H31H
FIRER BREE SIREK BREAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTR ARETT ARBTR
Accrued expenses and  FEEHRIS &%
other payables HABER 195,515 195,515 138 138
Bank loan RITEK 91,803 90,911 = =
287,318 286,426 138 138

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

(© FEER

AEENNXREREZREE
BEE - FBHNEKEE M
REHMEED RS A EE K
XReRENERER LA E
EMEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEBEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(©) Interest rate risk (continued) © HM=RE &)
() Interest rate profile (i) FIEEE
The following tables detail the interest rate profile of TREFMANER KA A
the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the BERBREHELEERN
end of the reporting period: R 45
The Group
REE
2013 2012
20135 2012
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERF= BRA=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET R ARETT

Fixed rate borrowings: BEEFREE :

Bank loans RITER 5.67% 1,657,242 6.00% 315,000
Variable rate FEREREE

borrowings:
Bank loans FITER 5.48% 1,405,911 5.74% 1,636,990
Total borrowings BEHE 3,063,153 1,951,990
Fixed rate borrowings EEFEEE

as a percentage of hEEH%E

total borrowings Bk 54% 16%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEIRAN - MARBAEN)
30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 FXEREEREMIAENAARE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(©) Interest rate risk (continued) © FI=ERRE)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) (i) FIEEWZ)
The Company
NG|
2013 2012
20135 2012
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= BHRA=
RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR¥T R AREFTL
Variable rate FEREREE
borrowing:
Bank loan RITER 1.75% 90,911 - -
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) WRESH

At 31 December 2013,
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points

it is estimated that a

in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB12.0 million (2012: RMB13.9
million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expenses of such
a change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2012.

R2013F 12 A31H © &
ST F REE BB, R
1001!%5‘ Fﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ
$/E
la’ﬁmﬁufﬁ&% FE

DRUED LI AR

?ﬁéﬁz 08 &8 (20124 -
ARBEAB9OBFET) °

EXHGERE DT BRRA
SEBRNERRE N
FERBIR 8 - REEA X

WEFHENREREER
HHIR BB EAAENE
EXREERFEAESCAEHE
R ERRBERARER
EmENERBAIEITE
TRIE - BASENT
‘RABERRENEORZE
TE R B R BB 4R
KXW FELTET A
et - BURED WE&E

2012 F A R ELAEHET T o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

AR RER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work,
and purchases of imported materials which give rise
to receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, KWD, Bahraini Dinar
(“BHD”), Canadian Dollar (“CAD”), RMB, HK$, QAR,
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”), Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”)
and JPY.

A significant portion of the Group’s business is
overseas construction contracts, and these contracts
are generally settled in currencies other than RMB.
The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts
to minimise its exposure to currency risk arising
therefrom. The Group’s management believes that
RMB will appreciate against most foreign currencies in
the foreseeable future, and accordingly, the Group will
continue to increase the use of forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its foreign currency exposure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Forecast transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast revenue from overseas construction
contracts.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its currency risk and classifies
these as cash flow hedges. At 31 December 2013,
RMB624.1 million (31 December 2012: RMB770.0
million) of the forward foreign exchange contracts
have maturities of less than one year after the end
of the reporting period, and RMB807.7 million (31
December 2012: RMB451.8 million) of the forward
foreign exchange contracts have maturities of
more than one year after the end of the reporting
period.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had forward
foreign exchange contracts hedging forecast
transactions with a net fair value of RMB43.5
million (31 December 2012: RMB6.4 million)
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

30 BKEREEREMIANAARE

B (&)

(o =EERRGE)

(i)

RAX5

REBR AL RS /8
ShE R TA2 FRAI A S 0
HEahatoNg R -

AEBFEARHRAINESR
O EEERRI D EE
RERMEEFR © 752013
F12H31H AR &
62418 & L(2012412
A31H: AR¥770.08
Er) RRBINES R
A RmEHHEAER
BOR—F  MABAR
#807. 7B &L (2012412
HA318 : AR¥45188
&r) RRHINES B/
EE R AR S ARG EH
BRI —F o

MR2013%F 12 A31H * &
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B9 ¥T A TR 22 5 /9 3 ARSI
EERDHERAITESH
TH-

Annual Report 2013 =& —=4R4EH

207



208

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEHERMN - AARERER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies is recognised in profit or loss
(see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2013, the net fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts used
by the Group as economic hedges of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies was RMB64.5 million (31 December
2012: RMB3.3 million) recognised as derivative
financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rates at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B S 3R 2R B = (48D

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B RAEEBEIN  UARBRER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEABEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERRE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EHBRHEWERE(Z)
The Group REE
2013
PAKES
USD Ewo SGD AUD GBP CHF KWD BHD CAD RMB HKS QAR VND
BEE  BR 58
in Bn fsr An R RLEB EBE S48 neAn ARE  En AR EEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR% ARE AR¥® ARE AR® AR® ARE AR%® AR%® ARE AR¥® AR%® ARE
fn fr T fr fr T fr fr fx fi T fr Fn
Gross amount duefomoustomers— ENEFARTIREE
for contract work 7625 14262 10,212 825 - - - - - - - - -
Trade and bills receivables BRI RENZE 816271 41999 123,048 131,634 298460 63872 27,777 13619 34,252 - 70698 2121 13659
Deposts, prepayments and e BN REMEN
ofher receivables 4,124 - - - 4501 180623 - - - - 1563 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN BN 62 UM KT 10107 - - - - 1496 - - -
Trade and bl payables BoRMGRENZE (f2t3m - = - - Qo) - - = - - =
Aecrued expenses and B R RGN
other payables @5 2 - - - - - - - - - - -
Gross exposure arsing fiom BETEERERELN
recognised assets and liabiltes ERaE 782,324 56881 157,764 133006 313,167 240,794 27,777 13619 34252 14926 72240 23121 13,659
Notonal amounts of forward FETEANEEIE
foreign exchange contracts AR452E
Used as economic hedges (691,100) (12,137) (141,427) (131,430) (6:851)  (221) - - - - - - -
Net expostre asing fiom BETEERAREL
recognised assets and liabiltes ERTE 9215 44744 16387 1576 306316 240578 27,777 13619 34252 14926 72240 23121 13,659
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRHEEBEIN - UARKRERL)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BEEAREEREMIANDAE
B (&)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) EERRE)

210

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EHBHEWERRE(Z)
The Group (continued) REB(E)
012
WNIE
UD Ewo SGD AD GBP CH KAD BHD CAD  RMB  HKS DR Y
tEs B
i Br Amin S KB RDED ZBE 26 neAn ARE B ORE EE

(Gross amount oue from customers
for contract work
Trace and bils receivables
Deposts, prepayments and
other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and bils payebles
Accrued expenses and
other payables

(3r0ss exposure arising from
recognised assets and libiites

Notional amounts of forward
foreign exchange contracts
Used as economic hedges

Net exposure arsing from
recognised assets and libiites

BWEFAATESS

BRI RENRE
e BNSRAERS

RERASSEN
BAENARERRE
B RAbEN

EETAERAEELY
AR

REEEREIE
a5

EETAERAEELY
BRTE

RMB'000 RMB'O0 RMB0O0 RMB'000 RVB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB(OO RMB'O00 RMB'0OD RMB'O0D RMB'000 RMBYO00

ARE  ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
fr. It Tt Tt T fr fr fr Tt Tt T T
o705 M9 FIM M - - QW N - - - Mmoo -
YEON 11596 6109 188 2131 2B 124 ST SE8 - WIS - 19200

So o o0 Rt - - - - - o -
U 16 150 G5 M8 - - - 14 4 - - 208
1/ . I 11
0 B R
OIBSB 729 1OTH OBAST 216%9 16 BRG HN9 RI G4 TR HER 168
0S4 - B - e - - @) - - - -
BATS 102300 HO7H 2370 26000 156 B0 11000 4% A4 AER MG 168
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

The Company

Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

BA R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BAAEEHEIN - UARERER)

30 MERAREERERIANDAE
B (#&)

d EERR#E)

(iii) FEZRORBEEE (F)

AT
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

14,777 49,287
(iv) BRESH
TRERIANEERHRE

HREH A A EARR
BN E 3% B B A
28 BRAALBTE
AREFMETE - A%
BB FIE R R BRI
FOEDES BB o

Annual Report 2013 =& —=4R4EH

211



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS R AR B EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - UARKRER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEBEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) E¥RkRE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv)y BRBERR(E)
2013 2012
2013 20124

Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease)  profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
B ER R ANEDSE

SNEER RE R SN E R RE I
E#/(TR) &/ (8d) LF/(TE) #in/08d)

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT

usD T 5% 4,238 5% 26,545
(5%) (4,238) (5%) (26,545)

Euro BT 10% 3,803 10% 8,828
(10%) (3,803) (10%) (8,828)

SGD T 10% 1,389 5% 5,088
(10%) (1,389) (5%) (5,088)

AUD BT 20% 268 10% 22,416
(20%) (268) (10%) (22,416)

GBP W 10% 26,036 5% 9,220
(10%) (26,036) (5%) (9,220)

CHF Nl 10% 20,449 10% 11,242
(10%) (20,449) (10%) (11,242)

KWD BB R 5% 1,181 5% 1,445
(5%) (1,181) (5%) (1,445)

BHD EE AR 10% 1,158 5% 468
(10%) (1,158) (5%) (468)

CAD mexT 10% 2,911 5% 1,032
(10%) (2,911) (5%) (1,032)

RMB AR 5% 746 5% 2,472
(5%) (746) (5%) (2,472)

HK$ 7BIT 5% 3,073 5% 3,174
(5%) (3,073) (5%) (3,174)

QAR BT 5% 983 - -
(5%) (983) - -

VND e 5% 581 - -
(5%) (581) - -

IDR HE&E - - 10% 2,964
- - (10%) (2,964)

JPY = - - 15% 2,149
- - (15%) (2,149)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)
30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 FHEEREERESMIANARE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(#&)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d EERKE)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iv)y BRBEDRE)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained profits
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

ERZIWDINEREE
HEAEEEBUSED
e BT 2R EE
MARBFBa BN 2
TR ESEEE RER
ME%%”ﬁAEMrM
T2 A o

RE D RZE EAIN
%ETW“@MEﬁﬁE
AEEFEMSAEER
W RS E BASINE
FERE SR TE - BE N
ERASERARNINEE
AN B FHERM AR SE
& R &) RE A 3R & e R
H e DMIABIEBRES
INETSHIBI SRR BAS
B 25 EEmEENE
Bo MEE DN HIRE
2012 FAERIM B AEHETT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

MAR®RER)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

()

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k A B #5 JB A7 PR 2 )

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 18, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

30 HHEMEEREMTIANAAE

E(#&)

€ 2DREEE
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BOABREMNENEMT
&

R EEER

TREIRE BRI 15
ERERNFE A3 [ 2 FEE
B EHRmEHKRA
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B - 2EREETTEM
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 30 UHEABEERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (#&)
(e)  Fair value measurement (continued) e RARrBEF=EE)
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at () HROAEEHNENEMT
fair value (continued) ](E)
The Group
TEE
Recurring fair value Fair value measurements
measurements: categorised into Level 1
ERBEFE - PERE—EBNAREENE
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments: $T4 &R T & :
— Forward foreign exchange — REINES LY
contracts (Note 19(a)) (H1:2 19(a) 117,511 13,999
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments: #7441 T A
— Forward foreign exchange — R HRINE S A
contracts (Note 23(a)) (H15+23(a)) 9,487 4,302
— Forward aluminium contracts — & HitREEA A
(Note 23(a)) (K1t 23(a) 1,919 117
11,406 4,419
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) EFBAARBEIIENSE
carried at other than fair value MITANAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial R2013E K 2012E12 B
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are 31 B @ REBIE ANk 2
not materially different from their fair values at 31 THEK A% BR AV £ B T B BR
December 2013 and 2012, HEEAALEETES
AER o

Annual Report 2013 =& —=4R4EH 215



216

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS ER AR B EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - UARKRER)

31 COMMITMENTS 31 &iE
(@) Capital commitments @ EAEE
At 31 December 2013, the outstanding capital R2013F 12 318 + RAGHET
commitments of the Group not provided for in the 5 R I R B 2 N EE R
consolidated financial statements were as follows: B ERNEYEMT :
The Group
REE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Commitments in respect of land P RIET - AR K
and buildings, and machinery SR AIE
and equipment
— Contracted for —B&14 3,876 19,434
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B E(E R ET4Y 59,251 64,161

63,127 83,595
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
MR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B AAEEHEIN - UARERER)

31  COMMITMENTS (continued) 31 &E(E)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) AEHEEANE
At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease R2013F 12 A31H » AEEIR
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating BERA R EHERENA R
leases are payable as follows: REEASLEENT
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Within 1 year —FR 4,010 13,922
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 1,867 2,078
After 5 years AF% 3,609 3,721
9,486 19,721
The Group leases certain land, plant and buildings, AEERBKEKEHEMAES
motor vehicles and other equipment under operating Tt MEREF  RER
leases. Except for the lease of land for a period of 50 HMRME - BRAMS0FH i
years, the remaining leases typically run for an initial HAEI EFHAE—RVF A
period of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease H1 2106 - WA RERES
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases FEEM AR EERE -
includes contingent lease rentals. BEAESSAEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R (')

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BrRAEEBEIN - UARKRER)

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

Guarantees issued

At 31 December 2013, the Group has issued the
following guarantees:

32 HARERE
@ DELER

M2013F 12 A31H * A&EEE
BEHTEIHER

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREBT T

Guarantees for construction contracts’ 24 FIRIE - BEL &

bidding, performance and retentions  {RE8 & HIYE(R

As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it probable that a claim
in excess of the provision for warranties provided by the
Group will be made against the Group under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group as of the
end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued
is the amount disclosed above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

U

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India, both wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group, jointly received a notice that they are
being sued by a former sub-contractor in India in
respect of Shenyang Yuanda’s and Yuanda India’s
non-performance of the terms as stipulated in the
sub-contract agreement entered into between
Shenyang Yuanda and this former sub-contractor.
Shenyang Yuanda has made a counterclaim
against this sub-contractor for non-performance
of the sub-contract agreement. As at the date
of these financial statements, the above lawsuit
is under reviewed before the Arbitral Tribunal
of New Delhi in India. If Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB139.2 million) plus accrued
interest. Both Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India continue to deny any liability in respect of
the non-performance of the terms of the sub-
contract agreement and, based on legal advice
the directors of the Company do not believe it
is probable that the arbitration tribunal will find
against Shenyang Yuanda and/or Yuanda India.
No provision has therefore been made in respect
of this claim.

Br R AR BT AE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHERN  AARERER)

32 HREE(E)
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AREERAN LR EER
A FBEEHEDERI AT S
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R RZEWHHmER
B i ARRAIERENE ST
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HERN - AARERER)

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(i)

(i)

In April 2009, Shenyang Yuanda received a
notice that it is being sued by a construction
agent in Kuwait in respect of damages arose
from the termination of the agency agreement
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and this
former agent. As at the date of these financial
statements, the above lawsuit is under reviewed
before the Court of First Instance in Kuwait. If
Shenyang Yuanda is found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately KWD11.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB241.8 million). Shenyang
Yuanda continues to deny any liability in respect of
the claim and, based on legal advice, the directors
of the Company do not believe it is probable that
the court will find against Shenyang Yuanda. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of
this claim.

In December 2013, Shenyang Yuanda received a
notice that it is being sued by a supplier in respect
of its non-payment for the work carried out by
this supplier. As at the date of these financial
statements, the above lawsuit is under reviewed
before the Shenyang Intermediate People’s Court.
If Shenyang Yuanda is found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately RMB11.1 million. Shenyang
Yuanda continues to deny any liability in respect of
the claim and, based on legal advice, the directors
of the Company do not believe it is probable that
the court will find against Shenyang Yuanda. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of
this claim.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B A B 24 7]
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34

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)  Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continued)

(iv)  In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes
32(b)(i) to 32(b)(iii), certain subsidiaries of the
Group are named defendants on other lawsuits
or arbitrations in respect of construction work
carried out by them. The directors of the Company
consider the amounts involved in these lawsuits
and arbitrations are insignificant to the Group,
both individually and in aggregate. As at the date
of these financial statements, these lawsuits and
arbitrations are under reviewed before courts or
arbitrators. If these subsidiaries are found to be
liable, the total expected monetary compensation
may amount to approximately RMB21.5 million.
Based on legal advices, the directors of the
Company do not believe it is probable that
the courts or arbitrators will find against these
subsidiaries of the Group on these lawsuits and
arbitrations. No provision has therefore been made
in this respect.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 28 March 2014, the directors of the Company have
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note
28(b)(i).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In view of the change in focus on how the Group operates
its business segments, certain information reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment
has been changed in 2013. Accordingly, certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform to current year’s
presentation. Further details are set out in Note 4(b).

32

33

34

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEHERN  AARERER)

FREE(E)
b) AEREERERNWIAREEE)

(iv) BRI EE32(b)(i) = 32(b)(iii)
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ER MR B TR o iz
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Bif EHeBEHERE
ARENEARK 21588
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RIEEW T MEEZE AR
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FRAEREHEEER

MR2014F3H28H ' REEEEZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE (AR

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHEHIN

35

36

MAR®RER)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31 December
2013 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a few new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities
1255 & BB & 5128

BIBREA IR ELERIFE 105 - BB EIHRELRFE
F2TRMNER] - REEZRE

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

M TA: 25| -HBiHTHEERTHEE

BIR & ET#ERIE 32 5 ER]

Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ# b= ufZ%f‘t

BIFR & 5HERIE 395RAMER] » FTETAZLE

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
20104 £ 2012 FIERIBIR 1 5 3R & 26 Rl 2 F IR 28

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
2011 £ 2013 FIEHIBIR T 53R & BRI 2 F IR 2#E

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BIRR B R S 2ERIZE 95 - £ LA
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P RELEZERDE

RABIEERR - NAEIN20135F12
A 31 BZHN R&EIER AR AER
BRAT - TR RS R B S
PR o W EEEWERR A HARALT
R B B 75 Rk o

BZ2013F 12831 HILFEECHE
1B 8 R AERBIFETZER ~ RS
IR R R ER N E

BEZSMBEHRTEAS  BEREe
FHEREEE D BMATEHE20134F
12 A 31 B \E4F /2 i R A A #T AT 28

A - EANBRT M2 - HEIXRNZF
MR ARE - ZFER - ERIE

AINRERENATEE  ArfgelER
SEARH -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
JRLATS B &

R

FIRE & 5T

BRI AR

1 January 2014
20141 A1H

1 January 2014
20141 A1H

1 January 2014
20141 A1H

1 January 2014
20141 A1H

1 January 2014
20141 A1H

Unspecified
Ri5EA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2013 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation from the Company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial
year which will begin on 1 January 2015) in accordance with
Section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far
it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.

36

Br R R BT EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBEEAN  UARBREN)

BZEZ2013F 12831 HILFEEHE
{1 Rt SR B AT~ RIS
TRREULERNYE (&

AEEERHEZFMATER - ERIE
FIRRENTE  UYRBENZE
- BRTALE - NREEBRAZE
AT EA . EAEIT R EERE
i WRRERATAR BEE AR AR
BMERmREATE

BEoh - BB R ARG (F622F) F
OEB [BR B REBEAT] 2 ERBZIEHIE
358 1E A A AR 2014F 3 A3 H &
Fte 2 B B R EE (BIARRA R #R
201541 A 1 BB 2 KREE )R
Ei o AEBE FETETE R AHEH 248
BE Y EXEREOIBMmA
MR BT LR - 25 2w A%
HEARETTEXN  EXESFER
BUBHRENER 2 25| R HFE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

LT FEHERE

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARMERER)

Results
Turnover

Profit from operations
Finances costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current
liabilities
Non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
2013 20124 2011 4 20104 2009 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT ARETT ARETIT ARETT
#éﬁﬁ
-] 10,872,404 11,844,578 10,797,007 9,260,912 7,062,004
e IpE 192,700 560,999 1,195,863 1,086,162 871,429
BB A (160,019) (131,543) (156,779) (84,805) (41,889)
T AT A 32,681 429,456 1,039,084 1,001,357 829,540
FR 2% (5,133) (51,546) (213,482) (214,140) (181,709)
FRFE 27,548 377,910 825,602 787,217 647,831
AT AL FE(G -
PN
104,367 438,491 850,324 806,132 660,546
JEFE AR B (76,819) (60,581) (24,722) (18,915) (12,715)
FAFE 27,548 377,910 825,602 787,217 647,831
BEREE
ERENEE 1,664,416 1,660,774 1,478,160 1,484,633 1,158,849
RENEE 12,270,108 10,559,387 8,600,332 5,384,543 4,324,730
mEEE 9,592,913 7,794,337 5,783,105 5,652,710 4,377,850
mEEE,
(8E)FE 2,677,195 2,765,050 2,817,227  (268,167) (53,120)
BB E R
mEAE 4,341,611 4,425,824 4295387 1,216,466 1,105,729
ERBaE 234,875 230,612 275340 349,788 88,018
EEE 4,106,736 4,195,212 4,020,047 866,678 1,017,711
EARR HE
f& 7N 519,723 519,723 519,723 1 517,431
s 3,781,681 3,790,962 3,553,562 898,148 510,386
KRR PREEMN
TS iARE
4,301,404 4,310,685 4,073,285 898,149 1,027,817
JEPRAR R RS (194,668) (115,473) (53,238) (31,471) (10,1086)
iR 4,106,736 4,195,212 4,020,047 866,678 1,017,711

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED %k B 2 B B 24 7]
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